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NOMINATION OF NELSON A. ROCKEFELLER OF NEW
YORK TO BE VICE PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED
STATES

DECEMBER 3, 1974.—Ordered to be printed
(Filed under authority of the order of the Senate of November 22, 1974)

Mr. Cannow, from the Committee on Rules and Administration,
submitted the following

REPORT

[To accompany the nomination of Nelson A. Rockefeller]

The Committee on Rules and Administration, to which was referred
the nomination of Nelson A. Rockefeller of New York to be Vice
President of the United States, having considered the same, reports
favorably thereon and recommends that the nomination be confirmed.

I. INTRODUCTION

The nomination of Mr. Rockefeller, former Governor of the State
of New York, for the Office of Vice President of the United States,
was received by the Senate on August 20, 1974, and referred to the
Committee on Rules and Administration the same day, in accord with
the Committee’s jurisdiction under rule XXV of the Standing Rules
of the Senate (paragraph (p) (1) (D) of section 1), as follows:

JurispictioNn oF THE COMMITTEE ON RULES AND ADMINISTRATION IN
RespecT TO THE NoMINATION

(D) Matters relating to the election of the President,
Vice President, or Members of Congress; corrupt practices;
contested elections; credentials and qualifications; Federal
elections generally ; Presidential succession.

This nomination together with its consideration by both Houses of
Congress constitutes the second implementation of Section 2 of the
Twenty-fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States
(certified February 28, 1967), which section is as follows:

SectioN 2 oF THE TWENTY-FIFTH AMENDMENT

Section 2. Whenever there is a vacancy in the office of the
Vice President, the President shall nominate a Vice President
who shall take office upon confirmation by a majority vote of
both Houses of Congress.
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ComposiTioN OF THE COMMITTEE ON RULES AND ADMINISTRATION

The membership of the Committee on Rules and Administration
as presently constituted is as follows: Senator Howard W. Cannon,
Nevada (Chairman) ; Senator Claiborne Pell, Rhode Island ; Senator
Robert C. Byrd, West Virginia; Senator James B. Allen, Alabama ;
Senator Harrison A. Williams, New Jersey; Senator Marlow W.
Cook, Kentucky (Ranking Minority Member) ; Senator Hugh Scott,
Pennsylvania; Senator Robert P. Griffin, Michigan; and Senator
Mark O. Hatfield, Oregon.

Starr UtiLizep BY THE CoMMITTEE For THis INVEsSTIGATION

For the purposes of its investigation into the qualifications of Nelson
A. Rockefeller to be Vice President of the United States the Com-
mittee on Rules and Administration utilized the services of its own
staff as augmented by the assistance of other Senate personnel includ-
ing personal representatives of the Members, and certain personnel
from other Legislative agencies, as follows:

Full committee staff —William McWhorter Cochrane, Staff Direc-
tor; Chester H. Smith, Chief Counsel; Hugh Q. Alexander, Senior
Counsel ; John P. Coder, Professional Staff Member; Jack L. Sapp,
Professional Staff Member; Raymond N. Nelson, Professional Staff
Member; Joseph E. O’Leary, Professional Staff Member (Minority) ;
Peggy Parrish, Assistant Chief Clerk; Robert C. Heckman, Assistant
Chief Clerk (Auditor) ; Kay Ballard, Staff Assistant; Donna Blume,
Secretarial Assistant; and Karleen Millnick, Staff Assistant
(Minority).

Subcommittee staff —James H. Duffy, Chief Counsel, Subcommit-
tee on Privileges and Elections; John K. Swearingen, Director, and
Anthony L. Harvey, Senior Systems Analyst, Subcommittee on Com-.
puter Services. .

Other Senate persommel.—Richard D. Casad, Chief Investigator
(Permanent, Investigations Subcommittee) ; Barbara Dahlke, Press
Assistant (Senator Cannon) ; and Sharon Williams, Research Assist-
ant (Senator Cannon).

. Personal Representatives of Committee Members: Senator Can-
non—Chester B. Sobsey, Harry Claiborne, and Denver Dickerson;
Senator Pell—William Young; Senator Byrd—Tom Hart; Senator
Allen—Hugh Q. Alexander; Senator Williams—Nik Edes; Senator
Cook—Robert Scott Madden and Craig W. Housman ; Senator Scott—
Dennis Unkovic and Ken Davis; Senator Griffin—James Schoener and
Clyde Flynn; and Senator Hatfield-—Larry Smith.

From Other Legislative Agencies: General Accounting Office—
Charles W. Maddox, Allen L. Louderback, Gary Roemer, and Michael
D. McClosky; Legislative Reference Service, Library of Congress—
Joseph B. Gorman, Larry Eig, and. Robert DeGostin; and Govern-
ment Printing Office—W. A. Dowless.

II. PRELIMINARY COMMITTEE ACTIONS ON THE
NOMINATION

Avgusr 21, 1974

The Committee on Rules and Administration commenced its con-
sideration of the nomination of Nelson A. Rockefeller to be Vice
President at an executive session on August 21, 1974, the day after
the nomination had been received. Chairman Cannon reported to the
Committee on the preliminary steps he had taken since being advised
by the White House of the pending nomination on the previous day.
First, he stated, he had met and talked with Mr. Rockefeller the pre-
vious afternoon. The Chairman then advised that he had addressed
letters to the following persons, with the indicated requests:

(1) To Mr. Rockefeller requesting that he make available to
the Committee complete information concerning his financial
status and his health;

(2) To the Attorney General requesting a full investigation of
the nominee by the Federal Bureau of Investigation, as expedi-
tiously as possible;

(3) To the Chairman of the Joint Committee on Internal
Revenue Taxation requesting an audit of the nominee’s Federal
income and other tax returns for the past six years;

(4) To the Comptroller General requesting the assignment of
investigators as needed to assist the Committee in its investigation
of the nominee; '

(5) To the Chairman of the Senate Permanent Investigations
Subcommittee requesting the assignment of an investigator; and

(6) To the Librarian of Congress and to the Director of the
Congressional Research Service, requesting that the full resources
of the Library of Congress be made available to provide the Com-
mittee with all pertinent information on the nominee.

Chairman Cannon also stated (1) that he had requested the Com-
mittee’s Staff Director to discuss with the Staff Director of the House
Judiciary Committee the procedures for full cooperation between the
two committees in respect to the nomination, including the complete
sharing of information, and (2) that he had instructed the Majority
and Minority Counsels of the Subcommittee on Privileges and Elec-
tions, with the assistance of General Accounting Office investigators, to
investigate the nominee’s gubernatorial campaign spending reports
and records.

A fter commending the Chairman for his expeditious actions and ap-
proving the same, the Committee agreed that a letter should be di-
rected to the Special Watergate Prosecutor requesting any informa-
tion he may have bearing on the nominee’s qualifications for the office.

(3)
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After discussion on a number of aspects of the procedure to be fol-
lowed, the Committee agreed to the following:

The matter of releasing the income tax returns of the nominee
would be considered later—after Mr. Rockefeller had appeared
in open hearing:

The decision as to the date and place of the open hearings would
be determined after receipt of the FBI report.

Television and radio coverage of the hearings would be per-
mitted, but on a pooled basis.

The special rules adopted by the Committee for the Ford nom-
ination would be reviewed for possible use with the Rockefeller
nomination. :

Each Committee Member could designate a staff representa-
tive to receive information and to report to his Member on Com-
mittee meetings the latter may have to miss. ‘

It was generally agreed that in the open hearings the witnesses
would be heard in the following order: The two Members of the
Senate from New York State ; the nominee ; other Members of the
Senate and Members of the House of Representatives; and then
representatives of private organizations or private individuals, It
was also agreed that the Committee would recall the nominee after
hearing the other witnesses, if deemed desirable or necessary.

As its final action at that day’s meeting the Committee approved the
following :

(1) As requested by the FBI, the raw FBI files would be available
only to the Chairman and the Ranking Minority Member, with the
understanding that they would advise the other Committee Members
of any information therein which may bear on the qualifications of the
nominee to serve as Vice President. This agreement was subsequently
modified to permit either the Chairman or the Ranking Minority Mem-
ber to designate another Committee Member to perform that function.

(2) Any other confidential or delicate information received by the
Committee would in the first instance be made available only to the
top Majority staff member (Staff Director William M, Cochrane) and
to the top Minority staff member (Professional Staff Member Joseph
E. O’Leary). Such information would be released to other staff per-
sonnel only as approved by the Chairman and the Ranking Minority
Member. :

SepTEMRER 11, 1974

The Committee on Rules and Administration met on September 11.
1974, to discuss its progress with the investigation of the nominee, to
hear a report from its Chairman, and to make final decisions on its
public hearings on the nomination. Chairman Cannon discussed the
information that the Committee had received to date from Governor
Rockefeller, stressing that while all such information would be made
available to the Committee’s Members, the Committee was bound by
confidentiality restrictions not to release the substance of any of that
information to the public, at least not at this time. (A listing of the
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materials received from Governor Rockefeller and other sources may
be found below.) ) )

The Chairman advised the Committee that additional information
had been requested and would be forthcoming from Mr. Rockefeller.
He also stated that he personally had reviewed approximately 1,500
pages of FBI material on the nominee, and that an additional FBI
report into the nominee’s financial holdings was expected in a few
days.

At the suggestion of Chairman Cannon, the Committee then pro-
ceeded to discuss what its policy should be in respect to the potential
conflict of interest of the nominee, due to his possession of great
wealth. He pointed out that normally, in view of an applicable con-
flict-of-interest statute, nominees to Executive branch offices who
possess considerable wealth are either required to place their financial
holdings in a blind trust or to divest themselves of the same.

It is true, the Chairman continued, that if Mr. Rockefeller were run-
ning for the Vice Presidency—as opposed to having been nominated
thereto—there would be no divestiture requirement. But, he added,
under the circumstances attendant to this nomination the Committee
must assume the responsibility of minimizing any possible conflict of
interest of the nominee, or even the appearance of such a conflict of
interest.

After considerable discussion of this subject the Committee arrived
at the following conclusions:

(1) To require that Governor Rockefeller place his financial
holdings in a blind trust or to require his divestiture of the same
would not be feasible or realistic. '

(2) The only practical means to cope with the potential con-
flict of interest of the nominee is to require him to make full
disclosure of his financial holdings. (The Committee had earlier
agreed that whether this disclosure should include the nominee’s
income tax returns would be determined during or after the public
hearings.)

The Committee then proceeded to consider the rules of procedure
which it had adopted for its consideration of the nomination of
Gerald R. Ford to be Vice President of the United States. After dis-
cussion, it was agreed that those same rules would be adopted by the
Committee for its use during the Rockefeller investigation, with one
amended provision: The requirement that a witness file 50 copies of
his written statement with the Committee “24 hours in advance” of
his appearance was changed to “48 hours in advance.”

The Committee then returned to the consideration of the manner
in which Mr. Rockefeller’s financial statement would be made public.
After discussion, it was unanimously agreed that the nominee would
be requested to do so himself when he appeared at the open hearing.

As its last action at this meeting the Committee agreed (1) to
ecommence the open hearings on Monday, September 23, 1974; and
(2) to limit each Member’s questioning period to 15 minutes in each
successive turn.
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InrormMaTION RECEIVED BY THE ComMrtTee From Various Sources
Prior T0 THE OPEN HEARINGS

(Date information received in parentheses)
FROM NELSON A. ROCKEFELLER

Note.—Most of the information itemized below that the Committee
has received from Mr. Rockefeller has been supplied by him without
waiver of confidentiality, and with the understanding that it would be
available for examination only by Committee Members themselves or
by staff members designated by the Chairman.

(1) Federal income tax returns of Nelson A. Rockefeller for the
years 1967 through 1973. inclusive (August 26,1974).

(2) New York City income tax returns for Nelson A. Rockefeller
and Margaretta Fitler Rockefeller for the vears 1967 through 1973,
inclusive (August 29, 1974). )

_ (8) United States fiduciary income tax returns for the trust under
indenture dated May 3, 1963, made by and for the benefit of Margaretta
Fitler Murphy (now Rockefeller) for the calendar years 1967 through
1978, inclusive (August 29, 1974).

_ (4) United States fiduciary income tax returns for the trust under
indenture dated May 3, 1963, made by Nelson A. Rockefeller for the
benefit of Margaretta Fitler Murphy (now Rockefeller) for the fiscal
{ggzs) ended January 31, 1968, through 1974, inclusive (August 29,

. (5) Federal gift tax returns for Nelson A. Rackefellor and Federal
gift tax returns for Margaretta Fitler Rockefeller for the calendar
years 1967 through 1970, inclusive; the four quarters of 1971 through
1973, inclusive; and the quarters ended March 1974 and June 1974
(August 29, 1974). ,

(6) Venezuelan “Declaracion de Rentas” of Nelson A. Rockefeller
for the calendar year 1973 (August 29,1974).

(7) New York State income tax returns for Nelson A. Rockefeller
and Margaretta Fitler Rockefeller for the years 1967 through 1973,
inclusive (August 29, 1974). ‘

(8)(a) A statement of net worth of Nelson A. Rockefeller and his
wife, Margaretta Fitler Rockefeller; (b) a summary of their Federal
Income tax returns for 1967-1973, inclusive: and (¢) a summary of
taxes paid during the same years (August 30, 1974). ’

(9)(a) A biographical summary of Nelson A. Rockefeller: and (b)
a list of all assoclations with which Mr. Rockefeller and his wife,
Margaretta Fitler Rockefeller, have been involved over the years (Sep-
tember 9. 1974).

(10) Deed of Trust dated December 18. 1934, made by John D.
Rockefeller, Jr., for the benefit of Nelson A. Rockefeller, the Deed of
Trust dated December 18, 1934, made by .John D. Rockefeller, Jr.. for
the be_neﬁt of Abby A. Rockefeller. and summaries of the relevant
provisions thereof (September 10, 1974). -

(11) United States fiduciary income tax returns for hoth of the
trusts under Deed of Trust dated December 18, 1934. made bv John n.
Rockefeller, .Jr., for the benefit of Nelson A. Rockefeller and Abby A.
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Rockefeller, respectively, for the years 1967 through 1973, inclusive
(September 10, 1974).

(12) Audited list of the securities held in the two trusts dated
December 18, 1934, as of August 23, 1974, updated to August 28, 1974
(September 10,1974).

(13) Trust under indenture dated May 3, 1963, made by and for the
benefit of Margaretta Fitler Murphy (now Rockefeller), and the trust
under indenture dated May 3, 1963, made by Nelson A. Rockefeller for
the benefit of Margaretta Fitler Murphy (now Rockefeller), and sum-
maries of the relevant provisions thereof (September 10, 1974).

(14) Listing of all securities held by the two trusts under indenture
dated May 3, 1963, for the benefit of Margaretta Fitler Murphy (now
Rockefeller) (September 10,1974).

(15) Listing of real property owned by Nelson A. Rockefeller and
Margaretta Fitler Rockefeller along with a description of Nelson A.
Rockefeller’s Venezuelan real estate interests (September 10,1974).

(16) Statement regarding four Rockefeller founded institutions and
the relation to them, if any, of Governor Rockefeller. The institutions
are the Rockefeller University, the Rockefeller Foundation, the Rocke-
feller Brothers Fund, and Rockefeller Center, Inc. (September 12,
1974).

( 1% ) Summary of trusts held for the benefit of Nelson A. Rocke-
feller, Margaretta Fitler Rockefeller, and trusts created by Nelson A.
Rockefeller for the benefit of his children, grandchildren, and former
wife, Mary Clark Rockefeller (September 12, 1974). )

(18) Analysis of domestic and foreign dividend and interest income
collected in each of the two 1934 trusts for the benefit of Mr. Rocke-
feller, indicating the industry (and in many cases, the company) by
dollar amounts-and by percentages, for the years 1964-1973, inclusive
(September 12, 1974).

(19) One copy each of United States Business Performance Abrood,
The Case Study of The International Basic Economy Corporation,
and 7he AT A Story (September 12,1974). ) ) )

(20) Record of Nelson A. Rockefeller’s medical history, supplied to
the Committee by Dr. W. Kenneth Riland at the direction of Mr.
Rockefeller (September 12,1974).

(21) List of foreign awards received by Nelson A. Rockefeller from
1945 to 1972 (September 18, 1974). )

(22) Gifts to Nelson A. Rockefeller from foreign heads of state
(September 18, 1974). .

(23) Amended descriptive list of associations of which Nelson A.
R('}ckefeller and Margaretta F. Rockfeller are members (September 18,
1974).

( 24)1) Copy of the “Berlinger Report” on the award of certain da.ta
processing contracts bv the New York State Department of Social
Services (September 18, 1974).

(25) List of foreign countries visited by Nelson A. Rockefeller as a
representative of the United States Government (September 20, 1974).

(26) Amended list of gifts to Nelson A. Rockefeller from foreign
heads of state (September 20, 1974).

(27) Descriptive list of associations to which Nelson A. Rockefeller
formerly belonged (September 20,1974).
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FROM THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE UNITED STATES

A summary and analysis of the Federal conflict of interest law, 18
U.S.C. 208, and of any other statutes which might apply to Mr. Rocke-
feller if he were confirmed as Vice President; and an opinion as to
whether it would be lawful for Mr. Rockefeller, while serving as Vice
President, to be an officer, director, or stockholder of, or to hold any
other beneficial interest in, any company having contracts with anv
agency of the United States Government (September 20, 1974).

FROM THE LIBRARY OF CONGRESS AND ITS CONGRESSIONAL
RESEARCH SERVICE ’

A wealth of information in the public domain (articles from news-
papers and periodicals, special studies, ete.) encompassing Nelson A.
Rockefeller’s entire adult life.

FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE SELECT COMMITTEE ON PRESIDENTIAL
CAMPAIGN ACTIVITIES

. Advice that the Select Committee did not in the course of its hear-
ings develop any information indicating in any way that Governor
Rockefeller had any connection with the events known collectively as
the Watergate affair (September 9, 1974).

FROM THE NEW YORK STATE BOARD OF ELECTIONS

Copies of reports on campaign receipts and expenditures filed with
’tll‘le New JYork Secretg;y of State by the Friends of the Rockefeller
deam on January 5, 1972, January 4, 1973, and October 29, 19 -
tember 17, 1974). ’ ’ v ’ ctober 20, 1973 (Sep

ComyitreE Use or COMPUTER SERVICES

As part of its staff investigative effort prior to the public hearings,
the _Rules Committee explored the use of computerized information
retrieval systems and existing files of machine-readable data accessible
to the Committee either with its own computer terminals, through the
Library of Congress, or from other agencies in the public or private
sectors. Three files and three computer systems were searched for in-
formation- on the nominee, Nelson A. Rockefeller, the Rockefeller
family, associates, especially those receiving gifts from the nominee or
closely allied with the nominee in New York State politics, and on
subjects pertaining generally to the Committee’s public hearings. The
three files and their respective systems were: (1) the Select Com-
mittee on Presidential Campaign™ Activities through the use of the
Library of Congress’ “Bib Sys” computer system; (2) the New York
Times Information Bank, using a commercial computer system de-
veloped by the Times; and (3) the Library’s Congressional Research
Services on-line Bibliographic file, using a computer system developed
by the Library’s Information Systems (§ﬂice called “Scorpio.”
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1. The Select Committee’s system, known as the Watergate file,
was transferred to the Library of Congress, under the jurisdiction of
the Senate Committee on Rules and Administration, upon completion
of the Select Committee’s work in September 1974. This file contains
approximately 30,000 abstracting and indexing records pertaining to
the entire scope of the Select Committee’s investigation. Searches of
the Watergate file provided Rules Committee investigators with in-
formation pertaining to meetings held between the nominee, his im-
mediate family, and New York Republican leaders and White House
and reelection staff during an intensive period of fund-raising by the
Committee for the Re-election of the President. Much of this activity
was prior to April 7, 1972, at which time the new disclosure and report-
ing provisions of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971 (P.L. 92-
225) took effect. Leads concerning the leaks of information about wire-
tapping, and intervention by New York State officials on behalf of
defense contractors located in New York State, were also found.

2. The New York Times Information Bank contains almost 900,-
000 abstract and indexing records and can be searched both from a
terminal located in the Library of Congress’ Senate Reference Center
and at the Times’ computer center located in New York City. A
large retrieval from the entire file was made for 10 general subjects.
The computer reports provided both specific leads for staff invest-
igators and a comprehensive framework for establishing, in outline
form and in chronological order, the nominee’s political activities, his
philanthropic contributions and associations, the Rockfeller family
financial and charitable involvements, the business and financial deal-
ings of the nominee in Latin America, and additional subject co-
siderations. Information concerning Governor Rockfeller’s role in
the Attica prison uprising and subsequent prospective involvement
in litigation over alleged mishandling of this event; the Governor
and the Morhouse pardon; and other subjects of interest were found
as a result of this search.

3. Committee staff used computer terminals located in the Rule’s
Committee’s Subcommittee on Computer Services to access the
Library’s Congressional Research Service’s Bibliographic file. These
searches were especially useful in providing citations to recent back-
ground articles on Governor Rockefeller, his 15 years as Governor
of New York State, his views on a number of pressing public issues, and
his new Commission on Critical Choices.




III. PUBLIC HEARINGS ON THE NOMINATION

InForMATION RECEIVED BY THE CoMMITTEE DURING AND SUBSEQUENT
10 THE PusLic HEARINGS

(Date information received in parentheses)

A listing of the most pertinent information received by the Commit-
tee during and subsequent to the public hearings follows:

FROM NELSON A. ROCKEFELLER

(1) A letter from Nelson A. Rockefeller enclosing a revised financial
statement setting forth the assets, liabilities, and net worth of Nelson
A. Rockefeller and Mrs. Margaretta F. Rockefeller, with a section
relating to trusts created by John D. Rockefeller, Jr., Nelson A. Rocke-
feller, or Margaretta F. Rockefeller, for the benefit of the descendants
of Nelson A. Rockefeller or Margaretta F. Rockefeller, and a section
on assets held outright by Nelson A. Rockefeller’s descendants (Sep-
tember 21, 1974).

(2) A letter from Nelson A. Rockefeller setting forth information
requested by the Chairman concerning the nominee’s gifts and loans
to present and former public officials (October 11, 1974).

(8) A letter from Nelson A. Rockefeller enclosing a list of all gifts
made by him to charitable, educational, and other tax-exempt organi-
zations during the years 1957 through June 30, 1974 (October 18,
1974).

(4) A letter from Nelson A. Rockefeller containing information
concerning the Internal Revenue Service audit of his Federal income
and gift tax returns for the years 1969 through 1973 and a revised
10-year summary of his Federal income tax returns and taxes paid
(October 18, 1974).

(5) A letter from Nelson A. Rockefeller enclosing copies of his
Federal gift tax returns for the years 1957 through 1966 and for
the third quarter of 1974; copies of Mrs. Margaretta F. Rockefeller’s
Federal gift tax returns for the years 1963 through 1966 and for the
third quarter of 1974; and an English translation of the “Declaracion
de Rentas” submitted to Venezuela for calendar year 1967 which he
had previously filed with the Rules Committee (October 22, 1974).

(6) A letter from Nelson A. Rockefeller enclosing a list of all loans
made by him during the years 1957 to the present, supplementing and
;18;4(1)uplicating the list he submitted on October 11, 1974 (October 28,

_(7) A list from Nelson A. Rockefeller of all his political contribu-
tions during the years 1957 to the present (November 11, 1974).

(8) A list from Nelson A. Rockefeller of all political contributions
made by Mrs. Margaretta F. Rockefeller during the years 1963 to the
present (November 14, 1974).

(11)
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FROM THE JOINT COMMITTEE ON INTERNAL REVENUE TAXATION

A report from the staff of the Joint Committee on Internal Revenue
Taxation on its examination of Nelson A. Rockefeller’s tax returns
and other financial records (October 22, 1974).

FROM FREEMAN H. CARY, M.D.

A letter from Freeman H. Cary, M.D., the attending physician,
Congress of the United States, regarding his review of the medical
health record of Nelson A. Rockefeller (September 25,1974).

‘ SEPTEﬁBER 23, 1974

The public hearings of the Committee on Rules and Administration
on the nomination of Nelson A. Rockefeller to be Vice President of the
United States commenced on Monday, September 23, 1974, in room
318 (Senate Caucus Room) of the Russell Senate Office Building.

In his opening statement Senator Howard W. Cannon, Chairman
of the Committee, stressed the following points: ) )

(1) That within the limits of one year this Committee will have
considered the nominations of two. separate individuals to be Vice
President of the United States;

(2) That history has verified the prophecy he made when the Com-
mittee embarked upon its investigation of the qualifications of Con-
gressman Ford to be Vice President, to wit :

If history is to instruct us, this Committee should view its ob-
ligations as no less important than the selection of a potential
President of the United States.

(3) That, while during its consideration of the Ford nomination
the Committee established the principle that approval of his nomina-
tion should not be predicated on his political affiliation or his voting
record in Congress, but rather on his qualifications to serve in the
Office, in the case of Mr. Rockefeller’s nomination the Committee
must consider a new and significant element—the public-policy im-
plications of a nominee whose vast financial holdings touch many seg-
ments of the American economic system;

(4) That it is the serious intention of this Committee, extremely
conscious that “we are acting on behalf of every citizen of the United
States”, to examine exhaustively, objectively, and honestly the qual-
ifications of this nominee before making its report to the Senate, “so
that those who do not approve of the nominee will know that no
stone was left unturned in the search for truth”; and

(5) Alluding to the response “I do not think the American people
would stand for it”, which then Vice Presidential nominee Ford gave
to his question about the power of a President to terminate an investi-
gation or criminal prosecution of a former President who has resigned,
Chairman Cannon expressed his—

serious concern that the present nominee’s responses to questions
posed during these hearings will stand the test of time; that they
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will be substantive rather than hypothetical; that they will be
forthright rather than equivocal; that they will not be subjected
to later tailoring to fit a particular expediency.

In his opening statement, Senator Marlow W. Cook, Ranking Mi-
nority Member of the Committee, summarized the historical context in
which this nomination has been received and stated that he also had
reviewed all the FBI files on the nominee, as well as all other pertinent
material, adding that the FBI files alone were several feet thick. He
commended Chairman Cannon for his promptness in implementing the
investigation and the nominee for his cooperation and prompt response
to all Committee requests for information. He expressed his attitude in
respect to this nomination as follows: '

The Congress is again on trial, and as a result of that trial, I
would only hope that we could improve our image by expeditious
and efficient action in regard to this nominee. Obviously, we have
no fixed time schedule, but we desire to be responsive to the Pres-
ident and the Nation in this important matter. However, thor-
oughness and honesty must be our watchwords, as the people of
the Nation will not accept less, and we, as their representatives,
would not be satisfied with less.. :

The Chairman then called upon Senator Jacob K. Javits and Sen-
ator James L. Buckley, senior and junior Senators, respectively, from
the State of New York, who introduced Mr. Rockefeller and com-
mended his nomination to favorable consideration by the Committee.
The nominee, Nelson A. Rockefeller, then proceeded with his formal
statement, after which he was interrogated by each Committee Mem-
ber in successive turns. (The essential and pertinent issues raised in
these proceedings will be discussed later in this report.)

The hearing was continued in the afternoon with Mr. Rockefeller
as the only witness.

SeEPTEMBER 24, 1974

The public hearing by the Committee on Rules and Administration
on the nomination of Nelson A. Rockefeller to be Vice President of
the United States was continued this day in morning and afternoon
sessions, with Mr. Rockefeller being the only witness.

SepPrEMBER 25, 1974

The Committee’s public hearings on the nomination of Nelson A.
Rockefeller to be Vice President continued this day, with morning and
afternoon sessions. During the morning, Mr. Rockefeller was further
interrogated by Committee members. At the conclusion of that session,
Chairman Cannon expressed his appreciation to Mr. Rockefeller for
his cooperation, adding that “you have been very forthright in your
testimony before the Committee”. The Chairman then announced that
during the afternoon session the Committee would proceed to hear
from Members of Congress on the nomination. He advised Mr. Rocke-
feller, however, that he may be recalled later for additional testimony.

41-217 0O - 74 -2
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During the afternoon session, the Committee heard testimony in
support of the nomination from six Members of the United States
Senate and four Members of the House of Representatives, who testi-
fied in the following order:

Senator George D. Aiken, of Vermont;

Senator Roman L. Hruska, of Nebraska ;

Senator Jennings Randolph, of West Virginia;
Congressman John J. Rhodes, of Arizona;

Senator John Tower, of Texas;

Senator Clifford P. Hansen, of Wyoming ;
Congressman Robert E. Jones, of Alabama;
Congressman Howard W. Robison, of New York;
Senator Edward W. Brooke, of Massachusetts; and
Congressman John B. Anderson, of Illinois.

In addition. the Committee has received written statements .sup-
porting the nomination from the following Members of Congress:

Senator Hubert H. Humphrey, of Minnesota ;
Congressman Jim Wright, of Texas;

Congressman Stanford E. Parris. of Virginia; and
Congresswoman Shirley Chisholm, of New York.

SEPTEMBER 26, 1974

The Committee continued its open hearings on the Rockefeller nom-
ination with morning and afternoon sessions. Senator Jesse Helms, of
North Carolina, was the first witness. Senator Helms read into the
record a series of questions he felt should be posed to Mr. Rockefeller.
(The text of those questions and Mr. Rockefeller’s responses thereto
are contained in the printed hearings on this nomination as part of,
and following, Senator Helms’ testimony.)

The Committee then heard testimony from a number of individuals
representing various private organizations. A listing of those witnesses,
with an expression of their views, is as follows:

George Frain, Secretary-Treasurer, Businessmen Affected
Severely by the Yearly Action Plans, Inc., accompanied by Philip
J. Brown, president, and Anton Wood, consultant on minority
problems of the small businessman (opposed to confirmation) ;

Edward J. Golden, immediate past president, National Right
to Life Committee, accompanied by Dr. Ada Ryan, president,
New York State Doctors and Nurses Against Abortion
(opposed to confirmation) ;

Prof. Charles E. Rice, on behalf of The United States Coalition
for Life (opposed to confirmation) ;

Ms. Angela Davis, co-chairperson of the National Alliance |

Against Racist and Political Repression (opposed to confir-
mation) ;

Dr. Maurice A. Dawkins, national director, Government and
Legislative Relations Service, OIC of America (supported con-
firmation) ;

Ms. Carol Burris, president, Women’s Lobby, Inc., Washington,
D.C. (supported confirmation) ;
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Lyndon H. LaRouche, national chairman of the National Cau-
cus of Labor Committees and representative of the United States
Labor Party (opposed to confirmation) ;

Hon. Constance E. Cook, Member, New York State Assembly—
128th District, The New York Religious Coalition for Abortion
Rights. (supported confirmation) ;

Ms. Mary Joyce Johnson, Vice President, National Lawyers
Guild, New York, N.Y. (opposed to confirmation) ;

Haywood Burns, Esq., Legal Coordinator, Attica Brothers
Legal Defense, accompanied by “Big Black”, national director,
Attica Brothers Legal Defense (opposed to confirmation) ;

Rev. Kenneth E. Lee, president, Washington Christian Action
Council (opposed to confirmation) ;

Col. Curtis B. Dall, chairman, Board of Policy, Liberty Lobby
(opposed to confirmation) ; and

gamuel C. Jackson, chairman, Council of 100, an Organization
of Black Republicans (supported confirmation).

After the above witnesses had been heard and interrogated, Chair-
man Cannon announced that the Committee would stand in recess,
subject to the call of the Chair.

Novemeer 13, 1974

The Committee on Rules and Administration on November 13, 1974,
resumed its open hearings on the nomination of Nelson A. Rockefeller
to be Vice President of the United States. During his opening state-
ment, Chairman Cannon specified four areas of public concern relating
to the nominee which had developed since the first series of the public
hearings were concluded on September 26, 1974, namely : '

(1) What the nominee’s involvement was with a politically
oriented and motivated book written by Victor J. Lasky dur-
ing the 1970 New York gubernatorial race between Governor
Rockefeller and former Supreme Court Justice Arthur J.
Goldberg. (Originally, by his disclaimer of any knowledge
about this, it appeared that Governor Rockefeller had no per-
sonal involvement. Subsequently, in published statements, he
was quoted as assuming “full responsibility.”) -

(2) The important matter of the nominee’s and his family’s
substantial political campaign contributions and what they
may have concerned.

()S;) Tax questions developed by the Joint Congressional
Committee on Internal Revenue Taxation in an.audit of the
nominee’s returns plus a substantial liability of the nominee
of almost $1 million for unpaid taxes from 1969 to 1974.

(4) Several million dollars worth of loans and/or gifts
mt‘c}llde by the nominee to friends, aides, political associates, and
others.

Chairman Cannon then stated that he had received a letter dated
November 11, 1974, from President Gerald R. Ford in which the Presi-
dent expressed his concern with the length of time already spent by
Congress on the Rockefeller nomination and urged the Chairman’s
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“assistance and cooperation” in expediting Senate procedure on the
nomination. In his reply to President Ford, which Chairman Cannon
read into the record near the conclusion of the day’s hearing, he stated,
in pertinent part:

Let me assure you most respectfully that it is my purpose,
as I will say in my opening statement at Governor Rocke-
feller’s hearings later this morning, that “this nomination
should have the highest congressional priority.” Likewise,
we know you will agree that full and appropriate considera-
tion must be accorded to this procedure, as your letter sets
out.

T feel most sincerely that our Committee on Rules and Ad-
ministration is meeting that test. Twenty-three business days
after this nomination was received in the Senate from you,
our Committee began its hearings, although the final reports
of the Federal Bureau of Investigation were not received by
me until November 4.

Additionally, our Committee’s request for a complete ac-
counting of Governor Rockefeller’s campaign contributions
was not met until last Monday evening, November 11, at 9
p.m., when this information was received. Likewise, the volu-
minous report of the Joint Committee on Internal Revenue
Taxation on the nominee’s tax returns was not completed until
October 23.

Therefore, I felt it desirable to recite briefly the above facts
incident to our Committee’s work. As I will reiterate at our
hearings this morning, “Our country deserves at the earliest
possible time a sitting Vice President.”

I am hopeful that goal can be accomplished as expedi-
tiously as our constitutional responsibilities will permit. You
will have my wholehearted cooperation.

In his opening statement Senator Scott, as acting Ranking Minority
Member, expressed his satisfaction that this series of the open hearings
was being televised and his regrets that the first series was not (except
for public TV). Senator Scott then stated that he too had drafted a
reply to a similar letter from President Ford, in which he expressed |
his own regret that “Congress has failed to implement and expedite
the Twenty-fifth Amendment.” Before reading into the record ex-
cerpts from several editorials on the subject, Senator Scott stated :

There have been numerous editorials on this subject, almost
unfailingly critical of the delays of the Congress. We have
conducted exhaustive hearings. Many of the delays are not
the fault of the Senate Rules Committee, but the delays inci-
dent to securing ihformation from the Joint Committee on
Internal Revenue Taxation, and from various agencies of the
Federal Government, although the FBI greatly expedited its
part of this process.

The Chairman then requested Mr. Rockefeller to resume his testi-
mony. The nominee submitted for the record a formal statement in
which he provided information in response to the “areas of concern”
which Chairman Cannon had referred to earlier that day. The Com-
mittee continued to hear only from Mr. Rockefeller through the after-
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noon session as well. (The issues and other subjects brought forth
in the hearings will be discussed later in this report?) .

Novemeer 14, 1974

The Committee continued its open hearings on the nomination this
day, with morning and afternoon sessions. Mr. Rockefeller continued
his testimony through the morning and well into the afternoon ses-
sion. When excusing the nominee, Chairman Cannon advised him that
the Committee would reserve the right to recall him if it were deemed
necessary.

The balance of the afternoon session was spent in hearing the testi-
mony of former Supreme Court Justice Arthur J. Goldberg, who was
the subject of a book written by Victor Lasky for use during the period
Mr. Goldberg was contending with Mr. Rockefeller for the governor-
ship of New York State.

Novemser 15, 1974

The Committee devoted most of its morning and afternoon sessions
on this day to hearing from witnesses on various aspects of the con-
ception, the financing, and the publication of Victor Lasky’s book en-
titled “Arthur J. Goldberg: The Old and the New.” The exception
was in the case of Robert B. Anderson, who testified in respect to a
loan he had received from Mr. Rockefeller. The day’s witnesses, in
order of their appearance, were as follows: ’

John A. Wells, Esq., Rogers and Wells, New York, N.Y.;
Robert B. Orr,,Esq.,',Upper Black Eddy,, Pa.; , h

Joseph H. Jacovini, Esq, Dilworth, P i
Coleman, Phi]adelphi%;, Pa(?;’ morth, Paxson, Kalish, Levy &

Donal C. O’Brien, Jr., Esq., New York, N.Y.;
ch(i;{%ll,l l\lT\f[{f(.);affrey, President, Arlington House, Inc., New Ro-
ohn E. Lockwood, Esq., Mi f 4
Now Yok R y Esq., Milbank, Tweed, Hadley & McCloy,
Laurance S. Rockefeller, New York, N.Y.;
Robert B. Anderson, New York, N.Y.;
J. Richardson Dilworth, New York, N.Y.; and
Victor J. Lasky, Washington, D.C.

Novemper 18, 1974

The Committee devoted this day, the final day of the open hearings
to Interrogating four recipients of loans or gifts from Mr. Rockefeller,
;J.)nd to receiving the testimony of the spokesman for Americans for

emocratic Action. The witnesses were as follows:

William J. Ronan. Seni ; .
ciates, New York, ald\?.Y. ;e nior Advisor, Rockefeller Family Asso-

%glmeth ?h}l Hughes, Princeton, N.J. ;
tdward J. Logue, President and Chief E ti
York State Urban D’evelopment Corporl':tioniecu tve Offcer, New
g amesh “IZ. %Wlﬁon New Rochelle, N.Y.; and
oseph L. Rauh, Jr., vice president, Ameri i
Action (opposed to coriﬁrma{:)ion;. enty Americans for Democratic
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NovemBer 22, 19741

The Committee had met briefly on November 20, 1974, to discuss the
nomination, but since certain Members were unavoidably absent, final
action on the nomination was deferred until an executive session on
November 22, 1974.

A fter considerable discussion, the Committee prior to its vote on the
nomination unanimously agreed that—

Every member of the Committee reserves to himself the
right to cast his vote as he sees fit: when the nomination is
considered in the Senate itself.

'The Chairman then posed the following question to the Committee :

Shall the nomination of Nelson A. Rockefeller to be Vice
President of the United States be reported with the recom-
mendation that Mr. Rockefeller be confirmed ?

'The question, which had been duly moved by Senator Cook, was sec-
onded jointly by Senators Robert C. Byrd and Hugh Scott and was
unanimously adopted 9 to 0.

After the vote Senator Allen requested and received permission to
include in the Committee’s report on the nomination certain supple-
mental views on his part.

The Committee then proceeded to reconsider the desirability of re-
quiring the nominee to place his financial holdings in a blind trust.
After discussion it was unanimously agreed that, even though Mr.
Rockefeller had offered to do so, the Committee would not condition
its recommended approval of the nomination by inclusion of such a
stipulation. In the judgment of the Committee such a requirement
would not be meaningful. Moreover, by his long period of public serv-
ice without such a requirement in effect, and by his candid revelation
to the American public of the details of his immense wealth the nom-
inee has rendered the blind-trust issue practically moot.

In view of the apprehension which has arisen in respect to his loans
and gifts to public officials who had served within his State admin-
istration, Mr. Rockefeller had offered at the hearings to henceforth
limit that practice to purely nominal gifts (birthdays, retirements,
weddings, etc.) or to assistance in respect to medical or other serious
familial emergencies. After discussion, it was unanimously agreed that,
even though the Committee has taken cognizance of that offer, it has
no intention of requiring such a pledge as a condition precedent to the
Committee’s favorable recommendation on the nomination. On this
point, the Chairman summarized the Committee’s views, as follows:

I think it would be a mistake to impose something that is
not imposed by the Constitution and is not imposed by law.
What the man does with his own money after he has satisfied
his obligations to the Federal Government [is his own busi-
ness], and we do not impose that kind ef restriction on Sena-
tors or any other public official.

1 This summary of the executive session during which the nomination was approved
although not properly part of the public hearings, is included here to complete the record.

IV. PUBLIC SERVICE OF NELSON A. ROCKEFELLER

Nelson A. Rockefeller’s record of public service to State and
Nation, and to the international community extends over a period of
nearly four decades, reflecting his express commitment to family and
pexsonal ideals of stewardship, civic responsibility, and the ethic of
service as an obligation. The principal areas of his earliest public jnter-
est and activity included Rockefeller Center in New York City, which
he served as executive vicg president in 1937 and as presiaent in
1939 ; the Rockefeller Brothers Fund (of which he was chairman?l;
and Latin America, with which he has been deeply involved through-
out his life. In 1937 and again in 1939 he visited the Latin American
countries to study their general conditions. After the second trip he
reported to President Franklin Roosevelt on his observations, urging
a program of inter-American cooperation, which eventually led to
his first full-time position of public service as Coordinator of Inter-
American Affairs, an office established by the President in 1940 and
headed by Rockefeller until 1944. In this capacity he was instrumental
in developing (with the U.S. Department of State) five major activi-
ties—an information program, cultursl exchange, economic assistance,
a voluntary blacklist (of Nazi firms), and servicio social programs
associated with an Institute of Inter-American Affairs (providing aid
to public health, education, and agriculture), authorized by the Inter-
American Conference at Havana in 1942. In this same area, the Inter-
American Development Commission, created by an earlier Inter-
American Conference, was activated, with Rockefeller as Chairman
of a hemisphere commission involving all 21 American Republies in
a pregram furthering closer ties between the business and financial
communities. He also served as American Co-Chairman for the Mexi-
can-American Development Commission (founded in 1942), spaon-
soring more than a score of projects to strengthen Mexico’s industrial-
1zation and to bridge her transition from war to peace.

Rockefeller’s cultural concerns and his interest in such contacts with
Latin America led him to serve as Chairman of the Junior Advisory
Committee for the Museum of Modern Art (associated in its found-
ing with his family), of which he later became (in sequence) Trustee,
Treasurer, President, and Chairman of the Board. In 1939 he was
named a member of the Board of Trustees of the Metropolitan Mu-
seum of Art, and Jater headed its Commission on Far Eastern Art.
His life-long interest in collecting Pre-Columbian, African, Qeceanic,
and Eskimo art led to his founding of the Museum of Primitive Art
(until 1956 called the Museum of Indigenous Arts), which he pre-
sented. to the Metropolitan Museum in 1969 as a memorial to his son,
Michael C. Rockefeller, who had been in killed in New Guinea.

In 1944 he was appointed by President Roosevelt to serve as Assist-
ant, Secretary of State for American Republic Affairs, in which ca-
pacity he represented the United States at the Chapultepeec Confer-
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ence in Mexico City (February 1945) on Problems of War and Peace.
The Act of Chapultepec, which the Conference drafted (and which
Rockefeller signed for this country), providing for mutual security
and common defense, was a &)rototype of such later regional pacts
as NATO. Later, at the founding United Nations Conference on In-
ternational Organization (at San Francisco), Rockefeller advocated
such pacts as appropriate to the structure of the U.N., and, as liaison
officer with other Western Hemisphere ministers, helped draft Ar-
ticle 51 of the U.N. Charter (on collective self-defense). He resigned
in August of 1945 and returned to private life as president of Rocke-
feller Center and the Museum of Modern Art. He was instrumental
in bringing the United Nations to New York City.

His concern for the concept of hemispheric unity led to the found- |

ing of the American International Association for Economic and
Social Development, the ATA, a nonprofit corporation patterned after
the old Institute of Inter-American Affairs and serving social needs
in Latin America (such as its rural credit program in Brazil).
Rockefeller served as its President from 1946 to 1953 and from
1957 to 1958. Its programs were terminated after 30 years. From 1947
to 1953 and from 1956 to 1958 he served as president of the Interna-
tional Basic Economy Corporation, IBEC, a business venture for
social aid programs with a profit incentive, at first limited to Latin
America (notably Venezuela and Brazil) and later worldwide in
scope.

Itl)lefurtherance of President Truman’s 1948 “Point Four” program
for international development, Rockefeller was named Chairman of
the Presidential Advisory Commission, whose report, “Partners in
Progress”, outlined proposals for the freedom, peace, and well-being
of the global community through a program of foreign assistance
after the example of the ATA and the Office of Coordinator of Inter-
American A ffairs.

Named by President Eisenhower as Chairman of the President’s
Advisory Commission on Government Organization, Rockefeller
served in this capacity for seven years, overseeing major reorganiza-
tion proposals in the Executive Branch,! seeking greater efficiency and
effectiveness; most of these basic changes were approved by Congress.
Among them were the plans which, extending social security to some
10 million persons, led to the creation of the Department of Health,
Education, and Welfare. in which Rockefeller was appointed as
Undersecretary. In 1954 he resigned to accept a position as Special
Assistant to the President for Foreign Affairs, in which office he
accompanied President Eisenhower to the Geneva Summit Confer-
ence (1955) and was instrumental in the “Open Skies” proposal for
nerial inspection. He resismed in December of 1955 and again returned
to private life, turning from Cabinet and national security concerns
to one of his earliest interests—local government (he had served for
21 years on the Board of Health of Westchester County). and served
as Chairman of the Board of the Government Affairs Foundation,
concerned with municipal and local administration. Its program was
terminated in 1968.

The Special Studies Project. “America at Mid-Century”. launched
in 1956 with Rockefeller Brothers Fund support, engaged his atten-

1 He was Chairman of the Committee to Reorganize the Defense Department.

21

tion as Chairman from 1956 to 1958, and resulted in six panel reports
(the last in 1959) on foreign policy and defense, education, economic
and social problems, and the quality of American life in general. The
“Prospect for America” study on national and international socio-
economic policies involved Dr. Henry Kissinger of Harvard Uni-
versity as Study Director. While thus engaged in the critical exami-
nation of national and global problems, Rockefeller also devoted time
and energy to his State. In 1956 and again in 1959 he was named
Chairman (first by Governor Harriman and then by legislative
leaders) of the New York State Constitutional Convention Prepara-
tory Commission, which issued 17 volumes analyzing the State’s con-
stitution in relation to present-day needs.

Elected Governor of New York in 1958, he returned to public office
and served for 15 years, being reelected three times. Governor Rocke-
feller has noted 25 areas of legislative action during his tenure, reflect-
ing his leadership and particular concerns: the arts, consumer protec-
tion, criminal justice, drug abuse, economic growth, education,
environmental protection, farm families, health, housing, highway
safety, human rights, labor benefits, local government, a public lottery,
mental health, welfare, veterans’ benefits, transportation, youth, prison
reform, women, parks and recreation, older persons, and off-track bet-
ting. During his administration, Governor Rockefeller directed 82
task forces to the problems and needs of the State. Chairman of the
Human Resources Committee of the National Governors’ Conference,
he was an early advocate of revenue sharing in State and Nation.

In 1964 he was named by President Johnson to the President’s Ad-
visory Committee on Intergovernmental Relations, of which he was
a member until 1968.

In 1969 he was named by President Nixon to head a 21-member
Presidential mission to Latin America encompassing some 3,000 lead-
ing persons in 20 nations. His report, “The Quality of Life in the
Western Hemisphere”, was presented to the President and to Congress
later that year. Also in 1969 Governor Rockefeller made a presenta-
tion to the Executive Branch on “The Fiscal Crisis in the Federal
System”, reflecting his concern with the interdependence of State and
Federal Government, the financial crisis in welfare, health insurance
and education, and the need for block grants (replacing the categorical
grant system).

He was also appointed by President Nixon to membership on the
President’s Advisory Committee on International Intelligence.

In 1973 he was named by President Nixon to be Chairman of the
Commission on Critical Choices for Americans, a bipartisan, broadly
representative body of 42 members, including (ex-officio) the Presi-
dent, the Majority and Minority leaders in both houses of Congress,
and key figures in the Executive Branch. The work of the Commission
is concerned with the quality and direction of American Life as the
Nation enters its third century and the defining of desirable, realistic
goals for 1985 and for 2000. Governor Rockefeller has been appointed
by President Ford to the National Water Quality Commission, whose
members have elected him Chairman. :

He resigned as Governor of New York in 1973. On August 20, 1974,
he was nominated by President Ford to the Office of Vice President
of the United States.



V. FINANCIAL STATUS OF THE NOMINEE

Examination of the fitness of Nelson A. Rockefeller to be Vice
President of the United States posed an unusual task for the nine
Senators comprising the membership of the Senate Committee on
Rules and Administration. Never before in American history had
someone of such unusual wealth, and attendant economic power, been
nominated by a major political party or by the President, under the
terms of the 25th Amendment, for the constitutional office of Vice
President. Although the Committee undertook an extensive investi-
gation, both through staff and agencies in Washington and at numer-
ous field locations, and carried out intensive public hearings, the
Committee’s role of surrogate for the kind of searching, adversarial
examination of the nominee’s wealth and influence which would have
occurred during the heat of a national campaign between the two
major parties, remained unclear. Compounding the problem was the
question of financial disclosure.

Was the Committee setting a higher standard for the nominee than
presently exists for nominees of political parties? Legislation which
would require complete disclosure of a candidate or an elected Federal
officeholder’s personal wealth and sources of income has been pending
for several Congresses; none has yet passed. Moreover, nominees for
President and Vice President are not now required, either by their
political party or by Federal statute, to disclose the nature, magnitude,
and sources of their personal wealth: To this was added the unusual
circumstance of the incumbent. President, like the pending nominee for
Vice President, having been appointed rather than elected. Thus, were
Nelson A. Rockefeller to be confirmed as Vice President, the two high-
est offices in the land would be held by men upon whom no electoral
judgment had been made by thé American people. The Senate Rules
and Administration Committee, both as a Committee and as individual
members, felt keenly this political burden and undértook as searching
an examination of the nominee as the circumstances allowed.

s Masor Issvrs Raisep During THE Pusric Hearines

" The issue of primary importance to the Committee was the size of
the nominee’s personal fortune, and a general estimate and explana-
tion of how this personal fortune, together with that of the nominee’s
family and of institutions identified with the Rockefeller family,
translated into specific economic power both in the United States and

thronghout the world. Chairman Cannon expressed this concern by
asking the nominee : Y

On another subject, the economic power which you and your
family exert directly and indirectly upon the domestic and
International economy in oil, real estate, banks, insurance,
and many other endeavors, gives rise to a question which
must be paramount in the minds of many citizens. That ques-
tion is: How can you conduct yourself in office in a manner

(23)
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that would avoid even the appearance of conflict of interest
when decisions you will be called upon to make cannot help
but influence the profits and losses of one or more of your
holdings?

In addition, Chairman Cannon referred in his opening statement that
same day to “the public policy implications of a nominee whose vast
ﬁnancigl holdings touch many segments of the American economic
system”.

Of equal importance to the Committee was the question of what
would arise were this Rockefeller economic power to be combined
with national political power. Senator Robert C. Byrd expressed his
and other Members’ concern by asking the nominee :

Would the combination of these two—great economic wealth
plus great political power—in your judgment clothe the
office of the Vice Presidency or the Presidency with an in-
ordinate t power, certainly a far greater power than
either of 51':; offices would ordinarily clothe the average oc-
cupant whose financial means is much less than yours?

Another question before the Committee was the perpetuation of the
Rockefeller fortune through foundations, closely held family corpo-
rations, and the device of trusts held for the benefit of future Rocke-
feller generations. Senator James B. Allen questioned the nominee:

On the matter of trusts, how mang more generations will
have to go before they finally distribute it and get into the
hands of the ultimate recipients of the trusts?

WeaLtH oF THE Nominee, His Wire, AND CHILDREN

Governor Rockefeller made full and willing disclosure to the Senate
Rules Committee. His attitude toward his own wealth and economic
influence, at the outset, was one of minimizing its magnitude and
significance. During the course of Committee questioning, however,
and as the nominee and his staff responded to requests for additional
information and detail, his statements to the Committee began to
reflect a deepening understanding on his part to the concerns of
Americans over his and his family’s enormous wealth and the unusual
status 1t accorded their political, economic, and social behavior. This
widening comprehension on Governor Rockefeller’s part was matched
by reports of continuingly larger amounts of personal wealth each
time further disclosure was made. The chart below summarizes the
large increases in reported wealth which occurred with each sub-
sequent disclosure by the nominee :

Submitted Aug. 30, 1974 :

Preliminary estimate of net wortls. o Li-- $33, 040, 826
Submitted in opening statement, . 28, 1974 :

Revised statement of net wontk . L «-- $62, 581, 225

Trust Nowlisale s sy wlicanibe: boa ulioa- i dneis 1086, 272, 184

i DB T TSRS R L L SR S 10, 231, 574

Added during hearing, Sept. 23, 1974 :
Margaretta ¥'. Rockefeller frust 4 :
Trust and holdings of descendants of Nelson A. and Margaretta
F. BockefeHer.. + : : 5

Grand total 183

3, 854, 857
35, 670, 298
218, 610, 138
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The nominee’s estimate of his and his own immediate family’s wealth
thus increased from $33 million to $218 million. This wealth, as out-
lined above, consists of real and personal proi)erty (see Chart 1) owned
outright by the nominee and Mrs. Rockefeller, trusts established by
preceding generations of Rockefellers to which Nelson A. Rockefeller
15 the sole life beneficiary, trusts established by John D. Rockefeller,
Jr. for the children of Nelson A. Rockefeller, and a trust established
by the nominee for Mrs. Rockefeller. p

In fairness to the nominee. it should be noted that his first estimate
of his net worth ($33,040,826) was a preliminary one, supplied rather
quickly at the Committee’s request with many of its assets therefore
necessarily being listed at cost for lack of time to obtain appraisals
for current value. !

In resgonae to a question by Senator Griffin, Governor Rockefeller
explained the change in net’ worth and the inclusion of trusts as
follows:

Senator, I appreciate very much your giving me the oppor-
tunity to makgpthat point. The figure of $33 million was a
figure that was submitted at the request of the Committee by
me, giving net worth which had three differences from the
subsequent figure. They were as follows: I showed $20 mil-
lion in art and real estate as having been pledged, and showed
that as a deduction from net worth in view of the fact that
I pledged it to public use, but it was clearly included. It was
there. That was not mentioned when the material was leaked.
Second, the Committee asked me—we gave the information
immediately that we had, which was in the many instances
cost value appraisals. They asked for updated appraisals.
Therefore, tgat accounted—we got additional appraisals—
that accounted for about $8 million, and then this left about
$1 million of other items in detail. But it was because we got
the material together rapidly. I deducted, thinking that that
was a logical picture, in view of the fact that there were com-
mitments on $20 million of art and real estate, that it was to be
given, publicly committed, and T have now included the art as
part of assets, but then showed it as a pledged gift, and I have
updated the appraisals both on art and real estate.

May I add one other thing? Subsequently, the Committee
asked for additional information relating to the children.
So yesterday we submitted to the Committge, or on Saturday,
we submitted to the Committee information regarding the
children’s holdings, and that was then included this morning
in my remarks in the information that had been given to the
Committee on Saturday, and that involved about $35 million,
together with $3.8 million in trusts for my wife’s benefit dur-
ing her lifetime.

. Now, unfortunately, as these things come out it indicates
that there is a constant shifting of the figures. It is not a con-
stant shifting of the figures. It is giving information
requested.

_ The staff report of the Joint Committee on Internal Revenue Taxa-
tion revised the net worth figure upward from $62,581,225, submitted
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in the September 23 statement, to $73,658,000. These changes are shown
in detail in Chart 1. !

CHART 1

NET WORTH OF NELSON A. AND MARGARETTA F, ROCKEFELLER
Preliminary  Stateme: RS

nt of |
estimate Sept. 23,1974 evaluation
(as (as

Aug, 23 . 23, Aug 31, adj Rts
o U y » ust-
i‘&n)f f'm) 974) ments
o ASSETS

................. $394, 898 $155,000 .

52, =387, 398
713,326 727, 000 413,674
g g he% g
nRp ol

21,803 22,000 “res

"""""" i.'éié""ii,'""666""""2&5.'6"5 ‘

BEik TR

12,600 12,000 =
TRIt ""i'éii’éi-é::::if:éSZ'iéi""ii,'éii'ﬁéﬁz':’-'olé:iéi';ég
rurm:mhm, ..... WL ) roevteeedyeee LI9L38 913 | m, —414, 328
Automolyles, Boati, and aircraft. 2 3:2** -1 o ___LT%0  L767900 ', 768 +100
b e N e N 37, 113, 839 64, 154,238 77, 807, 000 13, 652, 762

LIABILITIES IR e i
i Lo o e L LR PR YT 1, 567, 500 1, 567, 500 1, 530, 000 —37, 500
Accounts payable. 5,513 5,513 42, 000 -+-36, 487
Estimated tax payable 2_ 4500000 .| LTI ) %t LRl s AR
i . it W b -t tnily 357,000 2577, 60
407,013 1,573,013 4 149,000 +2, 575,987
MR Teniaibh g 00,82 62,581,225 73,058,000 411,076,775
; ks

! This column of , Which constitutes the summary detail for the preliminary net worth estimate for Governor and
Mrs. kefeller, was eased from restrictions of conﬁd?ntiallty by the l’Govm'ﬂor ?n December 2, 1974,
n'!. ertsh;t m:hllor statements mortgages on real estate were subtracted from the 8ross asset to show equity valye.

nt shows real t gri iabilities. i
same for each ae thee mell::d :‘state at gross asset value and the mortgages as liabilities. The effect on net worth is the

e taxes were payable in 4 future quarter. Since Mr. Rockefeller is on a cash basis for tax purposes this future liabilit
was deleted from the Sept. 23, 1978, s?atement and from IRS evaluations, y 4

An excerpt from the confidential Joint Committee print that ex-
plains the changes was entereq into the public hearings upon agree-
ent of Chairman Cannon and Mr. Rocke?eller: :

Part II. Estravatrep VALUE oF THE Assers AND
OF THE NoMINEE AnD Hig SPoUsE as or Avausy 31, 1974

Exhibit A indicates that the estimateq excess of the value
of the assets over Liabilities, as of August 81, 1974, of the
lominee and his spouse was $73,658,000 without taking into
account the value of thejr beneﬁ_cial interest§ in trusts, or
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is an estimated value as determined by the staff from different
sources. . . ; B
The securi holdmﬁ: (which are listed on a separa
schedule) aretylargel securities, and to the extt;ng ;l:f
listed were obtained from stock ‘market reports as O]ist'
ust 30, 1974. Two of the corporations included in thl;n thlelg
ﬁold large amounts of real estate in South America. .
cases, valuationis which had been made in 1962 were lupba,sed
by Internal Revenue Service ersonnel in Venezuela P
upon chanlgas in real estate valuations since that time in
i ve 3 . - . . 3
ar&‘a}?en;‘r,r?oun% shown as beneficial interests in trufsttshrep:g_
sents the present value. (computed at 8 percent) o1 : ; i
jected income stream of the income interests involve st
Income stream is based upon the average income distribu
the trusts over the last 6 years. N
fr?l‘nﬁe egt-imated values of the Eagntlngsg):slrgété}v;: itrll'tt23 3:3
porcelain were made for the sta mem s amemal
Revenue Service Art Panel and nternal )
i i the higher valued items
expert appraisers. In this oase, or_xlyl Tiewnyvmed b
were appraised ; other items are include Bt fodty AhaSLYOR
jewelry were appraised by an Internal Reven
::gei: iz tvese aregsl.) The coing represent a recent purchase
fore could be valyed at cost: . - "
an’il‘}tge::ai)?state shown was appraised by different expert:“s’
from the Internal Revenue Service ‘with, in mostfcaies, §Zw
appraisals being made. However, in the case of t d:tes i
et e Sl AR LN S MO
ior appraisals were used. New apprai
lrz)lftlaofrungi};hings included in the statement. In the case g}f m%st
of the remaining assets, the va%]gatlons vgﬁre mz;;lﬁ e;m g:‘m t};
or, in the case of items such as cash, ac
i{::ef::&:fe;c., a cost basis was used. The liabilities are

stated at face or principal amounts.
OwnErsHIP BY THE NoMINeE or His TrUSTS oF O1L STocks

i i in the public’s mind
d Oil Companies are synonymous in t !
Wi%‘lili}itsfiﬁliy name Rgckefelkar.COne 9tfte m:(x:}lr)e a{;&fhgfa r[;(;tz!;t:’tﬁ
conflict of interest was seen by the Committee e e
d to the domestic productio:
and energy, both as the potential relate e i
and distribution of oil and oil derivatives and in ‘
i i iti d the spectre of expro
nationa}l oil, the politics of the Middle East, an By Rx
iati ’ i fineries and producing fie i
priation of Amenpan-ownqd oil re Froml el 5 B
those countries which are oil producers and exp e
ibility of such conflict; the Committee non :
tf(()) lic{:a(galillot esilolldir{gs of the nominee and his immediate fﬁgn}lll); l?:sg
their trusts and identify the percentages of ownership whic
boldings represent. Chart 2 lists those holdings.




28

CHART 2
MAJOR OIL STOCK HOLDINGS OF NELSON A. ROCKEFELLER AND TRUSTS

Personal . Mrs. Total
holdings Descend-  Rocke- number  Percent
RS Trust Trust ants’ feller's of hold-
Company evaluation) No. 1 No. 2 trusts trust shares ings
s ' .
Continentat O Go_______ 3% T o N . R
Exxon Corp..__... 964,231 $20,726,450 $4,371,250 $1,840,969 $141,360 417,015 0.2
Marathon Ol Co. . 210, & - 1Y el 9,728 .
Mobile Oil Corp..... 187,590 .. 89, 429 7, 400 7,687 .015
Pan Ocean Oil Corp o ) W 1 R O SR N e A 7 ")
Standard 0il Co. icallfomla).___ 146, 314 2,134,048 227,850 449,558 . 254
Standard 0il Co. (Indiana). .- .. R e A e > {0 TLO0 .. el 6, 600 118
"I;:xaco.“la ................... o 8 A B i meimd Wa 63, 802 1.000% ! )
nnzo LT S 2SI A ST LA KRR § BT S TR A8 08F .. .
T T s ST SR ol N QR SRR e I o L 21,150 1,200 (0]
Total oil stoék......... 1,946,648 25,782,025 7,821,634 4,244,917 461,562 ... . . ...... e

1 Less than 0.005 percent.

OwNERsHIP BY THE NoMINEE OoR His TrusTs oF LARGE AMOUNTS OF
Stock 1N U.S. aANp ForereN CORPORATIONS

Chart 3 lists 12 corporations in which the nominee or his trusts
own more than $1 million of their stock. Percentages of ownership in
these corporations represented by the respective stock holdings are
also listed. These stock holdings serve to further illustrate the financial
involvement of the nominee in many aspects of American business,
both at home and abroad.

The Committee made no attempt to establish the nature and magni-
tude of the personal wealth of the nominee’s brothers and sister nor
how this wealth in combination serves to enhance the economic in-
fluence of the Rockefeller family. Neither was this information dis-
closed by the nominee, by any other member of the Rockefeller family,
or by any close associate. Also not investigated were the specific hold-
ings and interlocking relationships of foundations, closely held corpo-
rations, university portfolios, banks, and other institutions which
have long been identified with the Rockefeller interests.

CHART 3
OTHER MAJOR STOCK HOLDINGS OF NELSON A. ROCKEFELLER AND TRUSTS

Personal Mrs.
holdi Rocke- Total
(IRS Trust Decendants’  feller’'s  number  Percent
Company evaluation) TrustNo.1 No. 2 trusts trust of shares  holdings
Archer Daniels Midland .. _....._... $985, 568 $337.500 = -5 . 78404 0.523
Caterpillar Tractor Co_. 202, 650 634, 970 051 SEEL y .128
ow Chemical.___.. - 1,031,765 315,900 $175, 149 26,031 .028
Eastman Kodak Co_. - 345,739 1,939,746 . _____ ... 48, . 091
General Electric Co_. Xt 18, 256 267,019 280,275 72,648 . 093
International Basic Economy Corp... , 866 3,660,772 . lien 2 13:803,697 , 47
IBEC Glass 107123 303038000 a7 LIS A f Lol e udaii] 847,839 LRI EERSY, VOO L. .
1BM Corp____. -y 912 3,414,720 .07
Malnar, Ltd__ .. AW 5, 278,925 (
Merck & Co., Inc. 19, 050 !
T R G TR RN .031
Monte Sacro S.A._...... 2,345,341

Rockefeller Center, Inc. ... .. _________
Total other major holdings. ... 11,248,072

1 Indicates companies controlled or owned outright by Mr. Rockefeller or the Rockefeller family.
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Tuat NoMmiNneE axp His Taxes

No subject more directly affects every American than that of taxes.
Federal income taxes, State and local income taxes, State and local
sales taxes, and for the affluent, capital %ams and gift taxes are an
annual accounting which represents sizable percentages of salary and
other income being paid to various tax collection agencies. Governor
Rockefeller’s wealth, and the amount of his annual income, places him
in a category of taxpayer whose returns are usually audited every
year. The Internal Revenue Service is normally 2 or 3 years
behind in their audits of individuals and corporate income tax returns.
In the case of the nominee, audits of his 1969, 1970, and 1971 income
tax returns were in the process of being conducted at the time the
President announced Governor Rockefeller's nomination. At the re-
quest of the Committee, the Internal Revenue Service agreed to ex-
pedite their audit of Mr. Rockefeller’s tax returns for the years 1969,
1970, 1971, 1972, 1973, and the first two quarters of 1974. This was
done; the results of the IRS audit are outlined in summary form
below. (See Chart 4.)

CHART 4
NELSON A. AND MARGARETTA F. ROCKEFELLER—SUMMARY OF TAXES PAID, IRS AUDIT, AND ADJUSTMENTS
1969-73
P AP ) 8 —
As submitted IRS audit ~ Adjustments
o $3,914 401  $4,069,779  $155,378
= T kRN 1 0516 3041 227
Yncome subject to tax. . ’ vees . 819,238 997,348 178,109
o 566, 867 705, 552 138, 685
216, 436 216, 436 N/C
783, 303 921, 988 138, 685
700,977 700, 977 N/C
183, 469 183, 469 N/C

1,667, 749 1,806,434 <138, 685

2,443,703 443,703 N/C
2 662', 636 % 257,281 409, 345

(222,933) 186, 462 409, 395

Federal taxes:
________ 106,18 104,180
g W08 342,008 N/C
W08 ad5188 104,180
28133 248,133 N/C
20560 224,560 N/C
BIa701 918,881 +104,180

Deguction P R wehise
R et Ay oy e ot L3273 L7573 372,003
Fo Lt 99,770 1,176,700 266,930
35,280 35,280 N/C

; 915050 1,211,080 266,930

%'.?;7..‘,?: s Zzﬁgzak 211, 5314 W%
N B e e, 1,439,605 1,706,535  -+266,930

41-217 0 - 74 -3
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CHART 4
NELSON A. AND MARGARETTA F. ROCKEFELLER—SUMMARY OF TAXES PAID, IRS AUDIT, AND ADJUSTMENTS,
1969-73—Continued
‘As submitted IRS audit  Adjustments
—t — 2 H L t P ’ ;1!
Income e
.......................................................... 5,108,773 5,109, 168 605,
CRGUCRONE.. _F.. .. _ > ¢ Ghe 090 een bold ow e wes e 3,773,770 3, 535, 596 238.(174)
-8
Income subjecttotax_____ . .. . ___ ... . ... ., . 1,336,003 1,573, 572 237,569_
Federal taxes:
T T TR e v e S R i 903, 757 1, 067, 099 163, 342
TR e A LU LS R A T LA R N L 69, 591 104, 992 35, 401
Subtotal, Federal____________ SRR LN (5 W VISR "973,388 1,172,001 198, 743
738,9 N/C

SRS, LUl Jo T inirhiiion saiiad . ¥ RS0 738,959 59
siundrbide pite a il Bas £22 o= 330, 228 330, 228 N/C
2,042, 535 2,241,278 -+198, "L

4,810,873 4,818,040 7,167

3,660,088 3,474,835 185, 253
" 1,150,785 1,343,205 192,420

758, 369 905, 950 147,581

410, 8% 450, 487 39, 591

1,169,265 1,356, 437 187,172

629, 348 629, 348 N/C

295,209 295, 209 N/C

2,093,822 2,280,994 187,172
.................................................................................... +-$169, 787
_________________________________________________________________________________ e 7%
...................................................................... +1, 389, 496
come. ... Plen SRR ) R A - g -0 LU FDekin ey 4820, 718
___________________________________________________________________________________ 1474, 993

SURUAVERRE o R s LTIk e T e
et L S S e S AL oA T T
City/town taxes_____ " 7C e Ay S IS - S R T M, LIRSAY N/C
L e e R RN Ay Pl S SRIOVINTY (WUPVLL | SRR, Wpoor . - . T +-895, 711

PRV |

) T A fo ]
lmﬂeronce between IRS reported figure of $80,621 and figure of $74,993 sh in thi
figure of §5,628 for 1974 not included in this computation. . e P S T I THprocant 0 558

. Asindicated, the Federal Internal Revenue Service found additional
income taxes owed the Federal Government by the nominee for each
of the 5 years audited. The amounts of additional taxes ranged from
$104,000 in 1970 for which the nominee initially paid no Federal in-
come taxes to $266,000 for 1971. (The nominee asserted, however, that
this was an unfortunate mistake made by those who manage his two
life-beneficiary trusts.) The IRS determined tax liability for 1970, the
year in which the nominee found no Federal income tax liability, was
caused by an IRS disallowance of $409,395 in deductions to gross tax-
able income by the nominee. This resulted in an IRS determined in-
come subject to tax of $186,462 and Federal income taxes of $104,180.
As released, the IRS audit made adjustments of any magnitude in in-
come for only one of the 5 taxable years being audited. Upon being
informed of the changes determined by IRS in the course of their
audit, changes which provided Mr. Rockefeller with a 5-year addi-
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tional Federal tax liability of $895,711, the nominee effectively waived
administrative apgeal within IRS of this administrative determina-
tion, and submitted payment of $895,711. Of this amount, $820,718 rep-
resented additional Federal income taxes for the 5 taxable years In
question, and $74,993 represented additional Federal gift taxes. Mr.
Rockefeiler, in his prepared statement for the November 13 Ipubhc
hearings, asserted that the IRS adjustments involved four legal ques-
tions and that his tax counsel advised him:

The issues raised involve legal questions on which tax
attorneys can and do differ. el

The treatment on my returns of the items in issue is in
accordance with the law when the returns were filed, as
pointed out to IRS during the audit. ¢

Except for minor items, counsel believes the IRS adjust-
ments should be further contested.

The time limitations on the audit did not allow counsel to
follow the normal course of extensively briefing and discuss-
ing the issues with the IRS auditors nor of taking appeals on
the significant contested issues to hiﬁher levels within the IRS
for discussion with personnel who have settlement authority.

Under the circumstances, while I have agreed to pay the
additional taxes resulting from all of the income tax and gift
tax adjustments made by the IRS, I have the same rights as
any other citizen to appeal any of the adjustments, should I

_decide to do so.

No statement was made by Governor Rockefeller of any intention he
may have of challenging the additional assessments in the U.S. Tax
Court, even though he reserved the right to do so.

CoNCLUSION

The Committee concluded that public disclosure of the financial
status of the nominee, as it is documented in the public historical
record represented by the hearings and report of the Senate Rules and
Administration Committee, would serve to alert both the nominee
and the American people of the Committee’s concern for possible
conflicts of interest and unusual concentration of power represented
by Nelson A. Rockefeller’s nomination to be Vice President of the
United States. No judgment was made by the Committee as to the
existence of any conflict of interest on the basis of sheer wealth alone.
Neither was there any assessment made by the Committee of the
nominee and his taxes. Rather, it was the Committee’s judgment that
public knowledge of the nominee’s holdings would serve to s arpen his
own understanding of the potential conflicts, and would also inform
the nominee of how others in the Senate viewed a constitutional officer
possessing such enormous personal economic affluence.




VI. VIEWS OF THE NOMINEE ON CURRENT ISSUES

ABORTION

Mr. Rockefeller outlined for the Committee his views and record on
the issue of abortion, in response to the request of Senator Pell. Be-
cause of the controversial nature of Mr. Rockefeller’s position on this
issue, his response is included in full.

Mr. RockerFELLER. * * * In 1967 or 1968, because of the
complaints of various groups in our community about this
whole question of the abuse of the then existing law as re-
garding abortion, the illegal abortions, I appointed a Com-
mission to study the whole question. They came up with a
report, which I would be glad to submit for the record,
in which they said they thought the laws should be over-
hauled, and they recommended that abortion be permitted in
the case of rape, abortion be permitted in the case of incest,
abortion be permitted in the case of pregnancy below 16 of
an unmarried person, just to mention three of the items.

I submitted the report to the legislature, and requested
them to study this question, saying I thought that our very
restricted laws should be reconsidered.

The following year I again recommended that action be
considered, and during the following three years after more
evidence was in I actually suggested some provisions, some
amendments, and some legislation.

Up to that point the legislature had done nothing. But my
recommendations were what I would call modest recommenda-
tions. Then the Senate put a bill out on the floor for total
repeal, and I would have to think that the fact that it passed
was quite a shock to the leadership.

The bill then went over' to the Hause, to the Assembly, and
was stalemated. It was tabled, and then brought. back, and
one member of the legislature in a flood of tears shifted his
vote to a favorable vote, and the bill was passed.

Pardon me. I should have said they rewrote the bill. Ex-
cuse me. They rewrote the bill and cut it down some to 24
.weeks. I think it was, with some restrictions about where, and
so forth. It then went back to the Senate and was passed
again.

I have to say that the 24 weeks was a source of concern to
me, the abortion up to 24 weeks after preﬁmncy. However, I
had for three years heen asking for a bill, and perhaps one
can say I got more than I asked for, but I signed it.

Then there was tremendous discussion in our State about
this bill. The Attorney General immediately worked out reg-
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ulations for safe conduct of abortions to prevent sort of fast
buck operations from being set up, and so forth, and abor-
tions could only be conducted under certain supervised
conditions.

I talked to the legislature, prepared a bill to amend the law
to make it 18 weeks, hoping to prevent what has been so dra-
matically set forth as to the character of the present law, and
the danger of so-called liberal abortions. This presented for
the legislators a very difficult problem, because there were
those who supported 24 weeks, there were those who were
oplgosed to it, and the 18 weeks they did not feel made enough
difference, so that the thought of having to go through the
voting just exacerbated the situation and, therefore, it was
their judgment that it was better not to do anything. Let the
situation go for another year.

But in the méantime a bill was proposed which was a re-
pealer. We did not have the bill for the 18 weeks or the 20
weeks. This was a very difficult thing for the legislature,
because for a while the bill was held up in committee. Finally
they let it out on the floor, because they had to. Because of the
fact that it was an election year, and because of the fact it
was a very difficult political situation, and there was a close
vote, and it was going to cause the same difficulties, and so
forth, that it had before, I announced prier to the actual vote
that I would veto the bill if it passed.

But that took a lot of people off the spot, and the bill was
then passed, and I vetoed the repeal.

That is the history of the bill in New York State.

Subsequently the Supreme Court made a ruling, and that
ended the discussion in New York State.

Senator Perv. Is it your view there should be any Federal
intervention on this sugject one way or the other?

Mr. Rockererier. Well, this is the most controversial sub-
ject that in the years I have been in public life I have ever
run across. It arouses the most tremendous emotional tensions
on both sides.

In retrospect ¥ wish that it had been worked out—the 18
weeks—and that I had been more firm with the legislature in
trying to convince them that that was a good thing, but this
was new at the time and it moved in a way that was totally
unexpected to me.

If it does go the route you are taking, it is going to have
the most tremendous traumatic effect throughout the country.
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Supreme Court decision, it will be at the hands of Congress
to pass a resolution to amend the Constitution and then refer
that resolution to the State legislatures for their action. Now,
such an amendment is in the stage of hearings now, in a
subcommittee on which I serve of the Committee on the
Judiciary.

Neither the President nor the Vice President is a part of
that process. The Vice President does not even have an oppor-
tunity to break a tie that might arise in the Senate as a result
of that resolution coming before it.

So T would suggest that inasmuch as the Vice President
does not have any part in that issue, that it would be well for
us to take note of what he did as governor of New York, to
be sure, but also to consider his confirmation on the basis of
his entire record, the sum total of all of his qualifications—
and not simply upon any single issue.

Public witnesses testified before the Committee both in support of,
and opposition to, Mr. Rockefeller’s position on abortion. Opposition
was expressed by Mr. Edward Golden, Director of the National Right
to Life Committee ; Dr. Ada Ryan, President of New York State Doc-
tors and Nurses Against Abortion; Professor Charles E. Rice, Na-
tional Adviser for the United States Coalition for Life; and the
Reverend Kenneth E. Lee, President of the Washington Christian
Action Council. Testifying in favor of Mr. Rockefeller’s stand on
abortion were the Honorable Constance E. Cook, Member of the New
York State Assembly, who represented the New York Religious Coali-
tion for iAbortion Rights; and Ms. Carol Burris, President of Women’s
Lobby, Inc.

A dialogue developed between Professor Rice and Members of the
Committee regarding the issue of whether or not a vote to confirm
Mr. Rockefeller as Vice President should be, or would be considered, a
vote to endorse his views on abortion. Professor Rice believed so; the
Chairman and Senators Griffin, Allen, and Williams disagreed.

Areas To Cur Back 1x F'EDERAL SPENDING

Senator HatrFieLp. * * * Would you designate the area
where you would cut back in Federal spending, and say human
resources, social area, welfare area, education area, as over
and against, say, the Department of Defense bu(iget and
military expenditures?

Mr. RocrererLEr. I do not think any area would be exempt
from total scrutiny to see whether the activities now being

Senator Hruska pointed out later in the hearings that while it is
of interest to review Mr. Rockefeller’s actions on abortion as Governor
of the State of New York, any changes in national policy toward
abortion as established in 1972 by the Supreme Court would have to
be made by the Congress, as a constitutional amendment, and the
President and Vice President have no part in that process.

Senator Hruska. * * * The Supreme Court has ruled on
the abortion issue. If there is going to be any change in that

-

conducted are top priority, whether it is in Defense or else-
where, and I have to say in fairness to the Defense Depart-
ment that as Governor, I came down here and fought in the
Executive Branch and the Congress to preserve this base or
that shipyard, even though I had to assume that from what
the military said, they did not need it.

But politically, T am embarrassed, but I have participated
in that kind of activity.
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Senator HatrieLp. You would then support military cut-
back if it is in some proportion to the other cutbacks in the
overall budget ?

Mr. RockerFELLER. Proportion to me is not as important as
to what the potential impact is.

Bavancep BupeeTr
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pounding of funds, it seems to me, if my memory is correct,
the Congress had voted—authorized appropriations in sums
larger than the estimated revenues. These could only be met
by either increasing taxes, increasing the debt ceiling, or
cutting expenditures.

At that time I do not think anyone was very excited about
increasing taxes. The debt ceiling was not raised. And as the

appropriations stood, I supported the fact that he did nhot
spend all the money which had been authorized because I
did not see how he could without further feeding inflation.

So I stand in a position of supporting holding down ex-
penditures at this time.

Mr. Rockefeller was questioned on two occasions as to his views on
the desirability of a balanced budget. First, Senator Hatfield was in-
terested in Rockefeller’s opinion in light of his experience as a Gover-
nor who was forced to raise taxes in order to balance the budget.

Senator Hatrierp. In light of the suggestions now being

made by some economists to halt the problems of inflation
that we should increase taxes, would you care to delineate be-
tween the motivation of increasing taxes as Governor of New
York, which T assume was for the purpose of balancing the
budget, and providing the needed services of the State, and
the use of tax increases to halt inflation, and what are your
views on that?

This is contrary to what, Mr. Chairman, you said about
my record in the State, and I think we are in a different
period, and I think the same is true for the State, that this
is a period to do what is basically essential, but to postpone
some of the things which are desirable, but which just con-
tinue to feed inflation.

Senator Allen at a later point in the confirmation hearings inquired
what former Governor Rockefeller would recommend to balance the
budget in fiscal 1976.

Mr. RockereLLer. Well, inflation, as I see it today, is not a
typical or a traditional inflation in this country. Inflation to-

day importantly relates to two international developments;
one being the OPEC countries, the Arab countries, and their
colleagues, increasing 400 percent the price of petroleum prod-
ucts, and secondly the shortfall on food supply in the world.

Even though the United States has increased in the most
dramatic way production of food, this was at a time when
there were droughts and short production in many key areas
of Asia and Africa and Latin America, and at the same time
that Europe and Japan’s standard of living was going up,
and at the same time that population was going up, so we
were faced with a situation when the Soviets moved in to
buy those large quantities of grain, that that just triggered
a tremendous push in the price of grains, and then that was
reflected back.

So we have two new situations which are complicating in
relation to the domestic situation, and I think will continue
to be a complicating factor. I think there are ways these
can be dealt with, but it is not simple. There is no one simple
answer.

Secondly, the more traditional aspects of inflation, namely
spending large amounts by government, and the borrowing
of money, deficit financing, the Keynesian theory, to stimulate
economy has been useful I think in periods of low employ-
ment, or high unemployment.

_But now we have this strange combination of inflation and
high unemployment, so now traditional methods of expendi-
tures do not work.

I have advocated for some time, as a matter of fact, I sup-

orted President Nixon in his effort, to bring the Federal

udget into balance last year. The discussion about the im-

Senator ArLLen. Governor Rockefeller, in the last 6 years
the national debt has been increased by upward of $100 bil-
lion. We have had a balanced budget only about three times,
I believe, in the last 30 years. It is almost a thing of the past.

The interest that the Government pays on the increase in
the bond indebtedness of the Nation during the last 6 years
run to about $8 billion a year and the interest on the entire
national debt, the debt limit, now is $495 billion. We will be
up to that in about February of next year. It could run pos-
sibly $28 billion to $30 billion a year in interest alone.

The President has pledged to give the Nation, with the
cooperation of Congress, a balanced budget in the fiscal year
1976 which, of course, would start July 1,1975.

Would it be your purpose to cooperate with the President
in seeing that the Federal budget is balanced in the fiscal
year 1976 ¢

Mr. ROCKEFELLER. Y es, Sir.

Senator ArLex. Well, now, how would you recommend
that be accomplished ¢

By the wav, I notice you did not list as one of the formulae
in an antiinflation program the balancing of the budget.

Mr. RockereLLEr. I would do that.

Senator ALLEN. You feel that is necessary ?

Mr. RockEFELLER. At the present time I really feel it is.

Senator ArLeEn. How would you approach the problem of
balancing the budget ? Would you cut expenditures or would
you increase revenues through additional taxes?

Mr. RockereLLer. Well, T think at this point. and I might
say as a backdron, Senator, that for 15 years T have had to
present a balanced budget each year to the legislature because
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in our State you cannot run a deficit. You have to have a bal-
anced budget. You have to come in with the source of revenue
when you come in with the budget. It is a good discipline.

So that, I would think that under the present circumstances
with the percentages already mentioned here of 33 percent,
35 percent of gross national product going into government
with the need to have more capital in production and to in-
crease the efficiency of production so we get greater pro-
ductivilt;{ and cost.

I would think the balancing of the budget by cutting and
holding down expenses, difficult as it is, that it can be done.
We had to do it. It is a very difficult thing. ;

Senator ArLen. Can you suggest various ways in which a
cu;faan:)e made? 3 B

r. RocKEFELLER. I think eve artment, every A genc
has to do two things: Jpre brti At

One, review its program to see if the program is still
needed in terms of the changing conditions and if it is not,
cut it off, examine to see whether the program could be oper-
ated more efficiently and, I think that there must be a more
efficient way than we are now doing between Federal, State,
and local governments.

Senator ArreN. Well, do many Federal bureaucrats come
in and say it would be well to dispense with the programs
that they are managing. Did you ever see that happen? Or
State bureaucrats for that matter.

Mr. RockrrFELLER. No, sir. That is not the No. 1 character-
istic. That comes way down the line and has to be encouraged
and the tough part is really for the elected officials and their
designated appointed officials and this is a very difficult thing.

As I said, we let over 11,000 people go and that was one of
the most traumatic experiences and while the legislature was
enthusiastic about it in principle, after we let them go then I
got all the people back that said you let the wrong people
go—that came out of their district.

It is a very tough thing, but I think we have to face the
hard realities. Then, I think, we have to review new pro-
grams, lots of new ideas and those have to be considered very
carefully to see if they can be postponed or not.

I would like to mention one more thing, Senator Allen, if
I might, in connection with this. It is not only direct Federal
expenditures but*in the laws that are written by the Congress,
signed by the President, there are mandated expenditures by
local government and State government to match these, so
that there is a secondary factor that you forced a local govern-
ment to spend more money. That needs to be reviewe: , plus
the fact 1n the whole series of legislative acts now, man-
dated expenses on private enterprise in relation to safety, in
relation to ecology, and so forth.

I think we have to reexamine those because there are many
industries now paying up to 33 percent capital costs for one
or another of these very important programs. But, I think
we have to say we can postpone for a period certain steps
that are being taken.
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Busing oF ScHOOL CHILDREN TO ACHIEVE RaciAL BALANCE

Mr. Rockefeller’s views on busing were considered at some length by
Senator Allen:

Senator ALLEN. I do want to get to the subject of the matter
of forced busing of school children. . :

Now, Mr. Ford, when he was before the committee in con-
nection with his nomination as Vice President stated very
emphatically that he was opposed to any forced busing of
school childyren for the purpose of creating a racial balance
and T recall that you have testified that you would try to
reach agreement with the President on national policies and
that if there was not some difference on a matter of funda-
mental principle that you would go along with his views,

Does your view correspond with the President on this sub-
ject or if not, is it of such_a nature that you would be willing
to conform your views to the President’s views? : _

Mr. RockereLLEr, The best way to answer that is to give
you brieﬁ¥ the record in the State of New York.

A very large percent'a%:a of children are bused anyhow be-
cause we have central schools, particularly in, the rural and
suburban areas, and so the children will come to school by
bus anyhow. So busing for quality education isa tradition that
has been with us for a long time. Our State has a policy of
maximizing integration feeling it was a useful thing in the
total education of both black and white and other groups. We
have run into a great deal of difficulty in suburban areas and
in some of the city areas on this subject—a great deal of oppo-
sition. There was a bill passed in the legislature a number of
years ago which limited the use of busing for integration to
local option. In other words, the local school board had to
conform to the State provisions. I signed that bill.

That bill was then held unconstitutional by the courts as
not being in accordance with the interpretation of the Fed-
eral Constitution. A similar bill was passed the next year and
because it was unconstitutional I vetoed it. i

But I am very aware of the tremendous trauma th?.t: 1s
caused by the subject both in white and black communities.
I think t{\at we are in a transition period. I think that it has
been very useful in some areas and has caused tremendous
hardship in others and therefore I would think that we have
to handle this with great discretion, great delicacy as far as
the Nation is concerned. 0

Senator Avren. But on the matter of forced busing for
racial balance you would have no difficulty going along with
the President’s views on that?

Mr. RockereLLer. I think that I would conform. I don’t
think that I—the answer is yes, I would conform to his politi-
cal position, if that is his position. I have not talked to him
about the issue. (

Senator ALLEN. Again, in your statement—I think I under-
stood correctly—when you said there in New York you had
sought to maximize integration. I believe the record will
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show that far from maximizing integration there is actuall

more segregation in New York than there was several yearg
ago. I mean segregation, according to reports of the school
board, has been increasing in New York rather than de-

“Mir. oo
Iélr. - inmm.ng That’s correct.

Senator ALLEN. So actually there hasn’t i-

mlf{mgﬁgcmtegration. y asn’t been much maxi

v KEFELLER. We sought to and that was the policy of
the Board of Regents which established the policy. %Ve h);ge
an independent Board of Regents and they establish the
policy separate from the Governor and the difficulty is that
under the present provisions of the law you cannot bus
children from the city across city lines to county lines so that
when you have large areas of black population in the city and
:htargro;:er:: ff wzlﬁte populatlorlnlad] oining in a county, under

aw they are not allo to

- r'lt‘;}g a.c;oss b line)j wed to bus them back and

. Therefore, it is extremely difficult to integrate them in the
;%d});c‘l;lm .you may have a whole borough that is almost

.Now we ran into a very interesting situation where I h
wsntatl.ons, from the leaders of the Haﬁ-lem commx;li?;;esayigd
they didn’t want integration. They wanted to have an aﬁ
black school in Harlem. They wanted to have the identity of
community and so forth. So we got a very complex series of
crosscurrents plus the living habits which means we have hu
:;':tasat])lfyqolld blg}.():lk _cog;lmumties so that to get integration is

; impossible in those ci j i -

tleg, el city areas adjacent to white coun
enator ALren. It looks like then by State law

! v you have

f}:}r:;le .1t to where you can’t have a great deal of integration

Mr. RockereLier. In those i

IS)O;m:Z»or AL?EN. Tesoir. areas, you are correct, sir.

Jon’t you feel though that we ought to have a uniform
¥011cy_ for desegrpg?.tmg the public schools in the country?
s it right and fair in my section of the country down South
to require busing of students from one end of the city to an-
other and from one end of the county to another to achieve a
racial balance where that’s not done in other sections of the
country and I might even say particularly in New York an
the other large cities of the country. Is that fair? :

]ézfr. RocrereLLER. Seems like a lot of logic to your position.

_enaétor AvrpLenN. So do you feel we ought to have a uniform
policy # In other words, what’s good for one section of the
country ought to be good for another. Would you go along
with that view on a uniform national policy ?

Mr. RockereLier. Well, the uniform national policy may
be more difficult than local home rule option. In other words
what our legislature was striking for was trying to allow a
community to determine whether they wanted it or not. Some

41

communities do want it and it has been very successful in
many areas.

And I think—I went to an integrated school myself, and I
think it has very real value, providing the quality of educa-
tion is preserved. But a quality education and this other ques-
tion, preparation for life—of course, we had a very interesting
experience where we had integration in our colleges, State
university, and integration of dormitories, but the black stu-
dents don’t want to%‘e in integrated dormitories. They want
to be in black dormitories.

Senator ALreN. That’s the situation we have in many cases
down South. But despite the wish of the black communi-
ties they are forced to bus their students in order to achieve a
racial balance.

Now if that’s required in one section of the country it is not
illogical that it be required throughout the country, is it, or
vice versa ?

Mr. RockerFELLER. I accept what you say. I accept what you
say.

5 CaprraL PUNISHMENT

Senator Allen inquired briefly into Mr. Rockefeller’s views on capi-
tal punishment:

Senator ALLen. * * * Governor Rockefeller, what is your
attitude about capital punishment as a deterrent to crime and
the need for restoration of the death penalty?

Mr. RockereLier. I never advocated when I was Governor
the abolition of capital punishment.

The legislature passed the bill to abolish capital punish-
ment except for the murder of a policeman premeditated or
the murder of a prison guard premeditated. The sentiment at
that time was strongly in favor of this and I signed the bill.
T have advocated the inclusion of other areas since then for
the use of capital punishment as a deterrent.

The reason I signed the bill in the first place was I made a
very careful survey of States that had capital punishment
and that did not. It was very hard to see a marked difference
in the crime rates in those two categories of States.

Senator ALLEN. Well, do you feel there are some crimes so
heinous that capital gunrshr{xe:nlt is the only proper penalty

. that can be meted out

Mr. Rockererrer. Well, T have always thought of capital
punishmerit as being used for the purpose of deterrent to the
crime and that was my basis for the support of capital punish-
ment in the areas that were left and for the inclusion of cer-
tain other areas subsequently. Where it is a deterrent, I think,
it should be used.

Senator ALLEN. What other areas would you suggest ?

Mr. RockerrLiEr. There was an extension. We extended
the capital punishment and I discussed the possibility of
using it in connection with pushers of hard drugs. The law
that I finally got involved life sentence for any pusher and
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that was as far as the legislature felt they should go. But, I
think one has to use that criteria of deterrence as ing the
basis for a decision. At least, that was my basis for decision.

CIA INTERVENTION IN INTERNAL Arrams or OtHER NaTIONS

Mr. Rockefeller was questioned about his views on Central Intellj-
gence Agency intervention in the internal affairs of other nations such
as Chile. He declined to express an opinion on the merits or demerits
of any particular action, but he did volunteer his opinion that the
United States must be realistic about defending its national interests.

Senator Hatrierp. * * * You have long been considered
an expert in Latin American affairs, whicl% you indicated in
g;:)ulg g?)stlmony you headed up a mission for President Nixon

Do you believe ‘that Central Intelligence Ageney should
ever actively participate in internal aggirs of another sov-
ere;{gn eountry such as in the case of Chile?

r. RockereLier. The U.S. Government has under its
present laws since 1948, when the Defense—whatever the Act
was called—President Truman proposed, has a wide range of
powers relating to the defense of the United States through
intelligence, counter-intelligence and covert activities.

These are all activities wﬁch are in between or lead up to
perhaps diplomatic protest and war.

Now, I do not pretend to get into the merits or demerits
of any particular action, and I do not think it is appropriate
for discussion by me in public.

I have to say that those covert activities conducted by the
Central Intelligence have been reported annually with appro-
priations, along with the appropriations to the agency, to two
subcommittees 1n each House. And so it is not as though some-
thing was done that nobody knew about, that whatever activ-
lties were undertaken were undertaken with the approval of
the top administrators in the Government representing our
national defense.

I assume they were done in the best national interest and
that the procedures with Congress were procedures that were
established by the Congress.

Now, that 1s since 1948. I think the flexibility of the present
potential actions by our Government are important in the
event of some unforeseen circumstanee. Therefore, I would

uestion whether the potentiality of activity should be

e iinixﬁalzted.
think it would be a mistake. How the i
what is done is a matter for judgment. Tim8 SRdhchiag

Senator Harrierp. In light of the Articles of Caracas in
1954, consultation of foreign ministers in 1967 , Article Nos.
18 and 19 of the OAS Charter, the Articles of the declarations
on the United Nations, ?r.ou feel that this kind of covert activ-
ity is contributory in light of those commitments and the
statements made in those various declarations?
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Mr. RockereLLER. Well, Senator——

Senator Harrrerp. Based on 1948.

Mr. RockereLLER. Senator, I understand what you are
saying.

I}[7 lggughl; a book of probably the greatest authority on the
Art of War in history, written by Mr. Sun Tzu. It is the au-
thoritative book in terms of strategy from what I am told.

So it says in the book, edited by B. H. Liddell Hart of Ox-
ford, one of the recognized authorities, and the book prob-
ably is one of the most influential books in both the Chinese
and Soviet international military operations. There is a whole
chapter on the employment of secret agents. This is 2,500 years

ago.
gf really believe there is a gray world that exists among
nations; that sad and tragic as it is, it is there. I think that
this country has done as well, if not better, than any other
country in trying to conduct its affairs on an open friendly
basis with other nations. .
But I think the Congress and the Executive and the nations
recognize that there are these gray areas and that we have to
defend our national security.

Mr. Rockefeller was further questioned as to whether or not the
President’s Fore_iﬁelntelligence Advisory Committee, of which he
is a member, had

n consulted about CIA activities in Chile.

Senator PeLrL. Another question here. As I understood, you
stated that you had been named to be a member of the Presi-
dent’s Foreign Intelligence Advisory Committee some years
ago that was set up some years ago following the Bay of Pigs.
Is that a correct recollection on my part? ]

Mr. RockereriEr. That is correct, by President Nixon in
his first year in office.

The committee had been in effect since President Kennedy
established the committee after the Bay of Pigs.

Senator PeLr. Are you still a member of that committee ?

Mr. RockertLiEr. T am, sir.

Senator PeLL. Was that committee consulted in connection
with the decision to use the CIA and other means to destabi-
lize the Allende government in Chile?

Mr. RockKEFELLER. It was not, sir, but T have to just for the
matter—just for the sake of the record, the word “destabiliza-
tion” was never used by the CIA. That was the word that was
used by the Member of Congress who transmitted the letter
to the—I think it was the Chairman, which he introduced
but which had not been used. That had not been described
as the objective of the CTA.

Senator PeLr. What do you think would be a better word
to describe the activity, objective of the CIA ¢

Mr. RoCKEFELLER. Not iaving been in on the hearings be-
fore the Committee of Congress when this was presented,
not being familiar with the program that was carried out, 1
could not say, but I did ask the head of CIA whether they
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had used the word ‘“destabilize,” w}llxich to me was a vel:'y EpucaTioN
unusual word to use for an action they were going to take, X ; :

i : 2 In responding to queries about his record as Governor of the State
ﬁ;(,ll lﬁ:;{{g:gfo éotl?ge;: A of New g%rk, Mr. Rockefeller referred to progress in education dur-

ing his terms of office.

Mr. RookerFELLER. * * * The State Universities went from
38,000 students to 235,000 full time students in 72 campuses.

This is giving opportunity to all of our citizens, plus the
City University so they have a chance to prepare themselves
so that they can participate in this economy and earn food
for their families and themselves. ]

Following a question by Senator Cook pertaining to revenue shar-
ing, the nominee supported the conc¢ept of converting categorical
you would have in normal routine conduct of your responsi- grants into block grants and explained how this could benefit

bilities under six various Presidents, have you had relation- education,

ships with the CIA in relation to any covert activity in Latin . Mr. RockErELLER. * * * If the Congress were to put those
America ? into block grants for primary-secondary education, for

I only mention that, but I was not familiar with the action.

In additional questioning, Committee members sought to determine
if the CIA had ever utilized any of the Rockefeller business interests
in Latin America for political activity.

Senator Hatrrern. Governor, has the CIA ever utilized
any of the Rockefeller business interests in Latin America
for political activity ¢

r. RockEFELLER. Not to my knowledge, sir.
Senator Harrrerp. Outside of your official contacts that

Mr. RockEerFeLLER. Yes, sir. higher education for certain areas, and would remove the

tremendous complexit§ and restrictions and all the match-
ing fund provisions, I think that that would answer the
point that fwas trying to make.

Senator Cooxk. I would like to interrupt you at this stage
of the proceedings because the next part of that question was,
if it is imperative that revenue sharing be continued, which
this Senator believes it should, then do you not believe that
what you are really talking about is moving in the direction of
an education revenue sharing program to match the success we
have had in two communities, two States, two local govern-
ments ?

er. RockereLLEr. Very definitely, Senator. Very defi-
nitely.

Senator Harrrerp. Would you care to share with the Com-
mittee—

Mr. RockerFeLLER. Did you say outside pfo—

Senator Harrrern, Outside—

Mr. RockereLLER. Not outside, inside. Not outside.

Senator Hatrrep. Let me restate it for the record to make
sure we have clarification.

The only contacts you have ever had with the CIA have
been through official responsibilities that you were executing
as appointments under a President ¢

Mr. RockereLLEr. Exactly.

Senator Harrrerp. You had none whatsoever, or to your
knowledge, with any of the business interests of your family ¢

Based on his experience as Governor, Mr. Rockefeller implied that
there might be some practical reasons to suppart the idea of having
a Department of Education and Culture, separate from the Depart-
ment of Health, Education, and Welfare.

Mr. RockereLLer. Contact with the CIA ¢ No, sir.

Senator HatrreLp. Are you aware of any members of your
family, or business interests of your family, who have had
relationships with the CTA ¢

Mr. RocrereLLER. No, sir.

_ Senator Hatrrerp. Brothers or representatives of corpora-
tions or foundations, or any of the other of these agencies or
instrumentalities that bear the Rockefeller interest or
name?

Mr. RockereLLER. T have a cousin who worked for them at
one point.

Senator Hatrrerp. I am talking now about any of the
activities, particularly in Latin American covert activities of
the CIA.

Mr. RockerFeLLer. I had a member of my family, not the
Rockefeller family, the Aldrich family, who actually worked
for them. But I assume that is not what you are covering.

Senator PeLL. * * * Governor, you have taken a very lead-
ing role in your State in education and in the arts. Some of
us in the Congress would be very interested in your views,
particularly in the arts.

What would be your reaction to some day having a sep-
arate Department of Education and Culture spun off from
HEW and including the present endowments for the arts
and humanities and the various other cultural activities?

Mr. RockEereLLer, Well, interestingly enough, Senator, our
experience in New York was that culture in the border re-
gions was a stepchild. Historic activities and sites were there.

For the simple reason that the pressure groups in educa-
cation are so great that whatever dollars are available they
want them for the schools and therefore we set this up as

41-2170-74 - 4
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The oil in the clay in the South, in the Tennessee area,
represents almost an equal amount of oil to the entire known
Arab reserves. it

We have—I will not say unlimited, because nothing is un-

limited—tremendous quentities of coal, deep coal, surface
coal,some dirty, some clean. { :
. The extraction of the coal and the extraction of the oil
from these sands and clay can be done by surface mining or
it can be done possibly in what is known as in situ. In other
words—if you drill down into the shale, put off an explosion
and set it on fire, put in water, you can bring up gas, because
it takes its natural form, and then you have the capacity to
meet, that need by then putting it back into the state of
oil. * % %

So I say that we have the resources, we have the tech-
nology, and we have the capacity, the organizing genius
as Americans. {991

The question is do we have clear objectives as to what we
want to accomplish? Have we organized or can we organize
ourselves to meet those governmentally in terms of polic;
objectives, governmentally in terms of creati a framewor.
within which private initiative can function with its creative,
dynamic, driving force, and meeting the standards of govern-
ment but not so encumbered with the red tape of bureaucracy ¢
I think one of the dangers we face, is that we may lose that
unique capacity which has been America’s strength, namely,
this capacity to meet new situations. "

So I say to you, sir, in my opinion we can reconcile these
differences and by 1985 we can meet our own needs from our
own sources, protect and improve our environment, and do it
within the framework of prices which now exist. {

This is a goal that has not been set. It is a higher goa
in terms of objectives than has been discussed, but I thml:i
from our national point of view, that this is the kind of broa
planning, broad-range thinking we have got to come to as a
nation if we want to preserve our role of leadership as a
nation concerned regarding human dignity, regarding frefe-
dom in the world. We have got to be in a position to be safe,
secure ourselves, and at the same time have the capacity to
work with and help our neighbors. ; .

And this is true in food; this is true in raw ma.terlals.h

Science and technology are moving so rapidly. They have
got to have morpsnpport from government. e

We have got to have objectives so we put the emphasis,

But when President Kennedy said, “This Nation is going
to the moon by such and such a date,” he electrified the Nation.
He mobilized our capacities—and we did it. o

Now, it was a lot more difficult to go to the moon in the
time that he said than it is to meet these problems of energy
and to determine the mix and to determine the saving.

We can save energy that would almost cut down on the
amount we are importing now if we set our mind to it.
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Now, the President has taken important first steps, * * *
But I thi y 8ir, in energy, the right mix, dependir_lg on

young people a sense of purpose and involvement, and mo-
bilize our resources and use them effectively, and that it could
conceivably work toward the creation of a common purpose
with other nations of the world in a common effort for the
benefit of mankind.

So I happen to feel optimistic and excited about the poten-
tial of the future with the peculiar genius that Americang
have in their freedom and in their individual initiative and
creativity.

Senator Byrd asked for the views of the nominee on whether or not
the gasoline shortage of early 1974 was contrived by the large oil com-
banies, and Mr. Rockefelley replied in the negative,

Mr. Rockerprizg, * * * I do not think there were any
willful shortages created. I think the price was increased be-
cause on the basis of new Middle East prices; replacement
costs are going to be g lot higher.

ey have to have the capital in order to make the invegt-
ments for new production to supply their customers, and I
said Yesterday tﬁat I thought there s ould be an excess profits
tax on CNergy companies; that is o] companies and cogl so
that the money they invested to increase production needed
to meet our demands in this country would be subject to regu-
Iar taxes and if they did not uge it for that purpose, then they
should be subject to an excess profits tax.
enator Byro. So based on my definition I take it that you
~do not feel that there was any such action on the part of the
oil companies
r. ROCKEFELLER, Not in relation to the creation of short-
ages, but the Price structure was set based on replacement,
This is an over-sim plification.

Senator Byrd also asked Mr. Rockefeller if he thought the present oil
depletion allowance should be increased or decreased.

Mr. RocKEFELLER, * * * In my judgment there have got
to be methods of accumulating capital to invest in new pro-
duction, Whether it is depletion or some other incentive or
some other source T do not. think makes much difference, but
I think it is essentia] that the country recognize our national
interest and shape its tax structure and incentives in such 2
way as to result in accumulating the capital to put in,
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Now, there are only two sources of capital. One is individ-
he other is corporations. VY138
uui?oa:v),d tflee(gov:rnmentp(;n tax the mdn;l}(}uals gtrlcll the cor-
i d the Government can invest the capital.
poé:rt:;:(l;algm. Then I am left to believe that youe do not
favor a further reduction in the depletion allowance ! 3 :
Mr. RoCKEFELLER. Well, if they changed the depletion al-
lowance then there has to be some other provision to permit
the accumulation of capital.

k asked if the nominee would encourage cooperation
betsv?'z:!&o ghecz)orivate sector and Government on energy r%et]ilr(_:hdand
development. Mr. Rockefeller agreed that most of this research is ldml;:
by private contractors and that the information developed shou
declassified, in order to accelerate the research process. 4 rT-

In response to a query from the Chairman, Mr. Rockefeller en to ot
his position, as previously stated, that consumers can l;e protec e11
from profiteering by the oil companieg by a system o taz;mg ae_
energy company organizations that are not used for exp%gl;e 1on;r Iix )
search, development, reﬁneries,_ transportation, and marke ltngi)rin
Chairman then asked what action the nominee would ltla e to 4
down the cost to the consumer of gas and oil. Mr. Rockefeller sugges
developing new sources of energy, and also said :

KEFELLER. I do not think there is any way of bring-
ingMg'oxcprices in this period of short supply because ::;u'
imports are inc¢reasing, as I pointed out, from 27 percen tho
35 percent in a year, and our production of oil anc}l1 gas mﬁ 3
country is peaked out and is now going down so that wg xrll d
ourselves in a verybdii;iculctl; l:slltu(zinzlon in this country and o

i e faced head on.
thﬁ {ht:l élfvgl?}?rfl:nt puts on price control and a large amount
of the oil comes from overseas, then there is a dlﬂiculth§1t;11a-
tion there because maybe it goes somewhere else where higher
prices are paid. This is a very complex situation.

Execurve PriviLege AND SEPARATION OoF PowERs

i i i few years,
the context of problems which have arisen in the last
Mx{n Ro:k:geller wasI;sked to discuss his views of separation of powers
between the Federal legislative and executive branches,

! LLER. * * * [T,]et me go to the situation itself,
na?nI(Ia'hB S}?ﬁ:ﬂ,tionship bet\[vien the executive and the legis-
ive | of Government. )
la?‘i?agleaﬁg}&e:remendous respect all my life for the legisla-
tive branch of Government, and in our State, at least, the co-
equal responsibility of the two branches, feeling that in ordpri

best represent the interests of the people, it was essex}tlxa
the two branches get together and be involved in the legisla-
tion and be involved in the program.

; fell ded to describe the processes he followed as
Gt?\f:mlggcgveo:ki;rgp;(i)gﬁe the leadership of the State legislature. He
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stated that he had an ongoing discussion, informally, with the leader-
ship in order to get their views and to fgo over legislation in detail so
there would be no misunderstanding of concept or of semantics. This
procedure was followed also during the periods when the opposition
party was in control of one or more houses of the legislature. He went
on to describe a change in that procedure which he felt was beneficial.

* * * [Bly the time I gave a message to the legislature, I
was already aware of the general outline of the leaders’ posi-
tions. They were aware of mine.

I had accommodated points that they might have, and
then in the preparation of the legislation I also worked with
them so that the details of the language would not be in con-
flict of objectives which they had in terms of their own feel-
ings as to what should be accomplished.

ree years ago, the legislature decided they wanted to
bring the committee chairmen in, not just the leaders, but the
committee chairmen, so that was fine with me.

We met with the committee chairmen for breakfast, and
went through the same procedure at another level, and came
out the same way.

Now, what we did, I think, was we achieved constructive
legislation for the people. It appeared that I was dominat-
ing but, in actual fact, that was the furthest from the truth.
And, as you know, there is nothing a legislature likes less
than to have a Governor who is arbitrary and executive and
dictatorial.

I was not. I sought their eooperation. I sought to accom-
modate and sought to work with them.

Senator Byrd introduced the subject of executive privilege, noting
that the Supreme Court had held that there was some constitutional
justification for the doctrine with regard to military and diplomatic
and national security secrets. He pointed out that the Supreme Court
also had held that the doctrine was not absolute. The Senator put the
question of executive privilege to the nominee.

Senator Roerr C. Byro. Time and time again during the
past 2 years the Congress felt the sting of executive privilege
when it sought to secure information from White House
aides and other people within the administration to aid in
developing legislation, to aid it in the nominations process,
and to aid it in the investigative process.

* * * * * * *

As Vice President, of course, you would not be subject to
respond to these questions because you would not be in a posi-
tion to apply them.

But, as we have seen, many things are uncertain. In the
event you became President would you invoke the doctrine
of executive privilege to prevent White House aides or other
members of the administration from appearing before con-
gressional committees at the request of those committees in
their pursuit of information on which to base Tegislation or
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on which to determine the judgment of the Senate with respect
to the confirmation of nominations or with respect to the
carrying out of the investigative process all of which are
constitutional functions of the Congress ¢ ;

Mr. RockereLLer. Senator, I think the abuse of executive
privilege can be one of the most serious detriments to the
effective functioning of democracy that we have. On the other
hand, I think executive privilege is a concept, I guess, as
established by the Founding Fathers, that needs to be in cer-
tain areas, as you have stated, where there is the opportunity
for discussion within their executive branch, as I suppose this
is true within the legislative branch, mueh where there are
confidential discussions. This is information they want to
keep confidential. y

Therefore, it is very hard and I guess that is why the Su-

reme Court did not make a definitive statement themselves.
t is very hard to make a sharp delineation of this. :

But the most fundamental thing is, that I totally agree with
you, on not abusing executive privilege and that as Governor
of the State I used it virtually not at all. I remember that
some sitins in the office in New York and I went down and
testified down at Foley Square about the process. I didn’t
need to do it. So, I understand what you are saying.

When I was Coordinator of Amerjcan Affairs I worked for
President Roosevelt in the White House, but I testified with
his consent freely in the Congress. '

SexaTor Roserr C. Byrp. Governor, if you ‘were Presi-
dent—and this is a hypothetical question; yet, it is one which
could become a reality—would you invoke the doctrine of
executive privilege to refuse a congressional demand for in-
formation needed in aid of legislation or in the nomination’s
process or in the investigative process as long as that informa-
tion di(gi not contain military, diplomatic, or national security
secrets

Mr. RockereLLer. Certainly I would not want to and would
not ever abuse the privilege. To make a blanket statement
such as you have made leaves no room for movement I would
hardly think. VBl ane

Senator Roserr C. Byrp. Movement in what direction?
What need for movement is there in the way I phrased the
question ¢ :

Mr. RocxereLLer. Well, the way you phrased the question,
anybody in the White House could be called at any time by
the Congress and if the Congress decided to abuse the opposite
side of this coin they could make the administration, the man-
agement of the Government, almost impossible because Con-
gress could be in the executive branch on every decision if
they wanted to. I think that would be a very disastrous thing.
I think the Government was created with an execufive and
legislative branch in order to have the separation of powers.

Now, the separation of powers must have somne meaning.

* * * * * * *
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cision of the Govérnment. If you go to his underlings, and

ou can talk to anyone of 15 or 50 or whatever it is, it would
[Ze very easy for Congress to destroy the morale and effective-
ness of the executive branch because you get one worki
against the other and you can set one against the other as
foresee.

Now, as you said you would be reasonable and I recognize
that and I say well, I will be reasonable, But, you have got a
specific black and white question which You want answered.

herefore, my being reasonable does not, satisfy the case. I do
not see how I can go further and be honest.

* * * ki * * *

Senator Roeerr C. Byrn. * * * Would you * * ¥ attempt to
invoke the doctrine of executive rivilege to keep those aides
or these Cabinet Members or otlfer persons within your ad-
ministration or within the White House from a pearing be-
fore congressional committees, taking into consideration that
the request is legitimate, taking into consideration that the
word of Mr. A as to what Mr. Ig said is the best evidence for
that committee, taking into consideration that no milita
diplomatic or nationa security secrets are involved ¢ Wm;gf
you invoke the doctrine ¢

Mr. RockereLLER. Again, Senator, let me before coming to
the specific question say that you expressed the fact I come
here as a strong executive before this committee. But, I also
come with a strong record of cooperation with the legislature.
As a matter of fact, I have been criticized for working too
closely with the legislature and I have had 12 years in Wash-
ington working under President Roosevelt and President
Eisenhower, during which period I also worked with the
Congress in whatever capacity it was. 8o, I understand every-
thing you are saying.

have given my assurance that my objectives are similar
to yours and I have given my record as the argument support-
ing it. I would pick up the word you used “confrontation”.
I do not believe in canfrontation. To me that is a word of last
resort, whether it is war or anything else. I believe in trying
to find the community of interest that best serves common, ob-
jectives and that would be true in the executive and legis-
lature.

* * * * * * *

-+« You are asking here about my concern. I want to co-
operate, but I do not want to be in & position should it hap-
pen that what I say should find me sitting here and you saying
look, Governor, when you were sitting before us you said that
you under no circumstances would resist any request of any-
body in your administration to come before a committee pro-
viding it did not have national defense, military or diplo-
matic information.

Senator Roserr C. Byrp. What other reason would there
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. It seems to me that gives us a pattern for the future that
is tremendously important. Because we cannot feed the world.
There are only three exporting countries left—net expor-
ters—the United States, Australia and Canada, and there
is no chance that the production in these countries is meet-
ing that 6 percent world growth figure that looks as though
it would be required.

Therefore the countries—other countries are going to have
to produce their own food and we have got to help them,
the World Bank has to help them, the Arabs have a problem
as to their role in this and this really is a question for world
attention, and the sooner we get after it the better.

Foreren Poricy

The Committee questioned Mr. Rockefeller extensively about both
the role he might play in American foreign policy and his specific
views on various aspects of current foreign policy and future concerns.
Senator Cook asked Mr. Rockefeller to elaborate on the role he would
play in foreign pelicy formulation in light of the President’s stated
intention to rely on Mr. Rockefeller in:this area and on Mr. Rocke-
feller’s longstanding friendship with Secretary of State Henry Kis-
singer.

Senator Coox. Now, Governor, the President has indicated
his faith and intent to rely heavily upon our Secretary of
State Kissinger.

ffLikewiﬂe, he has indicated to you a place and role in foreign
affairs.

In light of your long association with the Secretary of State
and the announced intentions of the President, what role do
you envision for yourself in foreign affairs and what relation-
ship do you expect to maintain with the Secretary of State?

Mr. RockerELLER. In the very broad conversations which I
have had with the President on this subject, I got the impres-
sion, frankly, that what he had in mind was my assistance in
the domestic field and not in the foreign field. I am only say-
ing that because of what you said that he had indicated pub-
licly that he wanted me fo be of assistance to him in the inter-
national field.

I had the impression that he was talking about the domes-
tic field when he and I talked. So we have to start with that
difference. J

I really do not know. I am sure there will be something that
will develop only as and when I do get confirmed.

My relationship with Secretary Kissinger is long standing.

I have been sort of a sounding board for him on various ques-
tions. Everybody has to talk to somebody once in awhile that
they have known for a long while and known well, and he and
I have that relationship. I would do the same, raise questions
with him, not taking much of his time, because of the tremen-
dous pressure of the office.

Whatever the relationship was, it would be that prescribed
by the President and would be within the framework of the
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Constitution and his powers anq whatever he ag
would not intervene or interfere i
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untry.,

Senatox: GrrFri, Do you think yoy would be likely to fing
yourself in that Position [of disagreement] on issues of
foreign policy ?

L. Roc1§EFE_LLER. Well, T woulq feel that in the field of
foreign policy it would be totally inappropriate for me to
eXpress a position in that case on ay issue.

i Y position woulq
one of Supporting him. T think the great tradition that

Years, and really during T
guess the Roosevelt years, but the Eisenhower years paiticy-

larly, where the leadershlp of the Congress gave such extraor.
rily strong bipartisan Support, he consulteq the leaders,

and we had 5 united fropt abroad. I think it is tremendoys}

Important that this country havg a united front o the maxi-

mum degree pogsible and certainly the Vice President has
got to be in g positior_l of th

} ] e united front with his President,
Otherwise T think jt would be very seriously unstabilizing
to our Internationg] relations
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Senator Allen asked Mr. Rockefeller to com

Senator Arrmy. Some of the
are suggesting that Secretary of State 1Ssinger may Possibly
on his way oy, I certainly hope that 18 no

ked me to do,
Te In any way, and T think I
am sensitive to thege questions,

d the sensitive question of how he
reement on foreigy policy with the President,
Mr. Rockefeller responded that he would support the President be-
cause he believed g united front between President anq Vice Presi-
dent wag essential. He glso eXpressed the view and executive-
legislative cooperation in the fielq of foreign policy was essential in
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ject to the laws of the country, as I said, the trend in Vene-
zuela is the big producer although some of the west, coast
countries have come in more recently in production. :

I understand this trend and I think that as the countries

o through these experiences they will sort out what they feel
15 in their best interest and they will operate in a way that in
the long term will affect the best interests of their people. But
the raw material products have to be sold outside the coun-
tries except in a country like Brazil, for instance, which
nationalized its oil industry many years ago. Petragas.

So that that problem is not a problem as far as I am con-
cerned. It is an evolution that is taking ¥la.ce worldwide.
The basic economic activities; production of food, wholesale
distribution of food, and retail distribution. The cost of food
is very high in Latin America. The system of distribution of
95 years ago—it is very inefficient.

T tried to help and this not being & field T was too familiar
with, I probably went about it in somewhat of a naive way
starting with production and wholesale distribution and
finally retail distribution. The production was a very chaotic
situation, tragic situation, because the middle man who
would wait until the farmers’ crop was right—say the to-
matoes—would hold off until they were falling off the vine
and go in and get it at a sacrifice price which inured to the
great disinterest to the farmer. I was interested in trying to
improve the U.S. technology in agricultural production in the
Western Hemisphere and have done that.

1 remember a situation in Venezuela where they had what's
known as the Ohablanca, a white leaf that came from Japan.
A straw shipped from Japan gave this disease to rice plants.
We started rice in Venezuela as a matter of fact. Then this
disease hit and we experimented with about 35,000—excuse
me—3,500 different varieties until we could find a blight
resistant variety for Venezuela which we used then which

was available for use of the country as a whole. So we've
tried to help on the production side. Then in trying to pro-
tect the farmers, I went through an ex riment of whole-
sale, gettin% into wholesale business. This was great except
when we sold to the retailers they would just jack the price
up. We paid them a low price, paid the farmers a good price
with a smaller margin. But they just jacked the price up and
saved the old prices. ,
So finally we went into supermarkets. Everybody said this
would not work because the Latins wouldn’t change their
customs. They wanted the little customs such as they have in

Ttaly and France, the little stores with their personal relation-

ships. This turned out to be a great success.

Then we bought directly from the farmers and we got—

I think in Venezuela it was 42 or 40-something stores, super-

markets.
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deal from a position of strength. In reference to the trade bill, Mr.
Rockefeller expressed the opinion that conferring most favored nation
status on the Soviet Union granted the administration important
tools with which to negotiate.

Senator ALLeN, * * * Some years ago you commented on
the then administration, I believe the administration of
President Johnson, saying that the administration in its
dealings with Russia was confusing a change in Soviet tone
with a change in Soviet goals. T tgink that was a very fine
statement.

Do you think that the Nation today is running the danger
or the risk of falling into that same pitfall?

Mr. RockereLLER. Well, this is a terribly important point
which you raise, Senator.

We want them to change their tone because we want to
have ceoperative relationships in this world in which we are
all involved because it makes it easier to work to solve
problems.

But, I do not think that we want to forget the basic objee-
tives of international communism as being what Khrushchev
said, I guess our grandchildren, they were going to bury.

T have to think that everybody is entitled to have their own
plans and have their own objectives in this world, but I think
it is up to us to be sophisticated enough to recognize it and deal
with them. If we are strong and if we are aware, then we are
going to stay in a position where we can deal with somebody
else to the mutual Ii)eneﬁt of both, but if we get weak then it
gets into the question you are dealing because you are black-
mailed instead of because you are dealing from strength.

Senator Arien. Well, ‘détente is nothing more than a
mirage; is it? Is there anything substantia] there? Does
Russia go back on any commitments that it makes if it serves
its purposestodoso?

Mr. Rocxererier. Well, that may be true. It is just like
any contract. It is really only effective as long as it serves the
interest of both parties. If it does not serve it you had better
soon start to renegotiate the contract.

I think that détente as long as we are strong and as long as
we are aware, 1 think it is a very fine thing because we are
dble—settling of the Vietnam war I think required Soviet
cooperation and the Chinese coo eration. I think that was
very well handled. The Middle East situation requires this
cooperation.

Senator Arren. What about the trade bill now pending in
Congress that would make a most-favored nation out of
Russia ¢ '

Now, by what stretch of the imagination would Russia,
our potential adversary, be entitled to treatment under our
tariff laws as a most favorable nation ?

Mr. Rockererier. Well, I think this trade law is terribly
important to give the administration the tools to negotiate

with. You cannot negotiate unless you have somet 5
Lo y))
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though each time the arms are used against a neighbor, as you
cite it, it is a tragic thing and embarrassing. But it is not a
black and white area. It 1s a difficult and complex area and I
think on balance would be better off with the program than

witho_ut it.

In view .of incréasing world demand for food, Senator Hatfield
questioned Mr. Rockefeller extensively about his views on the role
of food in American foreign policy. Senator Hatfield specifically asked
Mr. Rockefeller to comment on a statement contained in a report
circulated by the Institute for Policy Studies at the U.N. Conference
on World Famine and Food that U.S. food aid to India in 1965-66
was_conditional upon penetration of U.S. capital into the field of
fertilizer and petrochemicals headed by the ﬁockefeller group. He
further asked Mr. Rockefeller’s views in general upon conditions
attached by the U.S. Government to food and economic aid rendered
to nations in need. Mr. Rockefeller refuted the charge that aid to India
in 1965-66 had been conditional upon opening markets to Rocke-
feller interests. However, he did state that th(lanﬁ.s. Government had
required India to make an effort to increase its own food production
in order to receive food aid, and he added that he thought such a

request was logical.

Senator HATFIELD. Governor, in Rome last week was con-
vened a United Nations Conference on World Famine and
Food. And I noted in your testimony this morning on page
six, you made the statement :

“I have been more fortunate in material things than most
Americans, and therefore felt a greater sense of responsibility
to use material assets for the good of others, and to commit
myself to the service of the public. Unfortunately, the tradi-
tion of sharing with others seems now to have become a
political issue.’

In that conference, sir, there was widely circulated a report
under the title “Transnational Institute Report,” which has a
Washington, D.C., address, Institute for Policy Studies, 1520
New Hampshire Avenue, Northwest. This Transnational In-
stitute is a community of scholars from different countries
dedicated to the study of problems that can no longer be
studied within the confines of any single country. And it lists
the names of various scholars of the various countries.

On page 40 of that report it states:

In retrospect we can see that even though govern-
ment relations between India and the United States
are frequently cool, private technical aid through the
Rockefeller and Ford Foundations, and through
universities, managed to change the direction of the
thought and viewpoints of the Indian elite, and
bring them to adopt North American concepts of
development.

During the famine of 1965-66, food aid was made
conditional upon the penetration of U.S. capital into
the field of fertilizer, petrochemical industries
headed by the Rockefeller group.
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going to be able to get themselves irifo a position where they
can be self-supporting nations for their people. They are not
going to have the money, with the price of energy, to buy the
food, or even the fertilizer.

Therefore, while I think the concept of the linking of those
two is very misleading, I think the concept of hel ing na-
tions to meet crises, but also encouraging nations to solve their
long term problems internally is essential.

Senator HarrreLp. Governor, as I understand, you are de-
lineating between conditional aid that is provided in
reference to American capital and American markets and
American industry, and that which may be conditional upon
adopting certain: technological production systems?

Mr. RockereLier. I was really relating it to food.

Senator Hatfield pursued the questioning by agking Mr. Rocke-
feller if food aid had been predicated upon economic gain for Ameri-

can interests or on encouraging India to change its methods of food
%ockefel]er pointed out that the United

States had never ably represented its economic interests abroad.
Further, he noted that the Arab nations have displaced the United
States as world capitalists and that this eou
tion of exporting fertilizer.

Senator Harrierp, Well, I know, but in this report it indi-
cates which—of course, fertilizer is very much related to food
here—that the aid was conditional upon the opportunity to
penetrate that area for the sale of fertilizers from <certain
American interests, economic interests.

My point is, was the aid predicated upon an economic gain
for the United States, or on encouraging India to change
technological production systems?

Mr. RockerFerier. Well, if you forgive me, Senator, the
United States has never been very able in representing its
own interests in terms of monetary gain. So that ¥ doubt very
much—the United States has not followed policies that rep-
resented the broad economic objectives of a strong nation.

The Government has followed policies of trying to aid,
which is beautiful and wonderful and essential, but we have
reached the point in the world where unless our Government
encourages other nations to become self-sufficient, famine is

not going to be a casual recurring thing. Famine is going to
be a way of life in this world. And it is very dangerous.

Therefore, I would say it is essential at we encourage
these nations to develop their own capacity.

I would add one other thing. The, capitalists of the world
are now Arabs, if you will forgive me, not Americans, That
is where the money is being concentrated. That is where the
money is going to have to come from to invest in fertilizer
plants and irrigation systems, and in desalinization plants
around the world, because that is where the money is going to
be, and therefore we are faced with a totally new situation,
not how do we represent the sale of American fertilizer,

which is in short supply at home,

htry is no longer in a posi-
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Senator HarFieLp. Let us not kid the American people or
ourselves either, that we are going to build foundations for
peace upon stunted minds and stunted bodies of people who
are starving today, while we talk about long term develop-
ment, and long term productions, because, Governor, from
1969 to 1972 we were able to export on the average of nine
million tons annually under Public Law 480. Today we are
looking at a figure of three to 3.4 million tons.

I have not noticed the price of food going down because
we have kept more here at home. Also, I have not noticed
the American people have benefited either from international
stability by this reduction in food exports.

Mr. RookEFELLER. But. Senator, we have had 40 years of
surpluses in the United States of overproduction, which the
United States and the Department of Agriculture wrestled
with trying to preserve the prices from going down through:
the bottom to protect the American farmers.

All of a sudden, and I am sorry—I have it, I think, in here,
the chart showing when the price of wheat and grain went
from a very low figure right straight up. It was when the
Soviet Union bought close to a billion dollars worth of grain,
that was the turning point, when we went from a surplus
nation to a nation of short supply. ,

The world is in short supply. The demand is outstripping
the available supplies. There are only three exporting nations
now, United States, Canada and Australia. We are facing
not a short term emergency problem. We have got that too.
But we are facing the most serious long term problem in
terms of growth of population, development of foreign ex-

change, and food that the world has ever known in its history,
and it is the greatest challenge to the United States that we
have ever had,.

Senator Hatfield commented on the inéquitiés in the distribution
of American food aid with the State Department attempting to use
the aid to the benefit of our military and political allies whereas the
Agriculture Department sought to increase American markets for the
future. Mr. Rockefeller disagreed with this statement as lacking a
clear sense of national purpose and as discounting the conflicting
interests inherent in the American system.

Senator Hatrrerp. Yes, I think it is, Governor. I think we
also have to let the American people know that that export-
ing policy we have been following has been dictated primarily
between alternating influence of the State Department and
the Agriculture Department. :

The State Department says let us give food where not
necessarily hunger exists, but where our political and military
allies exist. And when we export 600,000 tons of fertilizer into
the world of need, and half of that goes to South Vietnam
alone, with the relative population of South Vietnam to the
other areas of the world in need, and when 64 percent of
it is going to be exported this year to that same country of
South Vietnam, when we can put 15 percent of our foreign
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economic aid into the Middle Eastern countries that are
already enjoying 90 to 109 percent of the daily calorie intake
requirement, we obviously, then, on the one hand are not
concerned necessarily with the human suffering as much as
. we are with political and military alliances.

And on the other hand, we have the Agriculture Depart-
ment that sees foreign aid under Publie Law 480 as where
we can develop the most potential for our American markets
in the future. I think we have to also recognize that this has
not been under the great guise of humanitarianism that we
have tried to promote foreign aid, and while many Ameri-
can people today feel that foreign aid has really been a waste,
because where are our friendships in the world that we have
supposed to have been buying with this féreign aid.

Mr. RocREFELLER. Senater, I don’t disagree with you. What
I think you are doing is giving the most eloquent statement
as to the lack of clear sense of national purpose of this coun-
try in this critical moment in history. We have conflicting
forces, conflicting pressures, ¢onflicting interests, which have
not beerr reconeiled, and they all have sponsoring groups
with tremendously strong vested interests behind them.

Senator Harrierp, That is why I wanted to know about
your statement that “Unfortunately the tradition of sharing
with others seems now to become a pelitical issue.” Is that
what our foreign aid program is today¥

Mr. RockerrLier. Well, I was applying it to myself, if you
will forgive me, sir. But 1 would be glad to apply it on a
broader base.
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Senator Hartrrerp. Then you would not be for increasing
support for Public Law 480 at this time ?

r. RockererLer. I didn’t say that. You didn’t ask me
that before. I think you have got to say to the American
people—look, as I am sure Dr. Kissinger has already said,
we have got to do our share. Now, we have sold, what, a billion
dollars worth to the Soviets. They have just bought some
more. The Arab countries are worried sick about what they
are going to do with these accumulating dollar balance of
payments. Maybe it isn’t just food, because the balance-of-
payments issue is a serious one. Maybe it is who has got the
food and who pays for the food, and whe works the system
for distribution. And I think all of these have to be brought
together. This is a complicated, exciting moment in his-
tory, one in which this country, I think, can emerge as never
before with a sense of purpose, 2 sense of meaning, for hu-
manity as a whole—~in giving meaning to the lives of in-
dividual citizens within our country. But we can’t do it

iecemeal, and we can’t do it by slogans. We have got to do it
y understanding the deep, fundamental facts and realities.
Forgive me. I feel very strongly about these things,

In summing up, Senator Hatfield asked Mr. Rockefeller if he agreed
with the statement that world famine and starvation presented the
greatest threat to world stability and the peace and security of the
United States. Mr. Rockefeller agreed that world hunger was an
e]r:ormous threat, but he would not qualify it as the single greatest
threat.

Senator Harrierp. So that is what the basis of our foreign
aid is today ?

Mr. RockerFELLER. A political issue? Well, I would like to
say, sir, that unless we represent our national interests abroad
as wsill as our conscience, we will not be serving the American

eaple.
. Sgnator Hartrigip. Are those interests abhroad economic,
military, political, or humanjtarian, or

Mr. RockerELLER. A combination of all of them.

Senator Hatrierp, And what is No. 1 in the emphasis?

Mr. RockereLLEr. The well-being of the American people.

Senator HaTFIELD. AS represenfeg through what—military,
political ¢

Mr. RockereLLEr. The preservation of human dignity and
freedom for the future, not only for us, but of mankind. We
are the last bastion to fight for that.

Senator Hatrierp. Because our future is tied in with com-
mon humanity throughout the world.

Mr. RocKEFELLER. Yés, sit““totally interdependent.

Returning to the question of an increase in exports under the
Public Law 480 program, Senator Hatfield again asked Mr. Rocke-
feller if he would favor such an incregse. Mr. Rockefeller responded
by saying that we had increased exports to the Soviets, but that the
issue was camplicated with many interdependent factors.

Senator Harriero. Would you agree~—in my closing ques-
tion to you at this time—that the specter of hunger and
famine, starvation, if not from the point of view of humani-
tarian concern, but looking at it purely and strictly from a
pragmatic point of view, really ig probaﬁly the greatest threat
to the world stability and peace and security of the United
States, more than any other single factor, especially when in
one area of the world they have nuclear fission ¢

Mr. RoceEFELLER. Senator, I would like to agree with you,
but I am under oath. I have got to say to you, sir, that I don’t
think that a large amount of starvation is going to be reported
to the world, even by the nations in which it is taking place.
Therefore, I am not sure that this is going to be—a person
who is starving is not able to represent himself, his friend’s, or
his neighbors in any way effectively. So that tragically, 1
worry that maybe what should be, as you say, the most funda-
mental issue may not be, because of the human suffering of
those people and their incapacity to do anything about it.
They are cutting down trees to feed the cattle the leaves off the
trees, so the cattle can live another week, When that is done.
the grass is gone, then the erosion takes place with the wind
blowing. Now, it has rained in the sub-Sahara. Maybe we will
see some changes. But we have got some fundamental ques-
tions to face in this world—fundamental from a humani-
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tion of increasing taxes as Governor of New York, which I
assume was for the purpose of balancing the budget, and pro-
viding the needed services of the State, and the use of tax
increases to halt inflation, and what are your views on that?
Mr. RockereLLer. Well, inflation, as I see it today, is not a
typical or a traditional inflation in this country. Inflation
today importantly relates to two international developments;
one being the OPEC countries, the Arab countries, and their
colleagues, increasing 400 percent the price of petroleum prod-
ucts, and secondly the shortfall on food supply in the world.
* * * * * * *

Sécondly, the more traditional aspects of inflation, namely
spending large amounts by government, and the borrowing
of money, deficit financing, the Keynesian theory, to stimulate
economy—has been useful, I think, in periods of low employ-
ment or high unemployment.

But now we have this strange combination of inflation and
high unemployment, so now traditional methods of expendi-
tures do not work.

I have advocated for some time—as a matter of fact, I sup-
ported President Nixon in his effort to bring the Federal
budget into balance last year. The discussion about the im-
pounding of funds, it seems to me, if my memory is correct,
the Congress had voted—authorized appropriations in sums
larger than the estimated revenues. These could only be met
by either increasing taxes, increasing the debt ceiling, or cut-
tixig expenditures.

t that time I do not think anyone was very excited about
increasing taxes. The debt ceiling was not raised. And as the
appropriations stood, I supported the fact that he did not
spend all the money whi¢ch had been authorized because T did
not see how he could without further feeding inflation.

So I stand in a position of supporting holding down ex-
penditures at this time,

This is contrary to what, Mr. Chairman, you said about
my record in the State, and I think we are in a different
period, and T think the same is true for the State, that this
is a period to do what is basically essential, but to postpone
some of the things which are desirable, but which just continue
to feed cost inflation.

Senator HatrmLp. Would yon support a tax increase at
this time?

Mr. RockereLrer. That is where I am coming to the tax
increase:

Now, we come to the question of tax increase, as to how the
monies, the gross national product, should be used. And while
I majered in économics, I am not an economist, but I do think
that with these tremendous shifts that are taking place in
the world—and I did not mention raw materials, but that is
another one that is coming into this same area, along with
food and epergy—there are very large demands on our eco-
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problem we have is increased productivity and the channel-
ing of capital to those areas where this productivity has got
l:o%e accelerated.
Senator Byro. You say skeptical of it. Are you skeptical
of the wage and price controls or voluntary wage and price
guidelines or both ¢

Mr. RockereLLER. I am skeptical of the success of that in
achieving both price stability which is cutting down infla-
tion plus the increase in productivity.

When the Committee resumed the hearings in November, Mr. Rocke-
feller responded to a request for his views on fighting inflation by
describing it as an economic political problem and discussing factors
contributing to it.

On inflation, we face a totally new inflation situation. It is
not a domestic situation that ias the patterns that we are
familiar with, or in my opinion, even responds to what be-
came very popularly known as the Keynesian theories, even
though our last President was a late convert to that concept,
and did try to operate a full employment budget.

I think we as a nation have now to face and integrate and
go through the responsibility of seeing how you relate the
energy crisis, the food crisis, the raw material crises which
are growing, which relate to the rate of economic growth, and
the rate of economic growth to the quality of life, the whole
debate whether we should go back to zero growth.

Zero prowth for those who want it is great, because it
does not, in their opinion, add to pollution, and it is the sort
of theory: Let us pull up the ladder post, we are already on
board and you leave the others down.

I do not think that is good enough. I think that science
and technology, as I mentioned earlier, have not been given,
or have become to have a bad name, whereas in my epinion
they are the greatest strength, because of the ingenuity of the
American people in solving many of these problems, that is
we have the capacity to look at these facts, which I think
we do, and to see how they fit together, and we develop a
concept of the world which perhaps is new, but which relates
to our fundamental beliefs in the worth and dignity of the
individual, which in the last analysis I have to think is what
distinguishes our society from other societies, then we build a
sense of purpose around those.

And in dealing on these subjects T think we are going to
find that we will solve the inflation problem which really
grows out of the totally interdependent world and increase
demands which are greater than supplies or artificially high
prices, which have accelerated inflation.

Now it is either world demand with short supply, or arti-
ficial prices because of political reasons, and we have seen
politicizing various phases of our economic life, so inflation
is no longer an economic problem. It is now an economic polit-
ical problem. And, of course, tragically a social problem,
because it is the people who are hurt most.
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Mr. Rockererier. Well, if the capital market were func-
tioning then I don’t think the interest rates on loan money
would be so high. But the market, the capital markets due to
a series of other complicated circumstances are really not
supplying the essential capital that is needed today and the
incentives for saving and putting it into equity, stock for in-
vestment, by corporations is just not there in the face of these
high interest rates. They think they can do better in loaning
the money. And this is the reason for the housing situation
and this 18 the reason for the shortage of industrial capital
for expansion.

Senator RoeerT C. Byrp. Would you advocate that the Fed-
eral Reserve further relax its tight money policy ¢

Mr. RockeFELLER. I would thmk it wounld be difficult to do
so without some other steps being taken to encourage the flow
of funds into the capital market at the same time. But I think
taken together that would be possible.

Senator Roeerr C. Byrp. All right.

Then your formula would be what? One, two, three, four.

Mr. Rockererrer. Well, the formula, the objective of the
formula is to increase production at home and abroad on food ;
at home and abroad on energy; at home and abroad on raw
materials. And on the production of industrial capacity—
there I think that this is primarily a responsibility of ours at
home. And to do this I would think the incentives for capital

formation and investment in all of these areas is tremendously
important.
* * * % * * *

Now the farmers for instance with exceptions have done
very well within the last couple of years so they have capital
with which to expand and this is good. There’s a problem on
tax laws about inheritance and those are up for discussion
and I think those have to be considered in relation to invest-
ment on food production. I won’t get into that.

The whole thing is interwoven which is to me the fascinat-
ing thing today. We cannot solve one problem without salv-
ing another, We have to see this in relation to the others.
‘We come to energy and we say what percentage of energy do
we seek to produce in this country in relation to our demand.

* * * * * * *

The objective is to increase productivity in all of these
areas. The means of doing it are to increase incentives for
capital formation and investment that make possible that in-
creased productivity. Part of that and the cheapest way of all
is savings with incentives, tax incentives or Government in-
centives, and penalties. It’s got to have the combination of
the two. On savings particularly in energy of all forms.

Senator Roperr C. Byro. What about high interest rates?

Mr. RockereLLEr. Well, my feeling is that if you combine
the incentives for capital formation that you can then ease
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Senator Allen continued his questioning the next day :

Senator ALLEN. Yesterday I asked you about your advocacy

of a constitutional amendment that would under certain cir-

cumstances permit voluntary prayers in public schools and
you did not at that time recall having taken a pesition. Have
you since checked to find what your attitude in the past has

been ?

Mr. RockeFELLER. I could not find any place where I actu-

ally recommended a constitutional amendment.

* * * * * * *

Senator Aruex. Now, this compilation of some of your

public statements prepared by the Library of Congress on
page 265 does give this aceount of your advocacy of the con-
stitutional amendment, and I might say that I strongly favor
a constitutional amendment in this area, but three principles
were stated by you as a criferia in support of a constitutional

amendment permitting school prayer.

One is participttion by the student on a voluritary basis.
Two is the nondenominational nature of the prayer.

And (c) the right of each school board to make its own
etermination as to the use of the prayer which conforms to

the principles of (a) and (b).

ould that be in line with your present views?
Mr. RockereLLER. I was wrong. I did advoeate, Senator.

I did not remember.
On February 7, 1964, at a news conference in the Medford

Airport in Connecticut I said as follows: What I think that.
should be done is that Congress should hold hearings on this
subject so that the American people can effectively express
in a tangiblg way their concern and feeling about the subject.
Then out: of those hearings I feel confident that an amend-
ment could be developed which would permit on the basis
of free choice prayers and Bible studies in the schools.
Senator ALLEN. And you are still of that view?

Mr. RockEFBLLER. Yes.
REVENUE SHARING

One witness before the Committee described Mr. Rockefeller as the

(43
godfath
bers of}

er, of revenue sharing,” In response to questions from mem-
the Committee, Mr.

Senator Coox. Governor, in your discussions with Senator
Hatfield, you talked about solutions to the economic problems.
Do you find that—and I also make a parallel to the remarks
by Senator Pell this morning in regard to the Lockheed vote,
it is imperative in your mind as the former four-term Gov-
erner for the State of New York, now a nominee for the Vice

ockefeller indicated his belief that the
extension of the general revenue sharing program was “imperative.”

He also supported the concept of converting categorical grants into
block grants, and suggested that all matching fgund.provismm be

removed from grangsin-aid programs.
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Mr. RockerFeriEr. I would like to mention one more thing,
Senator Allen, if I might, in connection with this. It is not
only direct Federal expenditures but in the laws that are writ-
ten by the Congress, signed by the President, there are man-
dated expenditures by local government and State govern-
ment to match these, so that there is a secondary factor that
you forced a local government to spend more money. That
needs to be reviewed, plus the fact in the whole series of legis-
lative acts now mandated expensés on private énterprise in
relation to safety, in relation to ecology, and so forth.

I think we have to reexamine those because there are many
industries now paying up to 33 percent capital costs for one
“ or another of these very important programs. But, I think we
have to say can we postponé for a period certain steps that are

being taken ?

Senator ALLEN. You do plan to exert your best efforts and
cooperation with the President to see that the Federal Gov-
ernment does have a balanced budget for the fiscal year start-
ing July 1,1975¢

Mr. RocrerFELLER. Yes, sir, I do, and I just have to add this
other one thing: that T think it would be very useful if Con-
gress when they pass legislation said this is what it is going
to cost the Federal Government, this is what it is ‘%oing to
cost State and local govérnments, and this is what it 1s going
to cost private enterprise, so yot put those figurés into the law
too so everyone ctn take a look at it.

Senator Arren. Well, the revenue sharing program elim-
inated a lot of matching for Federal grants.

Mr. RockeFeLLER. Very helpful.

Senator ArLten. You thought that that was wise expéndi-
ture of taxpayers’ funds? ;

Mr. RockereLLer. Yes, sir. And, if you get categorical
grants put into block grants and you say the number from
over 1,000 down to 50 or 60, you are geing to eliminate an
awful lot of layers of government strueture. A good friend of
mineé, bne Governor out West, in connectidn with the water

quality--this is an area T have been very interested in—is a

believer in cleaning up our own waters, and he has to have

two staffs. One staff is to answer the questions, fill out the
forms for Washitigton, make the applications and redo them,
and so forth.

The other staff is to carry out the program in the State in
which he resides.

Taxes
Capital Gains Tax
On September 23, 1974, Mr. Rockefeller was questioned as to the
tax recommendations he made to the New York State Legislature and
the impact these recommendations might have on Mr. Rockefeller’s tax
liability; with particulsr emphasis on New York State’s taxation of
capital gains. On September 24, Mr. Rockefeller responded in full to

these questions.
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are not going to be enough, and therefore perhaps we have
got to slow down some on consumer goods during this period,
and on Government spending.

So that this brings me to the tax increase. Certainly, a
tax increase would help cut down on inflation pressures, but
I am not sure that cutting expenditures would not have
the same effect, and that better to have the capital rather
than going into expenditures of Government—going into
capital production.

That is a long story to try to answer your question, but
that is a little %it, Senator Allen, what you were talking
about, inflation, and how do I view it, and I think that is
how I view it.

Senator Hatrierp. You would not rule out the possibility
of an increase in taxes as one method of halting inflation at
this time ?

Mr. RockEFELLER. I am not sure that I do not think there
should be tax reforms, because in a period of inflation in-
equities are bound to result from rising prices, and I think
one of the most serious things is that the people in this coun-
try should feel there are inequities, that one segment of so-
ciety is doing better, the other one is penalized.

Investment Tax Credits
Mr. Rockefeller endorsed an investment tax credit for individuals.

Mr. RockereLLEr, It seems to me that since we give the
corporate structure an investment tax credit, that if we want
more funds to go into savings, we have to give the individual
an investment tax credit or incentive so that it is to his ad-
vantage to save. Then we can get funds into the banks, and
the building and loans, and into the credit unions, and as a
direct result of that advantage and as a direct result of the
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We are faced, as you know here in our country with the

‘fact that many of our inner cities are becoming black and

suburbia remains white.

If you have block grants many local governiments will put
money where the voice is and where the wealth is and where
the vote is, because the ghetto areas are very poor when it
comes to fielding a vote; and this is one of the problems
with the block grants because the money does not go where
Congress intends it.

How would you handle this problem of upgrading the cen-
tral core areas of the city ¢

Would you support the idea of a gréater Federal direct
contribution to the education process, or what would you do?

Mr. RoceereLLer. Well, we set up in New York here a
development corporation, which corporation has the power
of condemmation, the power to sell bonds, and the power to
overrule local zoning regulations.

We ran into the same suburban problems you are talking
about. But the group in that organization has come to the
conclusion that you cannot do, for instance, rehabilitation of
existing homes unless you do a large area and unless the serv-
ices in that area of the city are also raised to a level that is
going to be commensurate with the needs of the people—
otherwise your efforts will fail—so that it is a total commun-
ity'a?proach.

i feel very strongly that it’s necessary to reestablish the
vitality and integrity of these core areas to make them areas
where people can live in a decent environment and bring up
their children in a decent environment. There has to be total
approach, but that involves control of drugs. It involves prob-
lems in education, and it involves problems in housing, and
also very serious problems in helping the people within these
areas to get training for themselves that permits them to
take advantage of the opportunities. It is an éxtremely diffi-
cult problem.

* * * * * * *

Mr. Rockererier. * * * We had had this housing finance
agency which was designed primarily to sponsor—I mean to
put up money for privately sponsored or municipally spon-
sored housing, low and middle income.

But the sponsors were drying up. So we figured the Gov-
ernment itself had to go into the sponsorship. So we devel-
oped this corporation after a study which had the power to
become sponsors as well as financiers; had the power to sell
its own bonds; it had the power to condemn property; it
had the power to override local zoning; it had the power to
override local building codes, all of which were obstacles to
large-scale development.

* * * *

Senator Harriep. * * * You have been interested in hous-
ing and, as you know, today we are in a very serious housing

* * *
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enatot Harrrerp. Did you say that could include tax ex-
empt status for a certain amount of interest earned from small
savings accounts that would provide people an incentive as
a contrast to those who heavily invest in tax-exempt mu-
nicipal bonds and get such tax breaks, that you would pro-
vide this, or could provide this for small savers ?

Mr. RockereLiEr. That certainly is one possibility. I
would feel it was totally inappropriate for me to speculate
on just how, or what the provisions should be.

What T really was trying to do was to touch on the nature
of the problem, the magnitude of the problem, the new aspects
of the problem and, I think, in the backdrop of all this 1s we
have to recognize that as the Times pointed out in that edi-

torial on Sunday, there are between $2 or $3 billion a week
" but money siphoned out

in taxes—they did not say “taxes,” bul
of the rest of the world by the OPEC Arab oil countries.

They are taking this like a tax.

Senator Hatrrerp. But you would be for loosening some
of the tight money policies relating to selecting er its, or
selecting systems for hotising purposes®

Mr. RockerrLier. 1 thRink it has got to be. I think myself
a long-term solution has got to be more than i])ﬁ's't tampering
with the existing system. I think there has to be some funda-
mental additions or changes in our approach and concepts,

and these are merging.
WATERGATE AFFAIR

In his testimony, Mr. Rockefeller spoke at length on many aspects
fair and its aftermath. In response to a question

The CrarMAN. Mr. Rockefeller, in the years 1972 and 1973
were you ever contacted by Mr. John Mitchell, Mr. Bob
Haldeman, Mr. John Ehrlichman or Mr. John Dean, or any
of those named persons, or an other persons, with respect to
fufnishing money in conhecfion with Watergate cover up

activities

M. RocKEFELLER. No, Sir.

The CuairMAN. Did you furnish any
people or any other people for those purpose
period ¢

Mr. RocKEFELLER. No, sir.

The Cuamryax. It has been rumored that you furnished

funds to help finance the disruption of the 1972 Democratic
Convention! Is that true? .

money to any of these
s during that

he denied any connection with the financ-
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Chairman regarding Mr. Rockefeller’s

In answer to a question of the ) !
the nominee praised Presi-

opinion of the pardon of Richard Nixon,
dent Ford’s decision. He later said that pardons for other Watergate
articipants could only be considered on a case-by-case basis. [For

information about Mr. Rockefeller’s general position on the pardon of
g former rt VIII of this report,

pelow.]
another subject, Mr. Rockefeller, does

The CramrMAN. On
the news media correctly state your feeling that you approved

of President Ford’s pardon of Mr. Nixon?
Mr. RoCKEFELLER. 1 think the way to express it is to sub-

mit the statement 1 made for the record which was that his
act was an act of conscience, of compassion and of courage;
that, in my opinion, it would be very controversial for the
short run, and for the long run it would probably accelerate
the healing of the wounds this country has suffered during the

past 2 years. . :
That was exactly my statement. I was not privy to the basis

on which the decision was made.

I admire the President tremendously. I am absolutely con-
fident, as we all are, that this must have been for him a very
difficult decision and that, in his judgment, knowing all the
facts and all the circumstances, this was the right time and

the right thing to do.

The CrammaN. As Vice President, how would you advise
President Ford on the issue of Presidential pardons for all
persons indicted or convicted on Watergate-related offenses?

Mr. Rockererier. Well, if he should ask me, my advice

would be that each one be considered on its own merits when

application was made.
The CuARMAN. If, in the course of events, you were to be-

come President of the United States, would you pardon any

of the convicted Watergate defendants ?

Mr. RockerFeLLER. 1 would not be able to make a statement
in advance because I would have to do what I did in the State
which was to have my counsel review the case in detail, talk
to the prosecutor, talk to the judge who made the conviction,
et, cetera, and only after that, and in the light of the situation
which now exists in the backdrop of the situation, I would

make a decision.

President by his successor, see pa



VII. SPECIAL ISSUES BEARING ON THE
QUALIFICATIONS OF THE NOMINEE

Porentian CoNrFLicTs OF INTEREST OF THE NOMINEE

Probably the single most troublesome and central issue in the Com-
mittee’s hearings and consideration of the nominee’s qualifications, fit-
ness, and capability to hold the Office of Vice President of the United
States was the conflict-of-interest question and its broad ramifica-
tions—a key public policy consideration made acutely more important
by the vast wealth and business holdings nationwide and worldwide of
Governor Rockefeller and his family.

Throughout the Committee’s hearings that question became a focal
point for Committee members, for the nominee, and for witnesses, in
an obvious recognition that the potential melding of great wealth and
economic power with the great political power of the Vice Presidency
or Presidency was worthy of considerable thought, attention, and ulti-
mate judgment.

Consistently in the background in the consideration of most ques-
tions during the hearings was the full realization that probably never
before had a Committee of the Congress or the Congress itself ever been
confronted with a heavier responsibility in a confirmation proceeding.
There was the obvious fact that never before in American history has a
member of a great family, one probably possessing greater wealth and
broader business interests than any in tgis country, been this close to
achielvirgg the second, or possibly ultimately the first highest office in
this land.

The Committee felt very deeply its unique responsibility : that each
of its members and ultimately each Member of Congress is charged by
the T'wenty-fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States
with substituting his or her individual judgment, for those of each and
every American voter (currently more than 98 million) to whom the
task of electing a Vice President has always fallen during our country’s
198-year history, with a single exception—the confirmation of Con-
gressman Gerald R. Ford as Vice President of the United States
1 year ago.

The Committee began its consideration of the conflict-of-interest
question with the premise that the Constitution sets out no guidelines
for the President or Vice President in this area. Neither has the Con-
gress enacted conflict-of-interest laws touching those two offices as
it has done for Members of Congress and for officials of the execu-
tive departments. The Committee was keenly aware of the fact that
in a normal national election process, such questions and their impact
would be answered by the electorate at the voting booths by its choos-
ing both a President and Vice President.

(91)
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differ. In addition to his direct answer ahave, the nomineg’s response
was that the general question was a basic one in the confirmation hear-
ings. :
When asked by Chairman Cannon how he, as Vice President, could
avoid even the appearance of conflict of interest in light of his and his
family’s financial holdings, Mr. Rockefeller maintained that his indi-
vidual economie power has been greatly exaggerated. He pointed out
that he wields no control over the family trusts of which he is a bene-
ficiary or aver the assets of the Rockefeller Brothers Foundation.
Nor, he said, are the funds of the Rockefeller Foundation in any way
controlled by his family. ;

Additionally his contention was that the Rockefeller corporations -
begun by his grandfather, John D. Rockefeller, Sr., have moved “from

rivate family ownership to the corporate structure with a multitude
of stockholders.” He further said:

. . . Today management of American corporations are not
controlled by some family or individual force ottside. They
are people who have worked their way up through the com-

any. They are ver independent individuals, and there 18
not this net worth of control which is popularly conceded. . ..
~ .. 1 am not beholden to any interest or to any person.
Should I be confirmed in this j%{), my sole and only criteria
for decision on any subject would be what I felt in my best
judgment, based on the. length of experience, lifetime or the
experience, was the best interest of the people of the United
States of America. . . .

Mr. Rockefeller stated that the influence of his family as board
members of various foundations and corporations is minimal. He
claimed the maximum total holdings of the Rockefeller families in any
singllie company (oil holdings) are 2.06 percent of the outstanding
stock. ;

He further contended that he owned no Chase Manhattan Bank
stock himself and the trusts of which he is a beneficiary own noné
outright. Mr. Rockefeller added that the trusts do hold a portion of
the stock of Rockefeller Center and that Rockefeller Center has hold-
ings in the Chase Manhattan Bank, of which his brother, David, is the
chief executive officer. As to bank control, he assured the Committee
that the total holdings of the Rockefeller family outright and in the
trusts represent 2.54 percent of Chase Manhattan stock.

The question of what appropriate steps, if any, should be required
by the Committee to deal affirmatively with the underlying question
of a possibility or appearance of a conflict of interest pow(l] by the
nominee’s tremendous wealth and business holdings, personally and
family~wise, Was explored consistently throughout the hearings.

DISCUSSION ON QUESTIONS 3 AND 4

Blind Trust, Public Disclosure Alf“n";.am"

The direet alternatives, as set forth more precisely in questions
No. 36 and 4 above, d‘re‘w varied cpmments f.rom mm l!!d Com-
mittee members during the hearings but little in substantive con-
clusions because of the complexities of the facts at hand.

41-217 0 - 74 =1
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evice accomplj 10st, moot. Or e oldi
S Aot mook. O mor Sty ot
in

where the assets ar
5 e SO .
the nominee’s knbwle‘di!ég ;'gzt}éwth%t they'cannot be shifted easily from

Blind Trust 0 G
directly in hi ffer—Governor Rockefelléy
by su;ygeﬂm' v ;)}{)en Ing statement to theeCormnOﬁ.?t.mdtee e
& the establishment of a blind trulst H(:,{l %&mbu- 23

* * * T have created a bli
Co. eated a blind trust with
I w’ilalnl()ies;ﬁl‘.(‘il‘i 1 I';"; cotfirmed and shx?égégne-gm“s? reqm‘y v
in that blind trust for the d securities that I it
m for the duration. g e QucTighit
TP On Shei s T S 2
¥ e truste $ce g
y my father, of which I am a Iifetgsm(;fl‘;}elg:fm(;;g}“f ::ieﬁlwd
9 re-

uest them to treat me as if’ w
gu oy 0 treat me as if they were a blind trust during th
e

Questioni £ i
ing of various Congressional and public witnesses brought

no support for the bli
368 foratad out—e blind trust approach because, as Chairman Ca
n-

If they (the holdi
i5 soi ings) are placed i
going to know what they 00¥lsi.st ‘(1) fl’n a ;NSt’t h(;7 c:rtainly
0 Ws?, hq . are Vel‘y

substantial holdi i
oy .a: ' oldings in a number of big cqmpanies in this

Divestiture Questi
obliquely with uestion.—The question of s
be_'speci)ééall ;es})lqpt to whether the coﬂﬁ!;g?-l:fl.id ltvestlture came up
whether 'in this p pr::c_able to the President and \I; erest laws should

e required. Thg;: icular instance some form of :ic'e President and
ivestiture could be ;V:: ;}0 affirmative suggestion al:esmzur_e should
o otace's briitiess hdldings uathans oo the immensity of

re might have in th ; and the possible & vy o

Public Disclosur @ business world or some ph effedts such divesti-
th i ety e The et ot oo i

sted by the Commi s broad holdin -

This informati mittee and promptl 28, semething re-
Rockefeller at tl}(:n was spread on t]?e % agl:e ed to by the nominee
ber 13. The 2 Se? tember 23 hearin gud 0 1‘ec.o"‘d' by GOVerHOI:
$6214 millionni)lmlneeg statements shovgv:edn additionally on Novem-
of $116 milligs a lifetime income £ a personal net worth of
follor famill ylo!ll%) l::nd estimates were th;:!;;lo%:,vlo}fgldsps with total assets

p ably approached $11/2 billion, ngs of the Rocke-
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Various-Congressional witnesses appearing in support of Governor
Rockefeller’s nomination, when questioned about . some method
whereby the Committee or the Congress might deal affirmatively with
the matter of the appearance of a conflict of interest, supported the
viewpoint that full public disclosure of the Governor’s assets and the
continued monitoring of that disclosure would be adequate.
To Chairman Cannon’s question of whether full disclosure would
be sufficient, Senator John Tower of Texas, replied :
the financial-

1 think full disclosure is adequate. Certainly,
mething that

economic posture of the Rockefeller family is so
r 5o long that I don’t think there

has been public knowledge fo

is much subject to question. And there has never in modern

times been any suggestion of wrongdoing or fast-dealing or
t of the Rockefellers. In the absence

of exploitation on the par
of that I see no reason to pursue the matter at great length.
es of Arizona,

To a comparable question, Representative John Rhod
testified :
* * * fy]] disclosure and

cause, not only by the people o
will be certainly adequate to make sur

conflict of interest.

DISCUSSION ON QUESTION 5

the surveillance which that will

£ the country, but by the press,
o that thereis no undue

Public Service Record of the Nominee
On question No. 5 above, as to whether Governor Rockefeller’s pub-

lic service record of 34 years in Federal and State governmental posi-

tions would indicate any abuse of power favoring his dpersonal interests

vis-a-vis the public interest, the Committee ﬁ)un that the public

interest had ,prevailed with no evidence of personal favoritism to his
s

or his family’s business interests show.
As an example, Senator Marlow Cook of Kentucky questioned the
nominee about his tax recommendations while he was Governor of
hose years he had

New York and received the response that during t 1 t
me, corporate, and capital gains

succeeded in instituting higher inco

tax rates in his State, such increases adversely affecting the Rocke-

feller family’s finances and his own. ;
In his testimony supportive of Governor Rockefeller’s nomination,

Senator Roman ruska of Nebraska said:

« * * In the light of this man’s record and * * * his con-
duct in high public office, the second largest State in the Union
and often considered the second most nsible political post
in the Union, it seems to me that should be taken into con-
sideration by and large and be abided by. : i ;
d to a question by Senator Robert C. _of West Virginia
abﬁllllt how egonomic and po]lthal power together ¢ uld be vudverg.ely
used to injure the American peop GOW ; Bocke o ‘Mlﬂ'; Ieeuwpis:
' lifetime abusing economic ﬁo\rei‘, 1
« * * Tf 1 had spent & I i i 1
would not be sitting here, 1 have to assume y, beca

ol
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is an open book and it would
have & i
t?}?;it ::hat would have been the end. %‘i:;?‘-’e bIet?n uncovered
e experience can be useful * * * ore I'can only say

CONCLUBION

Blind Trust Establishment Not Required

To resolve the confli i

mnim 5 1 lct¢of-1pterest uest 3 .

amarimonly iy St mesion oo Novembo e et ol
* » a . 7 ovV-

offered i db e Sepcsihee 2 m:tlgnt:;;t for his holdings as he had

blind-tru ommittee’s judgment that in th

to act insthze%‘;ggll?:f“? g) go}{ernor Rmkgfellzraébxnmgc?b: i ok

gnancial interests, and ?Q)T}?gtvéﬁ'“gis his personal and/or t}m’%

meri ; e Committee, th

¥ thecg?s tpezzﬁl; 1should rely on his 15 yeart:efnt heugf?ng'esse and the

it Lottty -tha%t;: the uslec(md) largest State ?n tﬁ: %‘,’ﬁf}"e office

the people of this countrv;? d not act contrary to the best int:r;%sﬂ(l):

Lo
ANS AND 31Frs MADE BY MR. ROCKEFEELER

One of the signifi 3
confirmati gnificant 1ssues developed duri
oo st i & e i P
varibgd phblic Dieiils dubiig Masspen 0 e prdacinted
and to others either j uring their periods of go Rjseitied. to
Secéor in socie‘z;- er involved. in goverugent, or ag‘;t;:: l;;rlletllllta S;Iﬂ?:&
uestions .of legali i ‘e I
thege tions F Joralivy, BIOPEIOEY, 8ud toral Yalie 8 BRBHELK A
OV pies
-+ divigzl;,‘l): ﬁ?ﬁfg:gtg ?ade the following loans or gifts t )
or gift: the accompanying explan!at,iogl for gagﬂri,gus
- an
LOANS :

Richard 8. Aldrich
$26, 000

M i 3 ] ] . ] E o i ] v

of State Housi :
of loan. ousing Finance Agency; private citizen at time

Winthrop Aldrich
$12, 000

My deceased uncl

farmily e e who was the closest i

J amlg’é .for,mer United States eAcxlnbass:g ustm g
; private citizen at the time of the lé):n o Court of St.

Robert B. Anderson_ . ____
___________________________ $60, 000

A long-time fri
& end and .
vate citizen at the time offl%;’::?r Federal Cabinet officer; pri-
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George 4. P PRI i Ay 36,000
A friend and associate of more than thirty-ﬁve Kem?; Chief
Executive Officer, New York State Council ‘on rchitecture;
private citizen at time of loan.

John d. Gz'lhé;ieg-;,f__-_-_':: ____________ I e Sy _ 82,600
A close friend and former Federal sub-cabinet officet and City
Transit Authority member; private citizen at time of loan.

$60,000

An intimate friend and associate for over forty years; former
Director of the O ican Affairs during the
1940’83 pnvatecitizen a

OGN L B
tho Inte thirties uatiBis » "

American

Francis A.J o i S AR e S

A friend and close associate from
death in 1961} with Office of Coordinator of Inter-

Affairs in 1940’83 private citizen at time of loan.

W. Kenneth Rilon@uswn-aeanm==" emmmem——————
i i 940 ; member of

Personal Yhysician an 2k
ic Health Council and member of Commission on

State Pub on

the Uses and Regulation of Acupuncture; private citizen
at time of loan.

Theodore C. SWbm____________-__-__;‘__':___-: _________ 96,000
Friend and associate in the family office; bi of US.
Information Agency in 1950’s; private citizen at time of loan.

$3,000

Constitutional Commission Employees-—-------==""

V arious

These were loans in the form of galary advances ‘to the

ataff of the Temporary State Commission on the Constitu-
958 in which legisla-

tional Convention during the period in 1 i
tive funding had terminated and prior to establishment O

new legislative funding.

Lol AR R 2 s arstoanc s nasTROR DT $6,000
R e e ot itk 82,600
B R gl $15.000
QU L MR e e I 82. 126

W atsur O e R S T i T $1.650
$21,21%
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Robert C, and Martha M. Or WG - 86'5 Or
B R g L —— 994
A &, i 155115 SR, SR T B ~ $12 5
Rk T hast oo e i Ml Ny - %
vt ol LT
Various Constitutiona] Commission Al - 83,60
Joan Braden_.. ... ____ T 53, %68
Loorard dllenn r S T To sl iy e ~ #10, g3
ABBert L. Hadley _______“___ ------------------------ ~ - $1, 4op
Margaretta F. ??:oekefelze'ﬂ____: ____________________ 525,009
Rodman 0. Rockdfeitly. ' LTI 25,000
S0P 0. Rookepallonss,o. . | o ol RETIOA $27, 009
Carl E. s;ege,mw,,d____________“__‘ --------------- S22, 60q
Varioys famity oﬁée employega-__-______::::::::: _______ ?f:l', 250
Richavd 8. Aldpie £ bt GIFTS 558
Mr. Aldfich fs my Erst' cousin' Ta wob s #18, 167

assoclate for more than ct"}ﬁsi;q; hé has been my friend ang

appointed him as a membey of - 98" vogg, +
1 Of th ¥ : 7 s ! D1 oy I
E!;napce Agency, a position he stiﬁ }Iiflw York State Housin,

Mr. C --------- T B s =5t g 51 S )
latk was Executive Manager of the Americagn B nkm’ o
' Systems. I appointed him Su;l;err‘;'(;lot%nized i o b:nkigra
ary 18, 1959. Prior to this appoint adent of onkse Foahm,

T made o gift of $95.000 o g{pointment, on January 27, 1959,

location expenses before h. too}'{ (f;liz:k to assist him jin hig Te-
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ﬂmr!/ L- D‘iamo’ld - oy - - = o by el = 4o $100, m6

On April 24, 1970, I appointed Henry Diamond, a highly
recognized expert in the field of conservation and ecology, as
head of the newly formed Department of Environmental
Conservation, in which capacity he did an outstanding job.
After his resignation in December 1973, I made two gifts to
him totaling §100,006 to help him in meeting certain press-
ing family obligations which he had. Mr, Diamond presently
serves as Executive Director of the Commission on Critical
Choices for Americans. :

Yr.and Mrs.James W. Gaynor— oo - $107,000

Mr. Gaynor was an outstanding engineer located in Denver,
Colorado. On January 14, 1959, a.pgointed him as New York
State Commissioner of Housing and Community Renewal, a
position he resigned in 1969. I made gifts to Mr. Gaynor on
twa different occasions. The first was a gift of $7,000 which I
made in February 1959 to assist them in moving from Denver
to New York. The second gift was made in December of 1970
when I gave Mr. Gaynor $100,000,.forgiving various loans
which were made to him to help with personal and business
losses occasioned by his relocation.

Henry A, Kissinger, ... 1T A Y P $50, 000

Dr. Kissinger has been a close personal friend and associate
for more than eighteen years. In January of 1969, after he
had resigned as a consultant to me and before he became As-
sistant to the President for National Security A ffairs, I made
him a gift of $50,000. This gift was made not only because of
my affection and appreciation for Dr. Kissinger’s invaluable
assistance, but to help him during a particularly difficalt time
in meeting financial responsibilties to his children and former

wife.

P e I e e e Lot . S LK $176,389
I first knew of Mr. Logue as one of the nation’s outstand-
ing urban planners and builders, first in New Haven and
later in Boston. As New York State organized its Urban De-
velopment Corporation, I asked Mr. Logue to serve as its
President and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Logue was inter-
ested in the position, but was concerned with the necessity
of repaying a number of outstanding lpersonal obligations
he had 1n Massachusetts. In order to help with these obliga-
tions and also to enable him to relocate in New York, I
made him gifts in 1968 totaling $31,389. I also loaned him
$145,000 of which $45,000 has been repaid and $100,000 is
still outstanding.
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oL and problems, including health ansaelgggs

L. Judson Morh ouse

e e o b

Mr. Morhouse w oy
St @ Was the unsalatied Chyirmi. 3
s elogeaumatiee from 1954 to 1969, Tn Maneh sorgP JLLicEn
of the New York Sbttt,tg %%prg?tedk{ o ng’mém{l).ei
until his Tesignation j ay Authority' and h
houses requon; Illon n January 1963. In ’13’60 a he served
; oaned h at Mr. Mor-
an investment, The loan W;l;lsitlzg%ﬁ)% to enable him o e

very TeSSin . i e
In 1962 Mr. Mori family obligations to meet at that time

2 panel of doctors ‘apmo.
unanimons]e CCtors appointed by the State Mod: :
i s e o i e was i dangts i e o]
jail | A - ; A ay
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prospeet ofnh.iserc: n;g(:; 1%3’ land b de:; ero 10
was discounted to‘j£86,3l§ ung p:ﬁ’tiefgﬁa&the debt: which

Joseph H. Murphy______
___________________________ $20, 000

Mr. Murph
Py was a ¢lose E
the beginni personal friend ;
1959, f lapp‘;élgﬂgefi n}?" tate a@m_inistratioanxfd()ass%c;ate oen
; im Commxsslpper of Taxation I::ﬂi Fil’

then e Chai

rman of the N f :
nan T
helpo?n iﬁgm{'cgﬁ NOVembe_r 1967, 1 r?l;lfiesa??s%o}f)oo !
his children’s educas:iznp:;? l{;‘i‘ff i igaidabs rala.t?:g ttg
an aged parent, which loan T forg-a,lirgni:f1 flég";ﬂ})l "

William J. Ronan_______
Dr. Ronan is & long-time personal foiern -y 1" b
.15 & long-time perso i i iy
close relationship goes back ton:gh{aﬁerlgir Mll{%::?csl:x‘f& d0 A
. ed as

Xecuti i
1ve Director of the Temporary State Commission of

1 The two addition »
al gifts of sl5.00|) in lDe(:ember 1958, and $40, 000 i
te!tlﬂed to b.y both Gov. Rocketeller and Dr, Ronan brlng the total tol" f
gifts

loan
8 from Gov. Rockefeller to Dr. Ronan to a grand total of $625 ‘and Torghves

and forgiven
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the Constitutional Convention in 1956 and 1957. It was there
that I first became aware of his extraordinary ability and,
upon my election as Governox, I asked him to serve as my
Secretary. He served in that capacity. with great distinction
until 1966, at which time I appointed him the full-time
Chairman of the Metropolitan Commuter Transportation
Authority (this subsequently became the Metropolitan
Transportation Authority, and I appointed Dr. Ronan its
Chairman). Dr. Ronan resigned as gﬁairman of the MTA
in May 1974, and became the unsalaried Chairman of the
Port Authority of New York and New Jersey by appoint-
ment of Governors Wilson and Byrne: Governor Wilson also
appointed Dr. Ronan as a member of the New York State
ower Authority on May 16, 1974. The first gift' to Dr.
Ronan, of $75,000, was made on December 19, 1958, prior to
his appeintment on January 1, 1959, as my éecretary. Six-
teen years later on May 3, 1974, I made a second gift to Dr.
Ronan in the amount of $550,000 by way of a cash gift of
$40,000 and the forgiveness of six loans totaling $510,080 that
I had made to him over a period of seven years. The gifts
were made to Dr. Ronan in recognition of our long friend-
ship, his pressing family responsibilities and problems, and
to assist him in meeting continuing financial responsibilities

after retirement.

Fred! @y Foumglaas su_tous drlgniitg il Tafaiod suguase - $156,000
On January 14, 1965, I made a gift of $15,000 to Fred A.
Young, who had been Chief Judge of the Court of Claims of
the State of New York, but who was at that time Republican
State Chairman. Mr. ‘Young was experiencing a tragic and
continuing problem invqlvin% one of his children. Sub-
sequently, in December of 1965, I reappointed him to the
Court of Claims and in January 1966 designated him as

Presiding Judge.

Victm‘ ZBOMHa.._.'_...-.._uJL_..-;J...m..-\;,.,'.'..u'_a..v..._.’.._'_.a_..._,ﬂ.l;' 3100,000
Mr. Borella is a long-time friend, associate, and adviser of
nearly 45 years. From November 1967 to December 1971, he
served as a Special Assistant to the Governor on labor mat-
ters. In May of 1972, when he retired and moved out of state,

I gave him $100,000 as an expression of my great esteem for
him by forgiving a loan T had made in November of
1968, to help him with medical expenses and other family

obligations.
$40,000

James M. Canngn. 5 3

is a personal friend of ten years and associate for

g[x: ﬁ:f’ﬁ?,ﬁ, lf-le g:las Special Assistant to the Governor from

February 9, 1969, to December 1973. In January 1974, after

he had resigned from State government to join my personal

staff, I made a gift in the amount of $40,000 out of friend-
ship and respect.
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Je Dangig
WMr D ig s o long SR G it 89,735 for eight years. She came to work with me in the 1960’s ﬁrsz
rk dmm'1 is a long-time friend and associate who has as my personal Secretary and then as Executive ASSISta{)IO
;vor ed with me in both my personal office and in State gov- when I was Governor. In July 1972, 1 made a loan of $25,0 \
Frrgnent. He 1was a specal assistant to the Governor from to Mrs. Whitman to help in meeting Some of the financia
fe. B o o A ST din iF idn, au problems facing her after retirement. In June 1973, because
e g totaling $29,738 over a five- of my great respect and admiration for her, I gave her a
O i birthday present of stock, then valued at $19,237. ue to th(i
Mool ‘ subsequent decline in value of the stock, I made an additiona
r&M aryK K?]:sky --------------------------------- $29,624 | gift to her in January 1974 of stock valued at $3,545.
rs. Kresky served as a program associ : ‘ |
Staﬁ‘ b the _GOVemor andl:'he%ras Ass:;ctl:;lt: gc:&ea%eﬁo?ﬁi ‘ Victor B e A A — 3-38, 200
g?l"ecﬂl‘tonor finpa 72005 18 Jamnary L0k fhe became Associate Mr. Victor Andrade is not and never was a public official
irector of the Commission on Critieal Choices for Ameri- . in the United States. He was Ambassador from Bolivia a;
calrlm. Because of my great: respect and admiration for her the time I was Coordinator of Inter-Amenca:n_Aﬁalrs an
(‘ﬁnen she was married in November of 1972, T gave her a st ‘ Assistant Secretary of State. Later he was 1\:[lmster of For-
f & resent, of stock,phined &5 40 s Al of the un- eign Affairs of Bolivia. Ever since the 1940’s he has been 2
ortunate subsequenf decline of this stock, I made an addi- close personal friend of mine and a great friend of the United
tional gift of stock to her in January 1974 of $5,064. States. As a result of various political upheavals in Bolivia,
! » he has been exjled from the country at various times, living
o e Hogs 6nited States without adequate means of sup-

of e tmomotitgren-n t s e metnr 8165000 mostly in the 1it adequate means of s1b-
Mr. Hugh Morrow is a Ion%-time close persanal friend who 1 port, Over the years 1 have made gifts to him totaling $38,

served on my personal
iy s d Staﬁyig Stalze ;‘E:gmgggg I;,}; %?rr:cﬁf ﬁogumm : ntly Bobirt B. Douglass_c~<o-==-cr=-5z7mT1 TR T $139, 090. 50
32?;”;2 from m.&liy t91§39 to December 1973, In 1967 helilzi In 1973 and 1974 I made gif(;;s to a t:ust for th: beéle_f;t; (:fhz
Ith sk sblagats i i ith -ti iend ssociate on private atial
the health and education ogfahlgzrtxo cilniela:;t'elllml cogn tzc - }: g%tt;?:v'ps.;rgtmaa;}efrr\l::s aﬁlnoﬁ?cial or employee of State gov-
eral serious and tragic emergencies that occu’:'?ed i nllx?etfseyv ornment. The total of these gifts to the trust was $189,090.50.
gg’ angl Tloaned him 880,000, 1 forgave this debtltl)ln gmm;- Mr. Douglass is not the recipient of these gifts but is merely
adlc.iigtli(’) 19;?{ E&bsequepﬂ » Mr. Morrow jincurred spbstant i the trustee who administers the trust.
I madet:xagifi to ﬁraﬁorm?lg)gl%elmpurp&?s alxxl'd 12;191?4 Emmet John Hughes _ $156,000
s ,000 enabling him fo pa Em fop e ATYIES Jabitis JOJ01 LUy
that loan, and loaned him $30,000 which is still 'outstandfng)t Mr. Hughes is nfit ;.nd ne\frer W:ﬁ ad Statef (t)gimEa%éeI:fov};:i
4 homas & hens . SR b Gais) been & close friend of mine from the, ays of the ]
M g mmmmm e LS 2L 881,000 age;ninistration, when he was at various times on the Presi-
r. Stephens was a long-time friend and a man for who dent’s staff. On January 9, 1959, I gave Mr. Hughes $5,000 as
I had tremendous admiratign since the days when ha,!fl1 token of my high esteem for hirn. A year later, in the early
Tprne, wikiy salh othep WashfngtOn at )l,&he tim v}:e 1960’s, he was employed by the family office as a public rela-
Appointments Secretary to President Eisenho ereOe vlv)a/s tions adviser and speech writer. He also did some consulting
cember 31, 1965, T forgave the balancé of two loans in the S A nd 1069, In the spring of 1968, I made Mr.
: IRONKLOf 3227’0(.)0' At that time Mr. Szepl‘xve‘;slovavgss ﬂ z}: - glfghg a loanai)f $150,0b0 to enable him to make investments.
shame fRapAl (RHlinley Nopsui 0F & By 95 AR Sociti In December of 1070 T degided to Hf(grﬁ\éea;}(xllfn loan pecbecat wse
Mr. Steph e b3 eie im in 1967 in the amount of $4,000, of my personal friendship Tor Mr- g y
ment inglsgfnsge:vshol# - n.‘::llber (}:f osts in State govern- his talents as a writer.
e 1 >
a Special Assistant. period in the Executive Chamber as B e et b 42,500
Mrs. Anm W hitm, - In July 1971, T loaned Mr. John N. Mitchell an oil paint-
i I ;:n o ML_“_—: --------- A A REE R Ll $22,782 ing bny " B. Stearns to hang in the Conference Room of the
ave had a long friendship and association with Mrs. Justice Department. After his resignation as Attorney Gen-
%hliman for over twenty ?ars dating back to the 1950’s in eral in 1972, the painting was returned. This transaction was
Vashington when she was President E%iSen' ower’s Se¢retary inadvertently reported by my accountants as a gift of $6,500

which has been corrected.
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Mario Noto___ W
Inmy 1978 st fan Lo il T oo me Al 212, 850 UNIvERsITY OF CALIFORNTA; BERKELEY
gstedyas theglmfgi;?:n{e;'f";agl}fan; gfoto was inadvertently, Berkeley, Calif., November 8, ’1974.
oto was a manufactaring ot Of $12,850.00. In fact, M Dear SExaTOR CANNON AND REPRESENTATIVE RoDINO: Ac-
of the Seal of .tl};ea%;i?n(ﬁ: szfﬁaer who produced a stat'uetg; counts in the newspapers have indicated that Nelson A.
memento at Christmas time tq ;13' » Which I presented as a Rockefeller, nominee for Vice President of the United States
friends and associates, The en % ,/arge number of my close has in the period since September 1, 1967, made substantial
to Mr. Noto is being wl‘rected.rmr In reporting this as a gift loans to persons who at the time of the loans were public
; servants of the State of New York, and that he has forgiven

these loans at periods of time when the borrowers were not in

Carl Vergari____
Expendit i o o M W S 4. 63 the public service of New York. We do not know all of the
" 1% V;rm’:fcﬁﬁ?uq which I undertaok in behalf of M - facts bearing on these loans and their forgiveness. But enough
chester County ina?g'?llg::,e for Dclistrict Attorney of Westl;‘ ! evidence has been made public to raise substantial legal ques-
1971 gift re inadvertentl i tions in our minds.
B\ tox Teturn as a personal £ift t{; f?ﬁgfg}u 0’(‘};‘. Accompanying this letter to you is our opinion as to the
Rawi=e cireumstances under which a relevant statute of the New York

District Attome'y.”
Penal Code would be violated by such loans and such forgive-

ness of loans. To determine whether there has been violation

LEGALITY OF MR. ROCKEFELLER'
_ 7 > LLER'S LOANS AND G
Investigation by the Committs ki £ thi mmi i
: [ t : A of this statute, we ask your Committee to ascertain the follow-

op%d mformajsionybe};'g- iCngnérllllﬁze of tl.‘ll;‘, various 1ogns and gifts devel- ing from the nominee:

he following sections of two }II)::;,Slyje illegality of such activities, 1) at what dates were the loans made
R;:; by Governor Rockefeller ~ Cork State statutes signed into 2) ‘at what rate of interest were the loans made?

kefeller’s loans and gifts to Newcg’ﬁifgx;ﬁelgfﬁrgil:lt ifhite Gorernay i or;‘w"that Zei?llllnfry;ag :?t:gzgznsgﬁ:ﬁcipienm

S. what was the credi o

of the loans?

New York Public Officers’ Law
‘ were there any extensions of loans, and when ¢

No officer or &

legis mployee of a state ‘ 5
leg{ssgﬁf:?fe G legﬁlatlvg employee sh:ﬁe gfgéc;? em.‘bql- of the 6) at the times the loans were made, was there
ﬁ{r’e doll » 8CCePL Or receive any gift having g - ly or indirect- any understanding or expectation that the loans
e : 4TS or more whether in the formg afva ue of twenty.- would be forgiven at a later time ?
in aﬁy‘(’i‘t_‘}’g; ;g;rtaménent, hospitality, thi(;1 gnégnggé xi?s‘g 1ce, (7) atthe tzﬂles the loans were forgiven was é:here
sona! ; » under circumstances Rt » OF an understanding or expectation that the donee

nably be inferred that the gift was intended sy s bl (ould soon resume publicservieet | L

: e statute involved is importan e integrity of gov-

him, or could reaso 4
? sonably be expected to TP
J 5 to gpﬂuen&e him, in the ernment. If it has been violated by the nominee, its violation

erformance of his offic;
: al dut
For_,an‘y official action on hg 1e:r(;r ;Tms ihtended as a reward could be a disqualification for holding high office in the Gov-
Ofoll?ldll‘(?ctly offer, or make an Psuc.h qu %L'son shall, directly ernment of the United States.
(Ig)iVey :anfl:thgte agency, member of the Yégi;'iﬁ{u‘,’éﬁ"“ Or em- We would be grateful if you could distribute copies of our
e Ployee under such circumstances, or legisla- letter and memorandum to members of your Committee as
‘2" PI; :;'ic Penal Code part of ‘trhe oiziciill record.
n is.guilt Waohy ery truly yours
owingly obnﬁl?s’ lf;rog fe‘“ng unlawful gratuities when he ’ ProrEssor BarBarA BABCOCK,
upon a public servant for }IE?? agrees to confer, any benefit Stanford Law Scheol
which he was required o ving engaged in official conduct, Proressor PauL BENDER,
which he was not entitledrt:,l uthorized to perform, and for Pennsylvania Law School
Pensation. any special or additional com- _ . Proressor RoserT MN0OKIN,
During the ¢ourss of its coffirmat| _ University o lf)g’alifomia Law School, Berkeley
:nd inistration received ;n] " &n hearings the Conimittée on Rules UAN h(glumx BAMBERGER,
ors addressmg itself to the le; el' r signed by six law- school ot atholic University Law School
Frextof i rommor Rockefeller's louns Ners T ort Diersity Zam Sehocl

Proressor FrRANK NEWMAN,

and gifts to State offic
e officials. The text of the letter follows:
University of California Law School, Berkeley




N

106

Memorandum Re: New York P
: enal Law i
al Law Section 200.30

“GIVING UNLAWFUL GRATUITIES”

“A. person is guilty of givi
: giving unlawful tuiti h
:;gfxlri’n?lfl::??’ or offers or agrees to confér; galx':y bene:ﬁ:v ug(;nh:, gﬁf;
o bt oo ol ot vhich b v vl
h w 4 T wirich he ti
z&e:sli or i:éidltlonal- ‘compensation. Giving 'hv:l?:v:rlf()lfl entlm(tg s g
misdemeanor. 1.1965 ¢ 1080, eff. Sept. 1, 1967.’gm' o

The Purpgse of the Statute

The statute is part of ‘Article 200 of
: _ the Penal (Jode, “Bri
Zgézlengdl?ulbhq Servants and Related Oﬁenses.”&Ot %?-egecﬁgll?: o t{}lll-
publig se?;r ax‘;?tvl‘lri:}}:et ﬁgxme of bribery (confersing of a benefit on .
DD Seraal it e .agreement, o 1 tapsmg that the public
servasit s petion ol reby be influenced) and with the crime of re-
werding g ]tl; al misconduct (conferring of a benefit upon a, pyblic
4 wh'oll; aving violated his duty as a public servant). The %%ntute
i ic] dwe are concerned is meant to augment and supplement the
confery' and misconduct laws by prohibiting the re t.«f) offense of
Thmng a beénefit for official conduct. .
e ?il)rptmli the statute seems twofold :
e ke d: tzon,ll.)e:tsi?li?n for public services a matter of public,
(2) po keep public servants from being influenced, consciously

o = R SSE YL ;
: oﬂ%fi:)lc&irll'zc}ogslx,ﬂby gratuities for actions that are part of their
n the of the practic; entar i
1 rds actice commentary on the. statute i -
IIl{Illggey.s g%vﬁofzdgtegl ow of New ? o,r#:i{?t’l‘ ping 2 publiic slel:rvi{;t
rmines the integrity of governmental ‘pd‘x‘}ninistmtion.”
W%(}tlt G’o,nl,mwn a Crime Under the Statute
-Lhree elements are required under the stat
() A “benefit” must be 'confen“refla e i
' y = s
:edléiﬁtg;fgﬁil‘fi (ll):)yh £§lpa1 Law Secﬁonp({g(;llmgli‘cams;rgﬁ (ﬁ:
" ] ng i3 comprehensive. A' lod
lomiodnar s of it Wit gty i
: . § unt than "be:’
gc(a);st;r; with a credit standing of the recipient, :)lr Wﬁ:ﬁ: :zlzpi:’bia?
e repsgfment, or exténded beyonfl the due date, or given with
- aupectpossibgl!on of being forgiven is a “benefit.” There need not
viohtion"of,tir‘yg?‘;;%flgnbsgeg of preferentia_.l treatment to have a
31?%’.}'%.2&;_289'(1970.). eople v. La Pietra, 64 Misc. 2d 807,
. (b) The recipiént must be.a piblic servant.”
Lr;gﬁ.)ﬂicml duties for the State of New Yorkno'r aA e]::::rsor; :)l?rfg tate
ew Yorkis a “public servant.” iitese o Rl

A question mdy be raised a
ot \ ; s to whéther the recipi
&ﬂ&x«; isslrvtaénét at ’t,he time of rdceiving the beneﬁtpfl(‘i?tt}?;u::ag?tz
Lanee emid:nt ﬂgi: 0311; -\g;:zu i};}: is lr(xlot al\;va,vs necessary. It would
t t ould easily be evided i i
servant could resign and immediately after resignaetio;lf r%cg?\}gl:
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benefit for his official conduct. A court could rule that such an
evasion of the statute would not be permitted and that the statute
should be construed to include a public servant receiving a benefit
after his resignation from office. Further, if it was understood or
expected that the resigned public servant would soon resume
public service after the benefit had been received, there would
be even stronger reason for a court not to permit such evasion;
in such a case, not only would the public servant receive a benefit
for official conduct but he would go on to further public service
with the tip-roceiver’s sense of obligation to the donor.

Finally, if there were an understanding or expectation that
loans given while the recipient was in public service would be
forgiven after the term of public employment, the statutory pur-

se would seem to be violated. :

(¢) There must be an intent to confer a benefit on the public
servant for having engaged in official conduct. This is the only
intent required. An intent to corrupt the public servant or an in-
tent to influence action of the public servant is not required;
these are the kinds of intent required by the bribery statute. See
United States . Irwin, 854 F.2d 192, 196-198 (2d Cir. 1965).
cert. denied 383 U.S. 967 (1966) (similar analysis of comparable
Federal statute). Nor is an intent to reward for misconduct re-
quired; this statute aims at reward for conduct which was “re-
quired or authorized.”

The intent needed consists of two elements—to confer the bene-
fit and to relate that benefit to previous proper conduct. Thus.
for example, if a benefit is conferred upon an individual who has
performed duties as a public servant because he is “a good man”
the requisite intent to violate the statute exists. In this context.
the basis for determining whether the public servant is a “good
man” includes his previous public service, and the henefit is given.

at least in part, in recognition of that public service.

Defenses Under the Statute

The following are defenses which might be raised under the statute
but would not be sufficient to negate evidence of illegality if the ele-
ments set out above are found to exist:

(a) Good motive. Good motive may accompany the statutory
intent without negating the intent. The donor of the benefit may
be a friend of the public servant and conferring the benefit out
of friendship. But if he confers the benefit on the public servant
because he is a good public servant, the donor’s friendship for
the recipient does not diminish his intent to reward past con-
duct—indeed, the rational basis on which the donor can desire the
continuation of the public servant in office is appreciation of past
services which give rise to an expectation of future proper service.

(b) Donor's status. The statute applies to any “person” con-
ferring a benefit. The status of the donor is therefore not a de-
fense. That the donor is rich and may not value the gift very
highly has no bearing on whether 2 benefit has been conferred
upon the public servant. Further, that the donor is himself a
public servant is also irrelevant. The integrity of government is

‘& P08,
Q

(2304




108 r—ﬁ
109

undermineq by rv
] DY one publi i
4 i Public servant having a private asis for
emﬁtg, ﬁfd 1tude fr:m the public %ervantawhov}‘: becels' fed the
< eed, an vantage of the statute is f:!;fa: it 1a‘,xi b

Prevent rich oﬂicea
this ki holdets from obtainjn
‘ BININg a specia} advantuge op

of

Q! utﬂ- Sectl n 2 -35 1

York State bo Totec 3
Protect ﬂée Iélotg%'lgtgeil)f( Iifrnment service. The ang]
alo-
o )am .as been upheld a5 constity«

I]le Committee a
5 ISO I‘ecejv
3 ed legal opini rms re
iy enel alld t]'Om Edwurd J. IA) 1
g Vernor Itockef 5 2 €, WhO was

Legality of Loans and Gifts

by Nelson A. Rockefeller to

Members of his staff and to
Other State Employees

MILBANK,TWEED, HADLEY & MCCLOY
1 CHASE MANHATTAN PLAZA
NEW YORK, N. Y. 10008

212- 422-2880

41-2170-174-8



110

Legality of Loang a i

nd Gif
by Nelson a. Rockefeller :g
Members of his Staff and to

Other State EEgloxee-

I c ' :
é determining the legality of loans and gifts ¢
Public officials in New York State, )

three Separate statutory

Provisi n ons se fo. elow
V. sions must be cons idered . For the reas; t rth b 1
\ ’

the loa -
n.s and glf'ts made Y Certain
d b Nel sSon A Rockefelle! to xr

8Sta ials ere v j ] i
tate offjc Wi not in violation of or -lncc“'i'ten with

..th
e spirit of, any of these statutory Provisions
It is essential at the outset to re

time all of the loans and

call that at the

T all butfour of the gifts were made
- Rockefeller was Governor of the State of N

members of the Governor' o i

by Governor Rockef
eller; they were res i
pPonsible to, and sub
ject

to dlre £ im in th petfotmance of thelz Offic
Ction rom h 1 e i 1
a

) 4 rde . H n
the could be rewa d or influenced by PX OIIIOtions
i and

they served at his pleasure and could be dlsmlssed at hil

ins;ancea i
As subordinates to the Governor all such official
were, and w ik
: » €re supposed to be, subject not only to his infl
as chief i s
executive of the state, bu® to his orders i
R carrying

Po. #- - X whi £ 1
out the llcigs of his idmjnjﬂu ony A governo Q ai ed

to influe ) :
nce the conduct of olﬁcials of the govﬁ!ment which’ he

hEQdEd would be deIellCt in his duty '
% : s
The rela 10\ Ship bet"eeﬂ a governor and a membex: of
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his staff or other state official is not, by its nature, a re-
lationship in which "tipping® or influence-buying can have a place.
Gubernatorial recognition of official conduct is expressed by
retention of the individual in dffice or by promotion.
The New York statutes 6n "tipping" and gifts to reward
or influence official conduct are simply inapplicable to this
special relationship between the chief executive of the state and
his subordinates. Thosevstatutes are directed ‘to the activity of
a private individual outside the state goverﬁment, who seeks to re-
ward or influence a public servant through a gift or gratuity in
return for official conduct favoring thie donor. None of the benefits
conferred by Gbvernor Rdtkefeller on staté employees can be regardéd
as responsive to official conduct on the part of the recipient.
In his statements to and testimony before the Senate
Committee Governor Rockefeller has set forth the circumstances of,
and his reasons and purposes in making, the loans and gifts to
state employees.* That his overriding ‘afd consistent motivations
were friendship and assistanice in situations of need is underscored
by two fadts which have been largely igrmoréd:
‘(ay During the same period of time the Governor
made loans and gif¥s #m amounts aggregating $1,692,219
to a total of 58 other friends who were not state
émployees.
(p) During that period’a l&rdel number of

S UGN i3 3o ogxpisg odP . Borvey R T L TR ST - Py PR s

* In connection with the suggestion that the purpose of the loans
and gifts was to bind state employees to the Governor's service, it
should be noted that, of the 11 recipients, 5 left state service
before the Governor resigned in December 1973 and 4 remained as
state officials thereafter.
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othe
X state employees who worked with the Governor
’

Ener] .o o S
dnclyding individualsg on his staff, receiveg no

loans or gifts whatsoever from the Govern
or,

In addition, the so-calleq "

loans is negatived by the facts that g
interest

pattern” of giving thropgh

’ .
sSome were Becured bY c°11ateta1 Some were Iepﬂldr and

some i
were not forgiven and remain outstanding

Yo k ell r Y ows th
Pinall Governor Roc, ef er's testimon sh at

he himself gj i
gned into law the two principal statutes involved

(Transctipt, P. 1118) ang, being fully aware of their provisi

sought and received legal advice with respect to the i
making loans and gifts to Persons in the gl
(Tranlcript.,p. 1119). fThus,

volved.

employ of the state

there was no criminal intent in-

» this memorandum

'ill analyze the New !OIk statute' and then demol'lSt!ate thﬁix

ina
pplicability to the individual instances i

i
P, Law tion 200.30
Section 200.30 of the Penal Law (L

nvolved,

1865 o Ay
effective Se yreivr
ptember 1, 1967, in substance makes it unlawful

a person knowingly to confer " e

ﬂuum!ized to pe!foz'm and f C. € was not entit ed {e] any
7 or whi h h 1 t
speciﬂl or ﬂdditionﬂl compensation. The kﬂy questioﬂ is the
pu!.'pose of the beneflt conf X € nature of the
nierred. Th
purpo'e
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forbidden by the statute is emphasized by the fact that Section
200.30 is but one of the many provisions contained in Article 200
of the Penal Law, which is entitled "Bribeéry Involving Public
Servants and Related Offenses." This is also demonstrated by
Governor Rockefeller's memorandum of July 20, 1965, approving the
bill which became Section 200.30, and stating that the bill
"reorganize# and modernizes penal provisions proscribing conduct
which has traditionally been coneidered criminal in Anglo-Saxon
furisprudence."”
Section 200.30 relates solely to benefits conferred by

a person in return for official conduct theretofore performed by
the redipierit. It is a logiecal and necessary exten;ion of other
provisions in ‘the bribery laws of New York relating to payments
made prospectivély to influence action or induce misconduct (see
Sections 200.00 - 200.50). It prohibits benefits or “tips" to
public officials by private citizens having business with the state
governmeént. As indicated in the Practice Commentary to NcKinney's
publication of the section, the purpose of the statute is to pre-
vent persons dealing with the government from obtaining preferred
treatment over others who deal with the govermment: "The giver

of unlawful gratuities to a puﬁlic servant puts all citizens who

have' dealings with such venal official under pressure to "tiph®
or risk his disfavor." (underscoring supplied)

The statute is similar in some respects to an earlier
federal law, 18 U.S.C. Sec. 201(f). Relying on the leading case

interpreting this federal statute, United States v. Ixrwin, 354 F.

2d 192 (2nd Cir. 1965), cert. denied, 383 U.S. 967 (1967), the



i .
Plac ce COIIllelﬂ:al:y !ecognizes that Sec. 200 30 18 de'igned to

to one membe
L of the public over another." 354 F. 24
( underncoring Supplied) . . g

It isg
thus clear that the benefit, ¢o be unlawful
’

must be n‘ade by One who il govelﬂed or Iegulated b! not b’ One
< 4

who employs ang
Supervises, the i
Public officer in
question,

engaged in pof
ficial conduct, This is the teaéhing of th
e only

two reporte i
d cases Anterproting Section 200.30 8ince jt be
Came

effectiye in 1967, bi 8:V: €1
a ¢
of Y

30 N.Y. 29 838, 28¢ N.E. 24 466, 335 y

Peoele V. LﬂPietIay 316 N-!-s. 2d 289 (D-Ct- suffolk Co. '] 19,0) .
See u‘o POOEI e v. C ark 242 N.Y . 3 3 N‘E- 631 1926
1 r ’l 7l g 1 ( )

dealing with a related statute
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In DiMase, a ¢ity official was accused of offering a
gratuity to a county officer in violation of Section 200,30,
While the trial commissioner found the evidence ineonclusive oﬁ

the issue of the donor's intent, the City Mandger reversed

this finding and dismissed the city official. The Appellate

Division reversed the decisien of the City Manager, finding
insufficient evidence on the issue of the donor's intent, 37
App:Div, 2nd 972 (1972). The Court of Appeals affirmed. 30 N.Y.
.2a 838 (1972). a;hus, it may be concluded that the highest

Court in New York requires, as an essential element of the
offenge defined in Section 200.30, a clear showing that the

benefit was c¢onferred with the intent 4o reward.a public servant

in return for his having engaged in offieial conduet.
In LaPietra,supra, (decided two years before the final

decisiom in DiMase), after two patrolmen had completed an

" investigatien of an accident involving a vehicle owned by the
defendant's corporation; the defemdant gave one patrolman, in
the presence of the second, a ten dollar bill and stated: "Hexe,
you- flellows, buy some coffee for all the homework you have done,"
The defendant was convicted of vieolating Section 200,30 and
the Court, on a coram nobis appiication, held that the facts
adduced during the trial elearly cfz:tituted a crime under

Section 200,30,
It has been contended that Section 200,30 embraces

benefits to public servants both before they enter and after
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they leave rnme.
gov
Whi : , e At service. rhe language of Section 200, 3
. Ch refers to "a public servant," &
2 .
hig 1ntetp:etat$on. In Contrase, ¢t
(18 u.s.c, 8 201 (£)) €Xpreg

only "any pPublic officialn

simply doeg not support
he federa) "tipging® statute
sly includeg within itg 8Cope not

but alse any "former Public official
Public offdcial, " The New fork Statute
the federal Statute, doeg not go thisg ]
a public Servant at the

time of l‘eceipt of the
benefit. Undex theSe cizmtm‘ces 0.
’

Struction of the New York Btatute

Public officialg would be go overl
tiqnal. In New York

of the rohib‘l ted P. yr
( ' P. COnduct « Peo le V. Byron » 17 N Y 2nd 64
: X, 2n
1966 Both the Purpose and lanquage of Sec 200
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Thus, whether a loan imposing the obligation of repay-
ment, with or without interest, is to be regarded as a "benefit"
within the statute, the reguisite intent to reward for past
service is #bsent in the sitpations before the Committee. The
loans and gifts were acts of friepdship and compassion, ndot

related to the service performed by the recipient. This con-
clusion is substantiated Sy the uncontroverted facts that Governor
Rockefeller made substantial loans and gifts to other persons

in private life under similar circumstances and that he did not
make any loang or gifts to the many other cbnparable officials

in his adminigtration who served well but whose gircumstances

were different.

2. Public Officers Law, Section. 73 (5)

Section 73 (5) of the Public Officers Law (L. 1965

c¢. 1012), which became effective on Janoary 1, 1966, provides in
material part that no person ghall, directly or indirectly, offer
or make any gift of $25 or more in the form of money, a loan or
otherﬁise, to any "officer or employee of a state agency"”" and no
such officer or employee shall receive an} such gift "under
circumstances in which it could reasonably be inferred that the
gift was intended to influence him, or could reasonably be ex-
pected to influence him, in the performance of his official
duties or was intended as a xcwaxjkfor any official action on his
part." Section 73(10)providea in substance that "apy person who
knowingly and intentionally violates the pmvisidns of Eec.tion

73(5i]. « + shall be guilty of a misdemeanor."
Section 73 (5) applies to officers and employees of a
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anything other than for the stated purpose.
As in the case of & 200.30 of the Penal Law, this pro-

visionh of the Public Officers Law is intended, in part, to

avoid secret influence over certain public officials. In the

case of Governor Rockefeller, the influence was open and much
publicized: the Governor had named each official to his state
office, and the official remained in office at the pleasure of

the Governor.
3. Civil Serwice Law, Section 135

Section 135 of the Civil Service Law, effective with
amendments since 1901, provides in essence that no person employed
in any state department, bureau, commission, or office shall
receive "any extra. salary or compensation in addition to" that

fixed by law, except for overtime pay.
The terms employed in Section 135 are nowhere defined
in the statute, nor has there been any qqgo;ted case gqpstruiq%

them. Perhaps significantly, no penalty whatsoever is prescribed

for violation of Section 135.
A simple reading of Section 135 indicates that it is

concerned solely with salaries and compensation paid by the
state, and not with loans, gifts or other beneﬁ;ﬁs proyvided fram
non-state sources. The legislative purpose was ". . . to prevent
employees rendering clerical services from obtaining compensation
under the theory of ﬁorking overtime . . . and thus to obviate
constant claims for extra services by clerks working for stated
1911 Op. Atty.Gen. 92, 602.

salaries."”
It has been ruled that it is not a violation of this

provision for a state empioyee to receive outside compensation
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November 18, 1974

Application of New York Public Officers Law §73(5)
to Certain Gifts and Loans
from Nelson A. Rockefeller to Edward J. Logue

. I. Introduction
The relevant facts concerning the purpose, amount,
and dates of gifts and loans made by Governor Nelson A.
Rockefeller to Edward J. Logue are set forth in Mr. Loéue's
statement, to the Senate Committeé on Rules and Administration

on November 18, 1974 in connection with Committee hearings

‘on Governor Rockefeller's confirmation as Vice President of

the United States. A copy of that statement is attached

hereto.
This memorandum reviews the extent, if any, to

which New York Public Officers Law §73(5) might apply to any

of such gifts or loans.

II. Applicable Law

New York Public Officers Law §73(5) provides as

follows:

"5, No officer or employee of a state agengy,
member of the legislature or legislative employee
shall, directly or indirectly, solicit, accept or
receive any gift having a value of twenty-five
dollars or more whether in the form of money,
service, loan, travel, entertainment, hospitality,
thing or promise, or in any other form, under
circumstances in which it could reasonably be

41-2170-74-9
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C. Influencing Official Duties

Under §73(5), a prohibited gift to a public officer

must be made "under circumstances in which it could reason-

ably be inferred that the gift was intended to influence

.him, or could reasonably be expected to influence him, in

the performance of his official duties or was intended as a

reward for any official action on his part." (emphasis added).

In the case of Governor Rockefeller's "gifts" to
Mr. Logue, it is clear that they could not teasonably be
intended or expected to influence Mr. Logue's official
duties. These duties consist of carrying out the office of
President and Chief Executive Officer of UDC. Pursuant to
§4(1) of the New York State Urban Development Corpﬁration Act,
the President is appointed by the Governor and “shall serve
at the pleasure of the Governor." By statute, then, Mr.
Logue ;erved at Governor Rockefeller's pleasure (as he
presently serves at Governor Wilson's pleasure) and, as
such, Teported directly to the Governor. Quite apart from
‘any gifts, Governor Rockefeller was able to "influence" Mr.
Logue's official duties simply by directiné him to adopt a
particular course of action and removing him from office if
he failed to comply. 1In addition, since the Governor also
appointed the Board of Directors and had complete responsibility
for all executive legislative proposals and appropriation

requests for UDC, he was in a position to exercise virtually
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‘November 18, 1974

Application of New York Penal Law §200.35
to Certain Gifts and Loans
from Nelson A. Rockefeller to Edward J. Logue

-

I. Introduction
The relevant facts concerning the purpose, amount,
and dates of gifts and loans made by Governor Nelson A.
Rockefeller to Edward J. Logue are set forth in Mr. Logue's
statement to the Senate Committee on Rules and Administration
on November 18, 1974 in connection with Committee hearings

on Governor Rockefeller's confirmation as Vice President of

‘the United States. A copy of that statement is attached

hereto.

This memorandum reviews the extent, if any, to
which New York Penal Law §200.35 might apply to any of such

gifts or loans.

II. Applicable Law

New York Penal Law §200.35 provides as follows:

"§200.35 Receiving unlawful gratuities

"A public servant is guilty of receiving unlawful
gratuities when he solicits, accepts or agrees to
accept any benefit for having engaged in official
conduct which he was required or authorized to
perform, and for which he was not entitled to any
special or additional compensation.

"Receiving unlawful gratuities is a class A mis-
demeanor."
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thereafter ;equired to enable his family to relocate to

New York. Note, however, that this agreemeht to accept such
penefits occurred well before Mr. Logue became a "public
servant" under the statute and cannot, therefore, constitute
a violation of 5200.3;.

It is possible that, having agreed to accept
benefits before becoming a public servant, Mr. Logue may
also be deemed to have "accepted" at least some of such
penefits after he had become a public servant. If so,
this reasoning would apply to both the July 23, 1968 and
August 26, 1968 gifts from Governor Rockefeller (in the
amounts of $5,000 and $6,839, respectively), as well as to
the May 5 and May 29, 1969 installments of the interest-free

loan which Governor Rockefeller made to Mr. Logue. pursuant

to their April, 1968 understanding.

C. Reward for Official Conduct

If Mr. Logue was a "public servant" who "accepted"

benefits in July and August, 1968 and May, 1969, §200.35
still has no application unless such benefits are accepted

"for having engaged in official conduct which he was re-

quired oxr authorized to perform.” This requirement is es-

sential to carry out the overall purpose of the statute.
McKinney's Practice Commentary'(prepared by Professor Richard
G. Denzer and Peter McQuillan, the Penal Law's principal
draftsmen) cites U.S. v. Irwin, 354 F2d 192 (2d Cir.1965)

cert. den. 383 U.S. 967 (1966) to the effect that the
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for example, People v. La Pietra, 64 Misc.2d 807, 316 N.Y.S.

24 289 (Dst.Ct., Suffolk Co. 1970), in which the Court,
citing Irwin, indicated that the benefits in question must

be given "by reason of ‘some official act performed or to be

performed by the public servant." See also People v. Walsh,
138 Misc. 159, 246 N.Y.S. 171 (Ct.of Gen.Ses., N.Y.Co.
1930), in which, under the predecessor of §200.35, the Court

again required that the benefits in question be "for doing

and performing an official act.” The Court there went on to

state:

"To sustain an indictment against a public of-
ficer...it is essential that the evidence es-
tablish that the emolument, gratuity, and ad-
vantage were received by him as a direct con-
sequence of an official act" (246 N.Y.S. ‘at 172)

(emphasis added).

Where the evidence failed to establish that a payment to a
public official was for an act or service within the scope

of his employment, an indictment under the predecessor to
People v. Samuels, 188 Misc. 607, 71

§200.35 was dismissed.
N.Y.S.2d 562, 564 (County Ct., Suffolk Co. 1947).  See also

People v. Solomon, 212 N.Y. 446 (1914) (payment must be for

"doing or omitting to do certain enumerated acts"); Seymour
v. Larkin, 254 App. Div. 215, 4 N.Y.2d 428 (4th Dept. 1938);

People v. Kuss, 57 Misc. 24 425, 292 N.Y.S. 24 720 (S.Ct.

West. Co. 1968), aff'd. 36 App. Div. 2d 306, 320 N.Y.S.2d
169 (2nd Dept. 1971) aff'd. 32 N.Y. 2d 436, 345 N.Y.S.2d

1002 (1973) for the requirement for an "official act" under

the'predecessor to §200.35.
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consideration since Governor Rockefeller could hardly have
contributed $11,839 to Mr. Logue "for" his first two months
as President of UDC. 1Indeed, this analysis is probably ap-
Plicable to the May, 1969 loans as well, which were made
before Mr. Logue had compléted his'first year in the job. It
is simply not credible, under any r;ading of the statute,
that such "benefits" were extended to Mr. Logue on account

of his services during this brief period.

D. Narrow Constructiom of Criminal Statute

In New York, as elsewhere, it is well established
that criminal statutes must be narrowly construed according
to the fair import of their terms.: The burpose of such nar-
row construction is to furnish fair and uQeéuivocal warning
of the nature of the prohibited conduct. N.Y. Penal Law

§1.05(2); People v. Byron, 17 N.Y. 24 64 (1966). In the

present case, both the purpose and language of §200.35--as

well as every single reported case of which we are aware--

restrict the scope of that section to official acts dealing

with members of the public. For a United States Senate

Committee to extend §200.35 beyond limits repeatedly drawn
by the New York Courts is in direct conflict with New York's

established policy for the construction of its criminal laws

and that statute in particular. See, in this connection,

People v. Clark, 232 N.Y. 313, 151 N.E. 631 (1926) holding

that a specific intent to receive unlawful compensation must
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BERLE, BUTZEL & KASS

By

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
OFFICE oF THE ATTORNEY (FENERAL,
Washington, D.C., September 20, 197}4.
Hon. Howarp W. Canwox,
Chairman, Committee on Rules and Administration, United
States Senate, Washington, D.C.

Dear MRr. CHAIRMAN : This is in response to your letter to
the Attorney General of September 16 in connection with the
hearings to be held by your committee on the nomination of
gelson A. Rockefeller to be Vice President of the United

tates.

You have asked for a summary and analysis of the Federal
conflict of interest law, 18 U.S.C. 208, and of any other stat-
utes which might apply to Mr. Rockefeller if he were con-
firmed as Vgnce President. In addition, you have specifically
requested an opinion as to whether it would be lawful for Mr.
Rockefeller, while serving as Vice President, to be an officer,
director or stockholder of, or to hold any other beneficial in-
terest in, any company having contracts with any agency of
the United States Government.

I should note at the outset that the legislative history of the
Twenty-Fifth Amendment, pursuant to which Mr. Rockefel-
ler has been nominated as Vice President, is silent as to the
question of conflict of interest; the subject does not appear to
have been of any concern to the Congress when it proposed
the amendment. There are, however, two statutes which are
relevant to the questions you raise. One, as noted in your let-
ter, is 18 U.S.C. 208; the other is 18 U.S.C. 431.

18 U.S.C. 208

In substance, 18 U.S.C. 208(a) prohibits an officer or em-
ployee of the “executive branch” from participating person-
ally and substantially in any particular matter in which “to
his knowledge,” he, hig spouse, minor child, partner or ar-
ganization in which he is serving as officer, director or trustee
has a financial interest. Section 208(b) authorizes a waiver of
the prohibition by the “official responsible for appointment”
where the outside financial interest is deemed not substantial
enough to affect the integrity of the officer’s or employee’s
services.

To summarize the views expressed in detail below : Section
208 does not exgresaly apply to t_he Vice President. Some of
its language and its legislative history indicate the contrary.
Morepver, serious, doubt as to constitutionality urges against
an interprefation which would render Section 208 applicable
to the President; and it seems almost certain that the Presi-
dent and Vice President. were intended to be treated alike.
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Section 208(a) prohibits an “officer or employee of the exec-
utive branch” ﬂarticipati_ng as such in‘' a particular
matter i ‘which, %o is krowledge,” he, his spouse, minor
child, ' parther or other busihess asSociates with which he is
connected, have a financial interest,

The section does not refer
to, or specifically cover, the President ¢y Vice President.
Morepver, the Ig slative ,‘nistory of sections 202-209 (the con-
flict of interest provisions), as évidenced by, committee reports
and debates in the Senate and the House of Representatives,
does not demonstrate that section 208 was intended to apply
to the Chief Executive and his immediate successor. In seek-

ing to ascertain the intention of C&Iﬁ@, it"is useful to refer
to the report, Conyfict o{ I'nterest dnd Federal Service (1’96(? -
prepared by the Specinl Committes on the Federal Conflict 6f
Interest Laws, the Association of the Bar of the City of
New York (Bar Association Report), where it was said
(Pp. 16-17) :

“The role of the Presidelicy is a ‘vital aspect, of the admin-
istration of confliet of interst restrictions in the executive
branch, and the proper funeétion of the Chief Rkécitive in
this field is a major center of consideration in this study.
But the conflict of interest problems of the President gnd
the Vice President as individual persons must inevitabl
bé treated separately from the rest of the exécutive brarich.
For example, as Chief of State, the President is the inevitable
target of a rutining stream of symbolie gifts pouring in from
all over the ‘world, for reasons ranging from the best to the
worst. The uniqueness of the President’s situation is also
illustrated by the fact that disqualification of the President
from policy “decisions beca

use of personal conflicting' inter-
ests is inconceivable. Personal confliet of interest problems of

thé Presidency and the Vice Presidericy are uniqué and are
therefore not within the scope of tiiis book.”

ile the recommendations of the Bar Association were

not entirely accepted in the conflict of interest legislation as

enacted, both the House and Senate committees reporting
on the bill and members of Con

s in debate acknowledged
the contributions made by the%ﬁv Association in the ulti-
mate formulation of the legislation. See, e.g., H. Rept. No.
748, 87th Cong., 1st Sess. 8 ( 1961) ; 8. Rept. No. 2213, 87th
Cong., 2d Sess. 4 (1962). Tt seems most unlikely that dis-
agreement on so important an aspect of the Bar Associa-
tion’s report—that personal con

flict of interest problems of
the President and the Vice Presi

esident “must inevitably be
treated separately from the rest of the e

xecutive branch”—
would have gone without mention by both committees and in
floor debate. I believe it more reasonable’ to conclude that

ongress in speaking of an “officer or emplovge of the execu-
tive branch” in sedtion 908 meant to in‘elude only those
“officers of the TTnited States” who receive their abnoinfment
from the President nnder Article II. section 3. of the Clonhsti-
tution and those subordinate

officials wha are employed by
departments and agencies in the executive branch.
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in 5 U.S.C. 2106, which deals
vided : “For the purposes of this title. ‘Member of Congress’
member of the Senate or the House of Representatives. . . .
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‘t‘ra_cts by a “Member” of Congress. Tt prohibits the member
directly or indirectly, himself or by any person in trust for
him, or for his use or benefit, or on his account” from under-
taking, executing, holding, or enjoying, in whole or in part,
any contract made on behalf of the United States or any
agency thereof, by any officer or employee authorized to make
contracts on its behalf.
¥ he key issue thus is whether the Vice President is a
Member of . . . Congress” within the meaning of 18 U.S.C.
431. I do not so regard him. Certainly the Vice President is
not a Member of Congress as that term is used in the Consti-
tution. To be sure, for certain purposes he can be regarded as
being in the legislative branch. Thus, for example, the Vice
President is empowered to be President of the Senate and to
vote in the event of an equal division in the Senate. Art. 1,
sec. 3, cl. 4. Unlike Members of the Senate, however, the Vice
President (like the President) is subject to impeachment.
Art. 11, sec. 4. Moreover, while clauses 1 and 2 of section 5
of Article I provide that each House shall be the judge of
the elections, returns and qualifications of its own “mem-
bers” and may punish them for disorderly behavior and expel
them, these clauses plainly do not apply to the Vice Presi-
dent. The Constitution also provides that no person holding
“any Office under the United States” (which, of course.
includes the Vice President), shall be a “Member of either
House” during his continuance in office. Art. T, sec. 6, cl. 2.
CQnSIdered as a whole, these provisions indicate that the
Vice President has a unique status in the legislative branch.
but not the status of a “Member” of the Congress within the
meaning of the Constitution. )
_ Turning next to the meaning of “Member . . . of Congress”
in the precise context of 18 U.S.C\. 431 : Since it is a criminal
statute, to be strictly construed, T cannot interpret it to apply
to the Vice President when it makes no specific reference
to him, and when he is not regarded as a “Member” of
either the House of Representatives or the Senate (the Con-
gress) under the Constitution. It should be noted that the
statute in question was passed less than twenty years after
the Constitution was written, so that it is not unreasonable
to assume a parallel use of terminology. This is particularly
the case Since our examination of the legislative history of
that section discloses no mention whatever of the Vice Presi-
dent. Congress has not been at a loss for words when it
intends a statute. criminal or ecivil, to reach offenses against
a Vice President or to apply to him in other respects.! For
these reasons. T conclude that the statute does not apply to
that office. ; '
If you have anv further specific questions. T will be glad
to be of whatever help T can to the Committee,
Sincerely,
Lavrexce H. Strservax,
Acting Attorney General.

1 Seess.q., L8 V. 8, €. 8715 1751 : 10 U.S.C. 888, 9342(a) : 5 U.S.C. 2106. For example,
with Government organization and emplovees, it'is pro-
,means the Vice President, a
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APPENDIX A

ACTS AFFECTING A PERSONAL FINANCIAL
INTEREST

18 U.S.C. 208,

ection (b) hereof, who-
the executive branch of
ependent agency of

i bs
«(a) Except as permitted by su
everg, l))eing an officer or errgglllc‘syg% ;Ifly b
- Um"zeg gzzﬁ ?)r?‘;ejfr?he District of Columbia, mclﬁdmagn 3
— Urlll éovernmént employee, participates personathir‘ou 3
Spl?)mtzmially as a Government officer or employe‘f};e rendegr-
?lltlacission approval, disapproval, recommepda§103i,Cial JoRger
‘o of advice, investigation, or otherwise, in a ju A
D din a plication, request for a ruling or o pret,
pr-ocete. g::ox?tract claim, controversy, charge, accus? dore’
mlnatl(g;‘, other par’ticular matter in which, to his 'kno‘}‘;ighbh >
%gre}?ié spouse, minor child, partner, organlzatlonegll vlvoyee e
is ,serving as officer, Qiret(;tor, tﬁl}ft;eﬁ g)ririxéeli“so;egog loya g? o
nization w 1

%12357 Eg?ogrf;n;%naent concerning prospective employment,

jal interest— 4 3 ;
ha‘s‘ghfﬁ?rllo%aﬁrllreld not more than $10,000, or imprisoned no

or both. y

m(‘)‘r Fb%hasllutl)vggc%’f(?; S(, a) hereof shall not apply (})11f tbeo ?fsﬁi(l:)(ig
mplovee first advises the Government officia re(slspc e

(f)r o ointment to his position of the nature an S
ko £ the judicial or other proceeding, applic : o
Smncei foor a ruIing or other determination, contract,tc_z all ar,'
reqt;es ersy, charge, accusation, arrest, or ot_hex: par 12\; i
Conttr ¥ ndv ’makes full disclosure of thq ﬁn{lncml 13te1];,es e
o 'ersa in advance a written determination ma ls dve HUth
I‘%({e}vi% that the interest is not so subst_antlal as }foh eGovern_
?kcia to affect the integrity of the services which t e2) Wi
. egf may expect from such officer or employee orl(R k¥ s,ter
It:aer?eral IXIlG or regulation published in thefFedertairl ; rzg(;uirez
thn fuspes] intere% han beﬁiixge::%gtfgmoigrgr too inconse-

eof as’ cor

gluegtsislf ﬁ)alzsf%e(c%)thir integrity of Government officers’ or
. bhl
employees’ services. sfiob T oy

18 U.S.C. 431, CONTRACTS BY MEM‘B];RS' OF CONGRESS

“'Who;ever, being a Member of or Delegate to }?o}rigé‘esszd i)ll_‘
a Resident Commissioner, either before or aftex; ; er er(slon o
fied. directly or indirectly. himself, or by any o ﬁi paccount
trust for him, or for his use or benefit, or on his i i
indertakes, executes, holds, or enjoys, 1n whole 01];) 1£ Ii‘f ok
1contract' or agreement, made or enter%d into Hfl’ﬁ e %(1) o isnidi

ited States or any agency thereof, by any officer or
I{;‘gltggizse?tti make }(,:OIRracts on its behalf, shall be fined not
a 0956
00. - . . .

m(c)creltlhal;?ggts or agreements made in violation of this se((i-
ti Ash:% be void; and whenever any sum of money 1s ad-

ion shd
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vanced by the United States or any agency thereof, in consid-
eration of any such contract or

agreement, it shall forthwith
be repaid ; and in case of failu

re or refusal to repay the same
when demanded by the pro

per officer of the department or
agency under whose authority

such contract or agreement
shall have been made or entered into, suit shall at once be
brought against the person so failing or refusing and his
sureties for the recovery of th

e money so gdvanced.”
Senator Robert C. Byrd hi

ghlighted mang of the Committee’s
concerns, and its responsibilities i

, When he

rected the following
comments to the legality of the loans and gifts:

ared part of his wealth with those
he loved and trusted,

. I do not feel that any of us would want to deny confirma-
tion to Governor Rockefeller

because he shared part of his
wealth with those he had loved and trusted and it would be
an easy decision indeed if it were such a simple matter.
Those of us who have the responsibility for confirmation
feel that the matter may go deeper than this, He made loans
and gifts among officers and employees of the State agencies
and these public employees ans public_servants numbered
from half a dozen to a dozen rsons and of course he might
have trusted many others, but the loans and gifts were
confined to this small seemingly select group. Your oase is an
outstanding one in that the total of gifts has been pointed
out here over a period of years as amounting to $625,000
and nothing has been said about the

interest on those gifts.
I sought, in my own way a mome

) nt ago, to try to reach
an estimate of the interest, the amount of interest that you
would have had to {my on these loans over this period of
time, if they had all carried & 4-percent interest rate, and
I came up ‘with a very conservative estimate, I think, of
something like $152,000. T am not an accountant but in my
rough way of computation here I came up with at least
$152,000 which interest in itself constituted quite a consid-
erable gift.

I cannot say, and of course I do not say, that any ulterior
motive on your part or on Mr. Rockefeller’s part is to be as-
cribed to any of the gifts

, you had responsibility over 61,000
employees, you negotiated with major union contracts, and
there were construction programs totaling in the billions of
dollars. Durin orcgi

£ all this time you solicited—ace ng to your
own statement—various loans from

Mr. Rockefeller. These
were non-interest-bearing loans. Certain of them extended
beyond the normal maturity dates.

Now while Mr. Rockefeller was before the committee sev-
eral of us asked long and tedious and seemingly repetitious
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servant should not get .
job any extra gratuit : _
%ong;‘,ieﬁngrog f;:.he eﬁ:ments of thgt statu{ef‘l?;' t}ﬁ;vtxgg b;ione his
otiered to the public servant, That is then&?; be

: 5 on

0 you were benefi 3
threiw}})lenggt was confef":g(.iYou ere & public servant at the time
e final element, how, CH N -
of the stat e NOWever, which is requir FERAC
that is a :r:)lfx%lesf ov having engaged in olgciale %(f:(li‘ tho }’a Aon
_ ome element. Mr. Rockefelley indicgge,d t?lmz
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our
your services were outstanding and exemplary, and from that -

efeller
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many instances to be merely coincidental, in which the crucial
elerent—not identical in every case—is always missing. In
other words, it seems that each case was drawn to preclude the
crucial element, and it was done by basing the gift or benefit
on friendship, and so forth, And while, as I say, an inference
may be properly drawn in these various cases, without more,
I think the benefit of any doubt ought to be given to the per-
son invalved—in this case the riominee, especially in view of
the fact that he is the President’s choice and the country does
need a Vice President. ‘ .

I think what it boils down to is simply the question I raised
when Mr. Rockefeller first came before this committee and
that is the potential preblem that could occur when, tremen-
dous wealth is tied to the tremendous pewer of high political
office. This question was raised again by Mr. Rockefeller
himself in his prepared statement when he appeared before
the committee lask week. As to the New York statutes, they

involve the misuse, consciously or subconsciously, inten-
of ‘wealth by a holder of high

tionally or .uni%tentiona]lty, _ C #
office and the’coljcomitant undermining of the intégrity of

Government. :
T these hearings have accomplished nothing more, they

have conveyéd to you, Mr. Ronan, and to Mr. Rockefeller
especially, I wdyld think, a greater awareness of these po-
tential dangérs, and by his own words he has so stated.

He has undergone some trial and travail—some refer to it
as an ordeal—but it was an ordeal to which he was entitled,
and, having felt the pressure and the pressure which is yet
tocomé in the other body he will perhaps have emerged as a
wiser man and perhaps more fit than ever for the high office
of the Vice President. The confidence of the people in the
political system may also, hopefully, have been strengthened.

In evaluating the impact of the possible legality of loans and gifts
made by Governor Rockefeller the Committee carefully refrained
from any attempt to preempt the responsibility of U.S. Government
and State authorities charged with the task of making a legal deter-
mination concerning these actions. The Committee feels it is not a
proper forum to accomplish that end. However, consideration was
necessary, supported by in-depth questioning, to develep a platform
from which the potential impact on the fitness of Governor Rockefeller
could be determined. : o '

L {53

mOPRIETYOF L ANDIA)AN“Q b ;,) o 34t ogn
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What the man does with his own money after he has satisfied
his obligations to the Federal Government [is his own busi-
ness], and we do not impose that kind of restriction on Sen-
ators or any other public official.

Nominer’s InvoLveMeENT Wit VICTOR J. Lasky’s Boox “ARTHUR J.
GorpeERG : THE Orp AND THE NEW”

Sometime between July 1 and July 10, 1970, John Wells, partner in
the law firm of Royall, Koegel, and Wells, discussed with Victor J.
Lasky the idea of a book on Arthur J. Goldberg. Although Wells
was not involved in the 1970 Rockefeller campaign, he had in past
campaigns been a most. active participant. Since Goldberg was going
to run against Rockefeller, Wells was of the opinion that the public
should be apprised that Goldberg had only held appointed positions.
such as Secretary of Labor, Supreme Court J ustice, and United Na-
tions Ambassador, as opposed to an elected office and was, therefore,
in a position of expressing views and positions without ever having
them tested. He also thought that the book could make a profit.

Lasky had considerable material and was willing to write a book
along the lines described by Wells for a fee which was set later at
€10,000. Lasky also made preliminary arrangements with Neil Me-
Caffrey, president of Arlington House to publish the book.

Having made these preliminary arrangements, Wells then met, with
Nelson Rockefeller and in his testimony he stated :

I told the Governor why I thought a book reviewing Mr.
Goldberg’s record and actions over the years was badly
noeded. 1 said a mass of material had been written on Mr.
Goldberg, but it was newspaper and magazine treatment, and
had never been brought together and subjected to critical
scrutiny as a whole.

T said Mr. Goldberg’s performance in office as Secretary
of Labor, as a member of the Supreme Court, and as U.N.
Ambassador, should be reviewed as well as the methods he
adopted to secure the Democratic nomination for Governor.

1 said that the job merely required pulling together pub-
lished material, subjecting it to critical serutiny, and in effect
writing an opposition brief on Mr. Goldberg’s record.

T also said that in my judgment Mr. Goldberg had not met
the five year residency requirement of the State Constitution.
T said that I proposed to set up a corporation to sponsor the
book and that it would contract with Lasky and the publisher.
T said T needed an investor, if this program of public educa-
tion were to proceed.

I said T thought the book would be commercially feasible,
that is, it could be done at a profit—could be. Sales would
be ‘made through the publisher’s normal commercial chan-

nels and to organizations, committees, and individuals sup-
porting the Governor for reelection.

Above all, and this is important, T made it very clear that
this would not be a vicious, low, personal scandalous attack.
Tt would not be one of that genre of writings which had been
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referred to by the Committee and by others here of under.
handed, nasty stuft.

That Wwas not the intention, and that is not what was done,
I said if the content of the book wou

Id be carefully re-
viewed from a factual and legal point of view, there would
be nothing libelous. In short, this would be g com letely
legitimate effort to bring the fac i (f

1 I ts concerning Mr. Gol berg’s
past views and actions, that is hig record, into public view

for the purpose of legitimate criticism,
.Governor Rockefeller Was noncommittal. He listened and
did not say yes, no, or maybe,

e meeting ended on’a mutual “nice to see you” basis,

’ Saw a copy of the book,
but I never really looked at it,

Laurance Rockefeller testified that his brother’s
oyer, approached him on the matter and said it
mnercial venture, that th

: ) going to be interviewed by the
‘BI concerning my investment in the book. I do not recall

discussing the book with anyone other than Mrs, Boyer. I am
confident that I never discussed it with my brother Nelson.
It can only be presumed that Louise Boyer so informed Nelson
Rockefeller. Nelson Rockefeller also contacted Donal O’Brien, a
Rockei:'eller attorney, and told

r t him to see what he could do to help
Wells in his venture, O’Brien discussed the book with Wells and de-
cided that the Project would be handled by hi

he project. It was hig impression that

it was Orr’s

that a nominee be appointed. Rich ;
attorney with his firm, Joseph Jacoyini of Philadelphia, to be the
nominee and informed him hig contact would be Robert Orr.

secretary, Mrs.
was to be a com-
v ey were looking for stockholders and would
he participate and help put together a group to finance the publica-
tion. Laurance Rockefeller also state

Y—-
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On October 12, 1971, Jacovini v

was replacing Robert Orr as his contact. o (1t Arthur Rashap

Was instructed to execyte a consent in 1

18, 1971, and LPT w issolv . i
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a chance to make a profit. He also was fully cognizant of the political
overtones, y

Wells wus not involved in the campaign, but he certainly was mter-
ested in furthering Rockeféller’s chances for victory. Nelson Rocke-
feller admits that he treated the idea of the book, as presented to him
by Wells in the short discussion, all tao hastily and shoud have killed
it at the time. While he did not gjve a cent to the publication, he did
fyrther its progress by contacting his brother Laurance and requesting
that Laurance find the necessiry investors far the book, and also by
contacting one of his attorneys, Donal O’Brien, requesting that he get
together with Wells to see wihat could be worked out. Wells took these
instructions from Nelson Rockefeller as being tantamount to a go-
ahead to get the book published. p

So far as Laurance Rockefeller was concerned, he did not know what
was to be in the hook, he never saw a manusecript or discussed the book
in any detail, and in fact never saw 'a copy of the book prior to the
time gxe issue was raised récently. When he was approached by Nelson
Rockefeller’s secretary with the request to find investors for the ven-
ture, there was no question in his mind that the book had the backing
of his brother Nelson, or it would pever have been brogght’ to his atten-
tion by Nelson’s secretary, Louise Boyer. As the sum involved was not

ignifieant in his mind and as he did not have time to look for investors
within the timeframe necessary, to get the book publgsf}ed during the
campaign, he opted to underwrite the book himself until investors could
be found. Laurance had no other role to play in the entire process.

O’Brien, Wells, and Orr never really made a search for any investors.
Once they had the money in the form of an underwriting from
Laurance Rockefeller, that ended that phase of the operation. Neither
O’Brien nor Orr were invelved in Nelson Rockefeller’s political cam-
paigns, but are concerned primarily with the legal aspects of his affairs.
They recognized the pqlitical overtones of the houk, but looked upon it
as a business venture.

In keeping with the policy and procedures followed normally by the
Rockefellers, in many transactions a nominee is used to keep the Rock-
efeller name from being ifvolved in any way. Usually, this procedure
is adopted to prevent costs from escalating once it is known that Rock-
efeller is interested in a project. In this case, it can only be assumed
that this procedure was used to keep anyone from knowipg that
Rockefe]ler was in any way invelved with the publication of the book
on Arthur Goldberg. The creation of a corporation was entirely legal,
and it also f;lrthered the aim of keeping the Rockefeller name from
being involved.

eyit was never exactly pinned down as to who signed the checks
which were sent to the nominee to create the funds for the pro%e_ct, it
was obviously an arrangement within the Rockefeller oﬂichw ereby
funds in the amount of $85,000 were transferred from Laurance
Rockefellet™ account to the nominee. The question as to why two
: in the amount of $35,000 each were drawn by the
separate checks : unt, s i b at H
nominee in favor of Literary Productions, ll'nc- 'bim ¢ n {ﬁ;&d in g e
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messenger to deliver and ﬁ_m?k opas opposed to using mail

was logical.
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campaign; for the four gubernatorial and three Presidential races the
total was close to $11 million. Contributions from the nominee’s three
brothers and one sister for these seven campaigns amounted to
$2,850,000. Approximatetly two thirds of the nominee’s total contri-
butions to political parties, campaign committees, and candidates of
$3,265,000 went into these seven campaigns.

During testimony the nominee volunteered information concerning
additional experiditures he made which are not technically considered
campaign contributions. For example, the nominee financed extensive
reseaich studies and papers on various national, internstional, and
local issues. Additionally, Nelson Rockefeller paid the salaries and
travel expenditures for individuals who would travel on behalf of the
notiinee to study the national political situation. For the period of
the last seventeen years the nominee estimates he may have paid
apgroximatel{’ $5 million for these services. Therefore, the nominee
and his family, directly:and indireetly, have given approximately
$20 million over a period of 17 years for seven campaigns, back-
groufid studies, and research projects on a wide variety of issues.

In response to a question from Senator Griffin as to whether the
members of the Rockefeller Family jointly agreed who should receive
?olitical contributions in various camipaigns, the nominee answered,
‘No sir. In fact, we disagree.” The testimony established that there is
no coordinated pattern o% giving to candidates on behalf of the Rocke-
feller family. Rather, each member decides on an individual basis the
amount, if any, which a political candidate may receive. This applied
to contributions by the Rockefeller family members to Nelson Rocke-
feller in his various campaigns. _

During his testimony, the nominee did express his intention to
continue to make political contributions to selected political candidates
if confirmed as gice President. The Committee feels this raises no
potential problems.

The nominee and the Comnittee discussed the $100,000 his sister
Abby and the $250,000 his brother David gave Nelson Rockefeller
in 1964. The nominee was running for President at this time and the
question arose whether these amounts were gifts or political contribu-
tions. The money was deposited in the nominee’s personal checking
account and used to defray various expenses including political or
campaign expenses. Section 608 of Title 18, United States Code, in
1964 prohibited individual contributions in excess of $5,000 during
any calendar year to Presidential candidates. The Committee has a
memorandum on file from the nominee’s counsel that these two
amounts were gifts, not political contributions. The nominee elab-
orated in his testimony that these gifts were a gesture of

tion of Section 6
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would be to their interest, to the State’s interest, in the sense
it gave more employment. It was my responsibility to put for-
ward the arguments in favor, which I always did. I thought
I was doing my duty for my constituents.

The Chairman commented further:

My question is, whether or not that is actually going too
far when it involves assistants to the President; and also
involves an ex-Attorney General. It involves, and I may say
these documents were taken from the files of CREEP, the
Committee to Re-Elect the President, the assistant to the
President, and your own conversation with the President.
I must say, in all fairness, however, that Grumman did not
get the national contract for the space shuttle. It did go to
Nf%rth ﬁ&merican, so maybe our system is a pretty good one
after all.

There was no question that the nominee used his office to attempt to
assist & New York industry to gain a Government contract. The Com-
mittee accepted his argument that he was doing his duty for his con-
stituents and did not press the matter further.

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER'S PARDON OF L. Jupson MORHOUSE

At the time Mr. Rockefeller first ran for Governor of New York,
Mr. L. Judson Morhouse had been New York Republican State Chair-
man for 4 years. He supported Mr. Rockefeller for Governor. Mr.
Nelson Rockefeller was sworn in as Governor of New York on January
1, 1959. In March of that year he appointed Mr. Morhouse to the New
York Thruway Authority.

In 1959 in an effort to help Mr. Morhouse financially (he did not
draw a salary as State Chairman), Governor Rockefeller requested
his brother Laurance to assist Morhouse. Laurance Rockefeller,
through his staff, loaned L. Judson Morhouse $49,000 to purchase rec-
ommended stock in two companies controlled by the L. Rockefellers
as follows: 4,000 shares of Geophysics Corp. of America for $24,000
and 2,500 shares of Marx Oxygen Co. for $25,000. A note was signed
by Mr. Morhouse December 22, 1959, for $49,000 bearing interest at

the rate of 8 percent and the stock was held as security.

In 1960, at the request of Mr. Morhouse, Governor Rockefeller
loaned him $100,000 for further investment. ‘Said loan was later for-

iven, after Mr. Rockefeller resigned as Governor.

In 1961 the stock bought by Mr. Morhouse, with Mr. L. Rockefeller’s
help, had increased to the extent that after paying off Mr. L. Rocke-
feller’s note he had a net profit of $30,000 and still owned 4,000 shares
of Geophysics at an estimated value of $240,000 at that time.

In 1963 Mr. Morhouse became involved in an attempted bribery to
secure a liquor license. He was immediately asked to resign his State
job and as New York Republican State Chairman. He was convicted
May 20, 1966, for crimes of bribery and taking unlawful fees. His
conviction was affirmed November 25, 1970. On December 23, 1970,
Governor Rockefeller commuted Mr. Morhouse’s prison sentence based

on his medical condition. ’ @}0\
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terms and conditions established by the Board of Parole.
This action in no way affects the existence or validity of his

conviction.”
Atrica Prison Uprising

In his opening statement to the Committee, Mr. Rockefeller recalled
his successes and failures during his fifteen-year incumbency as Gor-
ernor ‘of New York. In the latter category he said there were “five
events that I shall always deeply regret.” Xlgqng“ them he cited—

the fourth—and most agonizing of all—related to the events
at the Attica prison uprising that led to the loss of 43 lives.
These tragic developments will always remain in dispute but
as one who.has accepted the responsibility to govern and
uphold the constitution and the laws of the tate, I had to do

what I sincerely felt was best at the time under all the exist-
ing’ circumstances.

The Attica riot erupted on September 9, 1971, as a result of the
Rockefeller administration’s refusal to grant a list of grievances, in-
cluding better food and medical facilities, recreation facilities, and
the right to have legal counsel representation before the parole board.
The inmates held 89 correctional officers and civilians as hostages and
demanded amnesty and safe passage to a “non-imperialist” country.
Governor Rockefeller refused the demands, saying that nting of
amnesty “could lead to a very serious breakdown both of the structure
of government, the freedom of the individual, and the security of the
individual.”

There then ensued what the investigating Attica Commission later
described as “the bloodiest one-day encounter between Americans since
the Civil War,” as State police opened fire on the inmates, leaving 43
pr(ilso(;lers and hostages dead and scores wounded before the siege was
ended.

In addition to Governor Rockefeller’s own testimony, the Committee
heard other witnesses, all of whom criticized the manner in which the
Governor had handled the situation. During this latter presentation,
Chairman Cannon made the point that the Committee did not intend
to reopen the Attica case but wished to secure necessary information

that could have a bearing on the nominee’s qualifications to be Vice
President of the United States,

Accepting the truism that hindsight has perfect vision while fore-
sight wears blinders, the Attica tragedy, on balance, points an accus-

ing finger at Governor Rockefeller for his failure to go to the prison
before the police assault was launched. One year after the riot, the New
York State Special Commission on Attica released its report and said,
among other things, that the Governor should have gone to Attica—

uch a matter of duress or because the inmates de-
xr;x(:ng:dmhis presence, but because his responsibilities as the
State’s chief executive made it appropriate that he be present
at the scene of the critical decision involving great risk of loss
of life, after Commissioner Oswald (the Governor’s key staff

member at the scene) had requested him to come.
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nues from the profitmaking TBTA would go toward losses of the sub-
way and bus systems in the new MTA.
peculation about conflict of interest had been raised in the press

and particularly in a recent book by Robert A. Caro, entitled, “The
Power Broker: Robert Moses and the Fall of New York”. Again, the
personal relationships of the three men were among the issues raised.

Press reports told of a meeting between the two brothers and of the
sealing of an agreement by the judge involved in the case.

In response to these allegations and also questions raised at the

hearings by Scnator Jesse Helms, Nelson Rockefeller supplemented
his testimony (incorporated in the printed hearings) by a statement

which in part said such charges—

* * * Grow out of an inaccurate and extremely misleading
account in a book entitled “The Power Broker”—of what ac-
tually happened when my administration saved mass trans-
portation in New York State from total collapse.

Far from being a conspiracy between myself, my brother,
and others, as the book, several newspaper articles and ques-
tions imply, the actions were initiated by the legislature and
consummated in full view of press and publie, benefited bond-
holders and transit users alike, and were publicly hailed by
the New York Times as “the greatest advance in the metro-

politan transportation system in at least half a century.”

In part, his statement continued—

Before the law could take effect the Chase Manhattan Bank,
as trustee for the TBTA’s bondholders, brought suit against
TBTA and others to prevent the transfer of funds. The suit
claimed that a covenant in TBTA’s trust indenture prohibited
the release of TBTA’s funds free of the bondholders’ security
lien except for very limited purposes which did not include

the subsidy of subway fares.

In addition, Mr. Rockefeller wrote, a meeting was held on Febru-
ary 9, 1968, with all parties to the lawsuit at his 22 West 55th Street
office in New York City. He said the location of the meeting and the
participants as well as the resulting stipulation were reported in
several national newspapers, such as the New York Times, the New
York Daily News, the Wall Street Journal, and other newspapers.

Contrary to published accounts, he said—

The stipulation was net sealed or considered secret and it
was widely reported in the newspapers. It has always been
open for public inspection. We checked with former State
Supreme Court Justice Hecht concerning the stipulation and
the court records in this suit. Justice Hecht stated that the

records were not sealed * * *

In answer to whether he and his brother David met on this matter
to discuss the suit and its impact upon the State of New York policies
and upon the rights of bondholders, Mr. Rockefeller stated—

My brother, David, was present at part of the February 9,
1968, meeting, of all parties and their attorneys at which the
stipulation was executed, culminating extensive negotiations
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by lawyers on both sides and resulting in the suspension of
the litigation pending approval by the bondholders.* * *

_ The nominee denied that either he or his brother signed the sti ula-
i’.llotnt.aI-Iia3 Salll{i ;thw:}rs g{)%ned lﬁ' ﬁ,tb?lrneys representing the Chase Man-
attan Ban e Triborou ridge and Tunnel Authority, t i
of New York: and the Stategof New York. PRI DA PO
In response to a question regarding the stipulation being sealed by

New York Supreme Court Justic ht Jr. :
statement saidg- e Hecht Jr. or any other judge, his

No, it wasn’t sealed. This is total fiction. The stipulation

was approved by Supreme Court Justice Hecht Jr. It has been
a public record since its approval.

The question of his relationship with Dr. Ronan, particularly con-
cerning the large loans over the period of his close association with
the nominee resulting in the eventual gift of $625,000, persisted in
varying forms during the heari '

At issue was just how much independence Dr. Ronan could or would
exercise as he went from being secretary to the Governor, to heading
up the MTA, and then as member and later board chairman of the
New York and New Jersey Port Authority. Senator Williams pursued
this point with Mr. Rockefeller at the hearings:

. Senator Wirriams. Still on the question of gifts to some-
one in public office, and just how they would approach their
public responsibility, in the tough situation where their con-
science or their judgment indicated a certain course, and that
ran counter to the wishes, the desires of the donor of the
gift, of which they were the beneficiary. * * *

* * * * * * *

‘Mr. RocxereLLER. Senator, I have to say that I know there
are individuals who will fall totally in that category, that
you can buy, and that you have them, and they are just what
you would imply—are vassals. I do not think anybody who
wants to do anythin% in life that amounts to anything is
going to surround themselves with that kind of person,
because they are not going to get anywhere.

_ You have to get the best, the most brilliant, and most
:im_iependent people, who are creative; imaginative, and have
rive.

So this, I think, partly is the individual. You cannot legis-
late honesty. You cannot buy honesty, or you cannot buy
corruption from somebody who is honest.

* * * * * * *

Senator WiLLiams. * * * My point was, if Ronan had dis-
agreed with you, would he have had the guts to say you are
wrong or not ¢

Mr. RocrErFELLER. Sure, he’d had the guts to say I’'m wrong.

Senator WiLrLiams. You put’this on an individual basis,
the quality of the person you made the gift to. That is where
it finally rests with you, is that right ¢
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In all of these situations, and we have a list here of 10 peo-

le in public office that are beneficiaries of gifts, it finally

ils down to the public security that these people are dom_%
their job because you evaluated them, and you know that 1
their conscience and your desires are In conflict, conscience
will prevail ¢ ] ! ,

Mr. RockerFeLLER. If my desire and their conscience are 1
conflict, and they tell me—and the reason 1 like them and
admire them is because they would tell me. But if I disagree
with them, I was elected Governor and they were not, and I
would then have to make the decision. _

So I might go against them, as I did. But that was my
responsibility.

At one point in his testimony, Mr. Rockefeller, in explaining the
agreement with the TBTA so that its surplus could be used to help
defray bus and subway deficits, said—

Now, nobody benefited except the subway riders and bus
riders and the commuters who were the poor people of the
city.

While keeping in mind that the TBTA bondholders got an extra
one-quarter of 1 percent interest in the agreement the committee 18

inclined to go along with Mr. Rockefeller’s comment.

FingER LAKES RACETRACK

During the course of the Committee’s investigation certain informa-
tion was received alleging that Mr. Rockefeller was in some way 1n-
volved in or had knowledge of money pa ments made to the New
York State Republican Party in exchange for party officials assisting
in securing the issuance of a license for a racetrack in upstate New
York. This matter was, in part, investigated durm% hearings before
the House Select Committee on Crime in 1972 and by the New York
County District Attorney’s office between 1963 and 1965.

There aré variations in the testimony as to all of the details sur-
rounding this case. However, the general outline of the events which
took place is that certain individuals, Messrs. John and James Nilon,
knew of a proposed racetrack, known as the Finger Lakes Racetrack,
to be built in Farmington, New York, and these individuals wanted
the contracts for the food, beverage, parking, and program con-
cessions at that racetrack. The Nilon brothers were subsequently In-
formed by the racetrack promoters that they would be given the
concession contracts if they would provide $100,000 which would be
passed on to persons who could exert political influence to get the
racetrack license granted. In April of 1959 the Nilon brothers trans-
mitted $100,000 in cash to Mr. Morris Gold and Mr. Hﬁman Mintz (a
New York State Assemblyman) who, in turn, passed the money on to
Mr. L. Judson Morhouse, the Chairman of the New York State Re-
publican Party. The $100,000 was given to Mr. Morhouse by Mr. Mintz
while Morhouse was vacationing in Florida. Some time later, either in
April, May, or June of 1959, this money was returned to Mr. Gold,
who then returned it to the Nilon brothers.
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; ND
MEeRGER OF EASTERN AIRLINES A
While the aforementioned events are generally undisputed, o ROCEEFELLER INVOLVEMENT ;’N XBTfANnc AIRLINES
mittee’s concern with this matter arose from further_allegz.ztiox‘;g that CARmER 3 relationship between a
Mr. Morhouse returned the $100,000 payment after discussing ity with ion was raised concerning the 1}':’ - d Nixon’s campaign
Mr. Rockefeller, The important question before the Committeq was The question ily donation of $200,000 to Richar. Sole ot Niiwon ro-
e extent of the nominee’s knowledge of the events surroundi the Rockefeller faltn?l 372 telegram by Laurance Rock‘?r: (?f&RIB ATIR.
matter and what he told Mr, Morhouse with respect to the return of and :_,n ﬁ‘llgst astern Airlines bekalflolvivedpt:i :tcgimout his personal in-
. es m e er . 3 1
;nm&gnon'y before the Committee, Mr., Rockefeller indicated th, quIn th% telegraml’. L;“r”;’éﬁicﬁ%se in Puerto R;c? :%nd;aL sﬂ::ely;‘;gg‘
onras approached by Mr. Morhouse at s Republican fund-rajsj volvement with livi Fiix nteres: 1 enterny st S - oo
inner and was told that Mr. Mintz had given him (Mr, Morhou Islands and 1den§£3dbylsEastem. He also coménif}ti‘;lo%a:;lHe ox-
$100,000 as a cash contribution to the Republican party. Mr. Rocke- resort hotels serv. tion of the Virgin Islands Natio
feller summed up his reaction to thig offer as follows: ment in the creatio

: i tates air carriers. o
was a cash ity of service by United S ibution, Laurance had him
contribution from friends of the arty. My concern angg:ﬁélggo%,ooo Rockefeller far?;ldy tc}:);u:}?: égnt’;ribution was in no
S SR E E e
1 . ted wi i It
or at least I do not think he did. So I Jooked through what b oo long-time supporter of the Republican Ingii
was said to what I thought was the case, and I said, “Te]] 1 have been a os%ate and on a national level. M}E):on Ty
that to get that mone back and to get it back to the both in my home ign and those of other members of my
peoplglgho gfve it to him.” of g tion to the 1972 campaign

it
i re not unusual. It was agreed té}i:atbt;hﬁ:?sgglzgé h;ln
7 w?d be credited against the amoun 9ed e
%21\:: g'gl:k State and they wer(eia'm n% ;V:gggest i
ing. I
el i?l‘i,: g’llglj:elcladlegst?r?d be%xind the statement which I
n

While the nominee’s testimony indicated that these events took
place at a fund-raising dinner in June of 1959, other evidence athered
by the Committee Places this date at Some time in late April of that
Year. This discrepancy was communicated to the nominee and the Com-

irony. : first reported. At that
mittee takes note of his statement in response to questions on this if,f&i to the press when thlslflnatetziglzsmd to m% that my sup-
matter before the House Judiciary Committee on November 22, 1974, time, I said, “It would not hav ould cancel my rights to
when he said, “There is some dispute as to exactly what the date was ort of the Republican Party .': True, I did not hesitate to
in terms of the difference of the memories of different People, but there ﬁeard on any issue on its meri ecial consideration .and I re-
Is no question as to what happened.” The Committee notes that there send the wire. I expected no sp
are differences ag to the precise date of Mr. Rockefeller’s conversations

ceived none.” in fact directed by Nixon
4 at the merger was In R
’Ix.m qoﬁ?sltsb:;lioumnydetxlﬁnths following the Rwﬁf:;l%‘“t:ml%
in Apri b action came from the Governors sl
rt, for that Oﬁmu“wm ‘ mnfacmrmg .

With respect to thig matter but that the important consideration is
whether the nominee had any knowledge of the source of these funds
and what he said to Mr. Morhouse upon learning that the money had

n offered. There is virtually no dispute that unti] the investigation

jury. No indictments were

forthcommfg’ ; however, because the New York bribery statute diq not
reach the facts developed in the case. Subsequently, Mr. Gold and
. Mi i i n bribery charges with respect



VIII. NOMINEE’S RESPONSES TO SELECTED
SPECIFIC QUESTIONS

ParooN oF A ForMer PresmENT BY His SUCCESSOR

Although he felt that he would allow the judicial process to come
to a conclusion prior to considering the pardon of a former Presi-
dent, Mr. Rockefeller said that he could not commit himself to such
%e policy because he could not predict what future circumstances might

The CaamMan. * * * I am asking specifically this ques-
tion : If a President resigned his office be?ore his term expired
would you, as his successor, use the pardon power to prevent
or terminate any investigation or criminal prosecution
against the former President ?

Mr. RockerFELLER. Mr. Chairman, my total inclination is to
say no, and I can assure you that I would follow the pro-
cedures I followed in the past as Governor, and that I believe
deeply in the right of people to know. But I do not think
that I should at this goint say that I will amend the Con-
stitution of the United States by anticipating some circum-
stances which I do not know, and renounce the power which
ghe Constitution gives to a future President, or to the Presi-

ent.

So I have to say that, because I just feel deeply about the
Constitution, and if the Founding Fathers wrote that pro-
vision in the Constitution, I do not want to, here before this
distinguished Committee, to amend the Constitution.

The CrHARMAN. I am not trying to get you to attempt to
amend the Constitution, but this relates to a question of tim-
ing. I do not think you have renounced your constitutional
right if you answered no to that question, but that would
still mean you had the power to pardon after the judicial
process had been carried out.

Mr. RockErFELLER. My total reaction is to say, and to agree
with you, that I would let the thing run, but I just do not
want to get into a box which my predecessor, the Vice Presi-
dent, got into by being frank and open, and finding what-
ever the circumstances were, which I do not know other cir-
cumstances which at the time he was not aware of, and, there-
fore, changed his point of view.

I just think I take the responsibility very heavily, and I feel
very strongly about the Constitution, but I share totally your
feeling about the right and need of the constitutional process
which you referred to in relation to prosecution, in general
prosecution running the course.

(167)
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Nominee’s INTENTION To STAND BY ANsSWERS GIVEN TO THE
COMMITTEE

Senator Byrp. * * * What assurance do we have, what as-
surance do the American people have that your statements
in response to those questions are going to be dependable
guidelines on which your future conduct can be predicted
and standards by which we may pass judgment on your
nomination ¢
" Mr. RockEFELLER. Solely my integrity and my record.

Senator Byrp. Do you consider the questions to be hypo-
thetical, to be disregarded later in situations relevant to the
questions asked ?

Mr. RocrerFELLER. I do not think any question is hypo-
thetical.

I think that the answer to the question, if it is to be given
with integrity, must leave room for variables which may not
have been included in the question.

Senator Byrp. I have no question concerning your integrity.
I also had no question concerning the integrity of Mr. Ford.

But do you, yes or no, consider the questions today to be
merely hypothetical questions which answers thereto can be
literally put aside at some future date in a then current situa-
tion which would be relevant to the questions asked ?

Mr. RockereLLER. The answer is “No.” '

Senator Byrp. You consider the questions to be serious and
that the answers thereto should likewise be serious ?

Mr. RockereLLER. I do, sir.

Senator Byrp. You expect the American people and the
members of this committee to take your answers at face value,
not merely answers based upon expediency in order to re-
spond to the exigencies of the moment ?

Mr. RockerFeLLer. Well, I do expect them to because I do
not give expedient answers. I try to give honest, thorough,
careful answers.

But I am not willing to oversimplify for the sake of seem-
ing to be responsive. I have got to say what I honestly feel if
you and the public are going to have some understanding of
the processes that go on in my—part of my mind and which
would be the basis of decision.

Senator Byrn. You would expect, then, to be held to answer
at some future time to the responses which you have made
here today and which you will make subsequent to today in
answer to questions from this committee ¢

You would also expect to be held accountable for those
answers by the American people at a future time when your
stewardship may be placed before them for judgment.

Mr. RockereLiLEr. The answer is yes, with the understand-
ing that they were the best judgment that I could give under
these circumstances at this time.
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Tuar RoLe oF THE VICE PRESIDENT

In response to questions from members of the Committee, the
nominee ndicated that if confirmed his primary duty would be to
assist the President. e reported that during the Eisenhower ad-
ministration he had chaire(f a committee on advisory organization
which had studied the functions of the Vice President. This com-
mittee concluded that the only constitutionally prescribed function
was that of presiding over the Senate. The nominee noted the follow-
ing problems with regard to assigning specific responsibilities to the
Vice President:

I think the President has to be very careful though that he
does not, and the Vice President, too, allow the Vice Presi-
dent to get between him and members of his Cabinet whom he
has appointed and who owe responsibility to him. Otherwise
there can be confusion or division of loyalty.

Mr. Rockefeller made the following remarks with regard to his sup-
port of the President in matters of public policy in cases where he and
the President disagree:

My feeling is that my responsibility would be, should I be
conﬁsxl'med, tfg) the Presi}(ylentpto privately and personally ex-
press any strongly held views I might have on an issue to him
alone. And he would take them or reject them, whatever the
circumstances were, because he has full Izespon31b111ty in mak-
ing the decision and I would then publicly support his posi-
tion unless I found that it was in total violation, which I
cannot believe, of a fundamentally held belief of my own, in
which case I would prefer to say nothing. If it were of a
momentous character, then I would feel impelled to go to him
and say: I have expressed my views. You made a decision.
I find that T must disassociate myself from that position.

Now, this would be an extreme case, and I would hope not
to find myself in that position. I would refer, if I was not
in complete agreement, which I am sure would be in agree-
ment the great majority of time, to just remain silent. But I

uld reserve that other. ;
woSenator GrrrrFIN. Do you think yofufwogld be %}kelgy to find
urself in that position on issues of foreign policy
yoMr. RocKEFELII),ER. Well, I would feel that in the field of
foreign policy it would be totally inappropriate for me to
express a position in that case on an issue. My position would
be one of supporting him. * * * T think 1t 1s tremendously
important that this country have a united front to the maxi-
mum degree possible and certainly the Vice President has got
to be in a position of the united front with his President.

NoOMINEE'S INTEREST IN THE VICE PRESIDENCY

pers of the Committee explored the reasons why Mr.
Rzﬁgfgl:r;l had accepted the nomination for the office of the Vice

41-217 O - 74 - 12
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Presidency, particularly in view of his previous public remarks re-
garding his lack of interest in the position in 1960. The following ex-
cerpts from the nominee’s testimony describe his change in viewpoint :

I have reached a different point in my life due to a long life
of active experience and this country has reached a point
where I think we are in very critical circumstances as a Na-
tion and as a world and if I can be of any use, available to
the President for whatever assistance I might give him
should I be confirmed, I would be honored.

RELUCTANCE OF MR. ROCKEFELLER 10 SPEAK OuTr DUring
THE WATERGATE AFFAIR

In his testimony, Mr. Rockefeller gave three reasons why he had not
spoken more forcefully on the Watergate issue : (1) as a State Gover-
nor he did not feel that he would Eroperly serve his constituents by
attacking Mr. Nixon, and potentially jeopardizing New York’s rela-
tionship with the Federal Gayernment; (2) he did not feel that he
should inject himself in the constitutional process; and (3) he did not
feel an elected official had a right to express himself on a subject unless
he really knew what he was ta, king about.

Senator WiLLiams. * * * Now, again in an area of great
national concern.

First, your administration was unmarred by any scandal
or corruption that has ever been noticed. It was negligible
and, as we say, it was known to be a corruption-free or clean
administration. '

Because of this, there was disappointment, I think, among
many that during a period of great national tragedy and some
of our darkast days in the Nation, the Watergate crisis, that
you appeared reluctant to speak out against tiae activities of
the former President.

I just wonder if you feel that you acted appropriately dur-
in§{that particular national crisis?

r. RocRerFELLER. Well, T have to think, Senator, that if I
were doing it again——based on what I knew at the time—when
Isaid and did what I did—that T would.

Had I known what we all knew after the period, then T do
not think I would have, but I did not know it then.

I have followed this policy in relation to the Federal Gov-
ernment, and this is true with Democratic or Republican
Presidents while T was Governor. :

I was elected to represent the best interests of the people of
New York State. New York State is totally intermeshed with
Washington, the Federal Government, both legislative and
executive, actual decision-making in connection with our con-
ducting our own affairs. We depend on you for money, the
interpretation of regulations, et cetera, et cetera.

Therefore, to effectively represent the people of New York,
I haye to maintain or had to while T was Governor the best
possible relations I could with the elected officials in Washing-

ton, whether they were in the Congress or whether they were
in the executive.
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never been one who, for my own political benefit, or

begallll::el thought it was goo:i public relations, to go out and
attack somebody whom I was supposed to work with for the

nefit of my constituents.
beTherefore): the position I took was that I thou%l}t that these
very serious allegations that were brought to light by the
media should be handled in the constitutional framework;
that the Founding Fathers had developed the procedures in
the Constitution to deal with them. And I felt that while
many wanted me to come out and say that he ought to resign—
it was even proposed that I lead a delegation to tell him to re-
sign—persohally thought that prior to that final admission on
the President’s part, that if he were forced to resign without
the evidence coming out; that this country would be left hang-
ing, that it would set a very bad precedent. And what we
needed was proceeding through the constitutional process.

This is what happened, and I thought it was very useful.

I would add one other thing. That is, T expressed my moral
indignation, and I expressed the indignation of the people.

Of course, I did not express it as dramatically as did many
others and, therefore, my expression did not get as much at-
tention as those who were more dramatic in their statements.

But I do also feel that we have a weakness in this country,
that every time anything happens and the media being on
their toes, they go to anybody that is in a prominent posntmfl
or an elected official and ask him for his opinion. Unfor-
tunately, too often, those opinions are given, whether the per-
son who gives them has basis to make a sound opinien or not.

I do not think an elected official has a right to express him-
self on a subject unless he really knows what he is talking
about. Then he should say, “I am sorry. I do not have enough
information to make an intelligent decision.”

9,
MRg. Nixon’s Rore 1N MR. ROCREFELLER’S NOMINATION

i i i i Nixon
Mr. Rockefeller testified that he dl_d not believe that R}chard
playgd a(x’lcy role in Rockefeller’s nomination as Vice President.

psAERMAN. Mr. Rockefeller, the New York Times of
AE;u:tczo, 1974, describing the events surrounding your
selection as the Vice President, gives this account:

“When Mr. Rockefeller arrived, Mr. Hartmann said the
President told him flatly for the first time that he was the
nominee, although Mr. Rockefeller clearly had got the mes-
sage in an earlier telephone conversation with Mr. Ford and
General Haig. The President and Mr. Rockefeller then
placed a telephone call to former President Nixon, who was
then at his home in San Clemente, California.

“Mr. Ford, with Mr. Rockefeller on another phone, told
Mr. Nixon of his decision. Mr. Nixon, according to J. F. ter
Horst, the White House Press Secretary, told‘ the President
that he had made a good choice by picking a ‘big man for a
big job.’ While Mr. Rockefeller talked briefly with Mr. Nixon,
Mr. Ford went to another line, telephoned George Bush, the
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Repuhlican National Chairman. wh
f 5, Who had been a top con-
tlgét%k‘e:f ei;(l):r.the post, and told him that he had chosen Mr.
hen the President escorted Mr. Rockefeller ;
P e SC ; eller into the Oval
Oiﬁlccli al’s :r;’eierewg}g ntge'l’?msmn cameras, and the Government
¥y curiosity is somewhat aroused as t
of business would be to call Mr. N?;ox:). R g

Mr. RocxereLrer, Well, I suppose I would describe it as a

iy
® Lpamyanw. Was your selection part of an d
x . ik oIy
;g:,illdlnggée;ched during the decision stage of Mr. Nixon’s
r. RoOREFELLER. I cannot beli it.
op%(;rtuénty e o 1eve 1t. He had the same
e. Cuamrman. Do you kno heth i -
moted your selection in :gxy mann::r?w oy g
o lfe (g;Axgmﬁmnﬂ nand not'béalieve that either.
! \IRMAN. Had you discussed the Viee Presi
w11§{h Mlli‘o Nixon prior IE? y(iur selection ¢ ek s iy
I. WOCKEFELLER. No. I had talked to Mr. Ford tur-
day about my health and a series of questions 0}fe vgﬁn%:dut:‘o
asllcglr;e.I S}(lx ﬁhac}; tt: ﬁiugk something was in the wind.
] ad no ed te Mr. Nixon.
Ml’i‘}II‘IIXCOH Avegintilnd. r. Nixon. I had not talked to
le UHAIRMAN. Why did you and President Ford fe 1 it
was important that Mr. Ni i f
thelz\lfoxgxal announcemel;t tgf 1xon have this knowledge before
AT, ROCKEFELLER, Mr. Faord did not announce it to 5
EﬁCked up a phone and placed a call for Mr. Nixon. I rfv:'?as}i{g
he room with Mr. Ford and his wife. T thought to myself
that is a very decent thing to do. But I did not say anything
to ’ngbody. I just thought that is a very nice courtesy.
L §I gHIA:TIlRILANt]i)iId}.I you get the im_pnegsion from that event
Wﬁta I-iou sﬁgn still had a vital voice in the affairs of the
r. RockereLier. No, sir. T talked to him myselfion t
telephone, after Mr, Ford finished, and I just though?th};:
v}vlq.s a courtesy, and I like people who are thoughtful, and I
think Mr. Ford is a very thoughtful man. :

FurteER PoLrtrcar ASPIRATIONS OF THE NOMINEE

Senator Prrr. * * * T was wondering i i
) PELL, ng if you could give
your views if there was a vacancy in 197% ith 1 )
pﬁlbl%ty of your running. * P ke s
I. ROCKEFELLER. Well, Senator, T hive just stated th
conillder this a moment of tremendous changi, and great m§¥1§
%)}:':Wgrﬁz blllltl ?slhsot g:n;[reat opportunities for our country and
. . :
N at 1 am anxious to'serve my country in any

Presi}é::?cay.to assume that that would not preclude the
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Warre House Wire Tars oN NEWSMEN AND NATIONAL SECURITY

StarF

The CHAIRMAN. I would like to quote to you a brief passage
from the testimony of Mr. John Dean before the Senate
Watergate Committee on Monday, June 25, 1973, and I

uote:

5 “We then discussed the leak in Time magazine of the fact
that the White House had placed wire taps on newsmen and
White House staff people. The President asked me if I knew
how this had leaked. I told him that I did not; that I knew
several people were aware of it. But I did not know anyone
who had leaked it. He asked me who knew about it. I told
him that Mr. Sullivan had told me that he thought that
Director Hoover had told somebody about it shortly after
it happened because Hoover was against it and that Sullivan
said that he had heard that this information had gone to
Governor Rockefeller and, in turn, had come back from
Governor Rockefeller to Dr. Kissinger.”

Governor, did you, as John Dean indicated in his sworn
testimony before the Senate Watergate Committee, receive
information that the White House had placed telephone taps
on newsmen and Dr. Kissinger’s national security staff?

Mr. RockereLrer. I read the transeript, thanks to your
Committee making it available. And I have no knowledge
of this situation that is referred to.

The CramrMAN. Do you have any idea why John Dean
made that statement ?

Mr. RockereLLEr. Well, the way I read it, a Mr. Sullivan,
who is not identified, said he thought that is what happened,
but he had not confirmed it.

The CuairmaN. But you had personally no knowledge
of that?

Mr. RockereLiER. (Nodding.)

Senator Roserr C. Bymrp. Mr. Chairman, let the record
show the answer.

Mr. RockereLiEr. No.

Nominee’s Reratrons Wire Oreanizep Lasor

Mr. Rockefeller was asked for his comments as to how he expected
to be able to relate to labor.

Mr. RockereLLer. Well, my first contact and experience
with organized labor was during the early thirties in the con-
struction of Rockefeller Center.

As T mentioned earlier, all contracts were let with union
labor and I came to know the men and the leaders very well
because of my activities there and we had craftsmanshi
awards and municipal committees and families spoke; an
as a matter of fact that is where I first came to know Presi-
dent George Meany who was then head of the Plumbers

Union and later head of the CIO—AFL-CIO in New York
State. We became very good friends in those years.
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As a matter of fact he went on the advisory commi
; t
the Office of Coordinator of Inter-American Xﬂ'air!sn :fl e169;:(f)

and I have been friends with him ever since.

Now, when I first came into the i
. e governorship, labor wa.
supporting the Democratic candidate as was thgi’r traditio:
and we had some very frank discussions and encounters over

the years, and by the third election they did not take the posi-

tion on either side. In my fourth election—maybe it was the

by

third and fourth—I actually had the support of the A
CIO. Based on their feeling that what gp}?ad doneeforFtIhl;
%:Ltfhwaf hm the best interest of the working men and women
Whether they were union empl .

el BAy suppo'rt? oyees or not. And they so stated

NoMINEE’S ATTITUDE ToOWARD THE PrEss
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dously important role that the Senate plays, that the whole
legislative process plays; and last but not ieast, a tremen-
dously strong nostalgic feeling about my grandfather who
preceded Senator Pel%:l 3

Access BY MEMBERS oF CONGRESS TO THE PRESIDENT

Senator Perr. If you were ever President, would you re-
instate the precedent that Presidents Truman and Roosevelt
established that Congressmen, as a matter of right, would be
given an appointment with the President for 15 minutes,
within a day or two days of their request for an appointment ¢

Mr. RockeFELLER. It sounds like a good procedure to me.
If you were out in the country you could not or if there was
some crisis at the moment, I was not aware of that policy, I
have not studied it.

If it were over-used by Congress, of course you could do
nothing; you would be doing nothing else, but I am sure that
that would not be.

Mr. Rockefeller’s attitude toward the
to members of the Committe Dices Was & matter of concern
directly about thistopic, and, consequently, he was questioned

Senator Huer Scorr. I would like to ask yo i
A t

:;1;;};:1& n.lattez-l.ISogl'i t(;f our public officialg a‘?; t‘ll nsloelsn I?a}\lrle eg::

In rather bitter antagoni i i
m%n}ll)etx'g A Mtenay gonism with the press, with the

at 1s your feeling as to how you as a public offici 1shoul
deal with the press in seekin: o o 53
Arnericﬁn 3 Iﬁe? g to obtain information for the
o-T. JNOCEKEFELLER. Senator Scott, I testified in thi
beii’gre Senator Ervin on the Federal shield law, as wescfx‘:l)inirtl
;ﬁiel?iwl}rvgﬂ; rsottz?t'i I proposed—and it was passed—a Federal
ng ne i i
an% sourcehof informa%.'.ion.w o gt o ke b
., 1,0 e the free press in the United States—well

it the free media—is an essential part of denv;(;acp;};yt g; (;;12
g‘ggﬁ a}ld {htl_unklw_e owe them all a tremendous debt of

. e for their role i i
clrcuénsta?ces ol soc;g gf-eservmg under these very difficult

us face it, we all have scars from the free

E?u\}gtll?:cgl E?the_r }llmve scars and see-the system SI?rr\z?get;:I}lltal{
i Ay, ut blemishes and have something happen to the
So that I am all for it and I will to the best of my ability,

will always try to ans ne
frankly as I can. wer the questions as openly and

So I like the general thrust of what you say.

Cmrcumstances Unper WHIcH THE PrEsmexT Wourp B JUSTIFIED

1N LyiNg TO THE AMERICAN PEOPLE

Senator Perr. * * * On a different subject and one that in
fact is not as important under this administration as the
previous one, but do you think there are any circumstances
under which a President can lie to the American people?

Mr. RockereLLER. I do not think a President should lie to
the American people. I do not think that democracy can
survive on lies.

I think democracy has to be based on open integrity and I
think that a President or somebody else may say in the
national interest I do not feel that I should comment on that
question, but I would not feel that he should tell a lie.

TransrFER BY THE NoMINEE oF His DepicatioN To THE PEOPLE oF NEW

York StaTE TO DEDICATION TO THE PEOPLE OF ALL THE STATES

The Caamrman. Now, if you are confirmed, your constit-
uency will be broader than it was in the State of New York,
and I would like to know what assurances you can give us
that you would not use the power and the prestige and in-
fluence of your office of Vice President to secure favorable

action on bids of New York concerns involving Government

Noaminer’s Arrrrone Towarp Presmrne Over ris SENATE contracts?
Senato §: : : ? : Mr. RockereLLER, Well, that is a very legitimate question
toward Pgegg?;tg%‘:’e::ﬁ?:%et::tencmmee with regard to his attitude and I accept it totally, and my responsi ilit%r would %e solel;z

M ROCKEFELL Y 3 1 to represent the best interests of this country, and not any
} . ] ER. would look forward to presidi one State, or any one segment. I would be glad to abide by
if possible and both from the point of con:stitutionalI;e::;ons.an that.

bility and second because of Yy great respect for the tremen-



IX. GENERAL STATEMENT BY THE COMMITTEE

SUMMARY AND (GENERAL STATEMENT

The consideration by the Committee on Rules and A dministration of
the nomination of Nelson A. Rockefeller to be Vice President of the
United States probably represents the greatest in-depth confirmation
imgury ever carried out by a committee of the United States Senate—
and properly so.

The responsibility imposed by the Twenty-fifth Amendment to the
Constitution—heavy as it is by substituting Congressional judgment
for the usual national elective process—has been met by this Com-
mittee not once but twice in a year’s span. First, there was the nomi-
nation of Congressman Gerald R. Ford to the Vice Presidency and
within one year there followed President Ford’s nomination of Gover-
nor Rockefeller to the Vice Presidency.

But the question of Governor Rockefeller’s confirmation presented
the Committee with a new, awesome, and unprecedented dimension—
the implications involved in the potential wedding of great wealth and
business interests with great political power—the totality of which has
been unmatched not only in any national election before but equally
under the single use of the Twenty-fifth Amendment mandate one
year ago. \

Before the Committee began its formal hearings shortly after
President Ford submitted the nomination to the Senate, more than
300 FBI agents in 37 field offices interviewed 1,400 persons or more
about the qualifications and fitness of the nominee. Hundreds of tax
agents, accountants, Library of Congress and General Accounting
Office personnel, and enlarged staffs of Congressional Committees were
at work—not as “inquisitioners” but as governmental servants seeking
out truths.

During eight full days of public hearings, 47 witnesses were ex-
amined on aspects of Governor Rockefeller’s qualifications, character,
public and private background, capabilities, and his viewpoints on
philosophical, political, national, international, economic, govern-
mental, and other subjects. This included his record of 34 years in
Federal and State governmental capacities, including 15 years as
Governor of the State of New York.

Governor Rockefeller testified for four and one-half days (21 hours
and 54 minutes) before the Committee (with a national television
audience watching for three of the eight days of hearings) including
his formal statements and his responses to broad-ranging questions
from each of the Committee’s nine members.

With full realization of the historically significant precedent it was
establishing under the Twenty-fifth Amendment for the second time
within a year’s time, the Committee again adopted the prineiple that
consideration of this nomination should not be predicated on Governor

a7
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iIrilc;f}ll(:foe}iliiz's political affiliation but rather his qualifications to serve
Likewise, there was the underlying question of public policy impli-
cathns of the nominee’s vast ﬁnanc%al holdings g)uchingoricg&ms{)a]é-
rélents of the American economic system. Additionally, Chairman
(imnon spelled out as a guideline g:)r consideration the viewpoint
adopted by the Committee one year ago in the Ford hearings, that

* * * We are acting on behalf of every citi i

) I Y citizen of the United
States to examine exhaustively, objectively and honestly the
qualifications of this nominee * ¥ * those who do not ap-
prove of the nominee will know that no stone was left
unturned in the search for truth * * *

This viewpoint was reiterat ing Minori
Ve Cook'l,)as i iterated by Ranking Minority Member Mar-

* * * We desire to be responsive to the Presi
i N esi; _ resident and th
}I:T ation in this important matter. However, thoroughness ang
onesty must be our watchword, as the people of the Nation

will not accept less, and we, as thei i
not be satisfied with less, S Lty o s

Five PriNcipaL ARreas oF CoNCERN

Because the hearings had touched upon many bro i
» 3 5 . . ad
ghlloso_phlcal questions, both past and ]:>1'(I))spective,y it becamg‘;ll;ggssgrx{g
or the Committee to focus on certain major issues in its judgment
rr;llig::es’ss: g)l ns(:ﬁlr:ir;ary,t }tlhe five principal areas of concern and the Com.-
0 : . :
R oA o o aI_‘eczareon, covered in greater detail in earlier sec-
( 11)\1 P;tential Conflicts of Interest
either the Constitution nor Federal laws impose conffict-of-i
ﬁstnctlons on the Offices of President or Vice II’)resident astt(})lfa;n(ﬁ?gxt-
embers of Congress and officials of the executive departments, There-
fore, whether this nominee would face potential problems in avoid-
Ing conflict-of-interest questions during his prospective office ten-
ure because of his and his family’s broad financial and business hold-
Ings was a source of elose examination and concern by the Committee.
Governor Rockefeller, by his testimony, had offered, if Congress re-
quested, to place all of his personal securities in g, blind trust,
g The Committee accepted Governor Rockefeller’s candor and straight-
orward responses that he would be guided by public interest consider-
ations vis-a-vis his family’s busindss interests, This conclusion was
supported by the absence of any evidence that any meaningtful conflict
of interest accusations had been raised against the nominee during his
15 Jyoars as Governor of the State of New York (the situs of his %am-
iy ’I§ h:ﬁdquarters and major holdings).
0 the accompanying question of whether the nominee’ i
should be placed in a blind trust or be divestad of the non??nse;}(s) lddllrltla%:
.control by some other method, the Committee’s judgment was (1) be-
- 1cause of the immensity of his financial holdings, a blind trust would
ack real meaningfulness, and (2) that any actual divestiture would not
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be realistic for the same reasons plus possible adverse effects such
might have in the business world or on some phases of the economy.

The Committee agreed that public disclosure of Governor Rocke-
feller’s wealth and financial holdings, as requested by the Committee
and promptly carried out by the nominee, would permit a monitoring
of those business interests by the public and the news media that would
be adequate.

(2) The Nominee and His Taxes

Because the requirement that Americans pay their share of taxes to
Federal, State, and local jurisdictions occupies a key role in weighing
the general honesty and integrity of every taxpayer, the question of
Mr. Rockefeller’s tax returns was a particularly important one for the
Committee in its consideration of his wealth and annual income.

An audit by the staff of the Joint Committee on Internal Revenue
Taxation, as requested by this Committee for the five years, 1969
through 1973, and supplied to the Committee on October 22, 1974, as
“Examination of Vice President Designate Nelson A. Rockefeller’s
Tax Returns and Other Financial Returns,” included the statement :

* * * The staff finds no evidence of fraud or negligence in
these returns. * * *

At the Committee’s request, the Internal Revenue Service had
expedited an on-going audit of the nominee’s returns for the five years,
with such showing an additional tax liability of $820,718 in Federal
income taxes and $74,993 in additional Federal gift taxes (details are
covered more fully in the earlier “The Nominee and His Taxes” section
of this report).

As is normal, the Internal Revenue Service was several years behind
in its audit of Governor Rockefeller’s returns but such audit was in
progress for 1969, 1970, and 1971 when his nomination was submitted
to the Congress. At the Committee’s request, the IRS expedited the
audits for the full five years 1969 through 1973, and for the first two
quarters of 1974, with the report claiming certain liabilities. Governor
Rockefeller advised the Committee on November 28 :

* * * T have agreed to pay the additional taxes—in fact, I
did pay yesterday—while I have paid the additional taxes re-
sulting from all of the income tax and gift tax adjustments
made by the IRS, I have the same rights as any other citizen,
to apgeal any of the adjustments should I decide to do
SO. * *

The Committee concludes, by virtue of the findings of the staff
of the Committee on Internal Revenue Taxation and the Internal
Revenue Service audits, that Governor Rockefeller is current in his
tax obligations.

(8) Rockefeller Loans and Glifts

An issue that occupied considerable attention and testimony during
the November 13, 14, 15, and 18 hearings was that of Governor Rocke-
feller having made some several million dollars’ worth of loans and/or
gifts, some 60 in total number, over a period of 20 years, to New York
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State public officials and others, including friends, aides, and political
assoclates.

Because of the questiomable propriety, legality, and moral aspects
of a pattern of gift-giving and loans to public officials and the inherent
possibility of establishing questionable bonds of allegiance thereby,
which do not measure up to the proper standards of rectitude in our
present day political system, Committee members questioned this
practice by the nominee at considerable length.

Testimony by Governor Rockefeller and some recipients of gifts
and/or loans showed only that such gift-giving was carried out as
gestures ‘of 1personal affection, friends ip, or concern for health or
family prob ems. There was no evidence of any ulterior motive, per-
sonal or economic gain, or wrong-doing for any purpose.

The Committee refrained from pre-empting the responsibility of the
Federal Government or New York State authorities charged with
making déterminations about the legality of such gifts, forgiven loans,
or regular loans. i

o focus on the propriety and moral values of gift-giving and loans
to: governmental employees, the Committee felt that Governor Rocke-
feller became aware of its concern by his testimony :

* * * I now clearly understand that my desire to be help-
ful has been misinterpreted * * * in this moment of history,
it 1s tremendously serious because peogle have got to have con-
fidence in their representatives, * *

.Governor Réckefeller affirmatively offered to henceforth limit his
giftgiving practices to persorfal occasions (birthdays, weddings, re-
tirements, etc.) or to assist in medical or serious familial emergencies.

The Committee concluded that it was inappropriate to impose re-
quirements or limitations not covered by law. But it did recognize his

(4) Political Contributions of Nelson A. Rockefeller and the Rockes
feller Family

Another area of concern the Committeo felt a deep obligation
to examine in weighing the nominee’s qualifications was that of sub-
stantial political campaign contributions by himself and his family.
These totaled approximately $20 million over a period of 17 years for
Seven major campaigns by Governor Rockefeller for President and
for Governor of New York State plus various politically oriented re-
search projects and background studies.

To determine the legality of such contributions, the Committee’s
request for a complete aceounting was met with wholehearted coop-
eration by the nominee. All records were made available for the
Committee’s study.

The Committee’s review of the Governor’s use of his money, some
$3,265,000 for four New York ubernatorial and three Presidential
campaigns; the contribution of 52',850,000 by his three brothers, J ohn,
Laurance, and David, and by his sister Abby, and a total contribution
estimated at $10,500,000 from his step-mother, Martha Baird Rocke-
feller, at $114 million per campaign for the seven races, totaled ap-
proximately $16 million.
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oint did the Committee ascertain any violation of Federal
ele%tticir;lolgws. To a question of whether the family political c(‘)‘ntrlbp-
tions were pooled by agreements, Governor Rockefeller said, “No sir.

we disagree.” |
In’Ifﬁ:t’Com(}nittgee found no question about the propriety of the
amounts of the contributions or the means by which the contributions
were advanced. The nominee testified that he intended to continue to
make political contributions to selected political candidates if con-
firmed as Vice President not unlike contributions he has made over
the years to other candidates throughout the country.
(6) Nominee’s Inwolvement With Victor J. Lasky’s Book “Arthur J.
Goldberg : The Old and the New” _

Whether Governor Rockefeller had been an affirmative promoter
or a passive participant in sponsoring a politically oriented book dur-
ing &e 1970 New York gubernatorial race which was critical of his
opponent, former U.S. Supreme Court Justice Arthur J. Goldberg,
was a question that involved considerable testimony. o

Whether the nominee’s involvement with this politically motivate
book, written by Victor J. Lasky, skirted fair campaign practice
standards became a public issue when Governor Rockefeller originally
disclaimed any knowledge about the book’s publication. Subsequently,
after refreshing his recollection about the details involving his own
participation,nlﬁmt of his personal secretary, his brother aura,ncifs
$65,000 underwriting of the book, and other factors, Governor Rocke-
feller assumed “full responsibility”.

Governor Rockefeller told the Committee o

d to the financing of the boak on Mr. Justice Gold-
bell'g,liee%axfs face it * * * Igmade a mistake * * * I made a
hasty, ill-considered decision in the middle of a hectic cam-
aign in 1970. I have already apologized to Mr. Justice Gold-
rg, publicly, and privately, and T want to take this oppor-
tunity to publicly apologize to my brother, Laurance, for havi
ing gotten him involved in an undertaking which is out o
character for the family. iy ot o
ication of the Goldberg book and the nominee’s involve-
mgx}ée(gggt}rgi in depth in an earlier section of this report) is conl;
cluded not to have originated with Governor Rockefeller, althoug
ered its progress. i
he’f‘ﬂ:t}éol;g(rirxittga mglll.st conclude that Governor Rockefeller e:_sz(irclsed
poor judgment—“out of character” for him—when he tacitly apci
proved the publication of the Lasky book and subsequently requeste
his brother Iiaum.nce, to arrange for its financing. While the Commllt-
tee was not impressed by the contention that the book was simply
another Rockefeller financial enterprise, it does concede that there v:;s
no evidence of any illegal act by any party participating in the book’s

blication.
Loy CoMMITTEE ACTION

ber 22, 1974, the Committee on Rules and Administration
cor?clllulggcvl’?lrlle ilrlqui’ry it had begun three months earlier into the quali-
fications and fitness of Nelson A. Rockefeller of New York to be Vice

President of the United States.
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On a rolleall vote with eight members present, the Committee unani-
mously agreed to recommend to the Senate that Mr. Rockefeller’s
nomination be confirmed.

Earlier the Committee had also unanimously agreed : Every member
of the Committee would reserve to himself the right to cast his vote as
he sees fit when the nomination is considered in the Senate itself.

Discussion Points

The members of the Committee came to the confirmation decision
after long hours of study and discussion of an in-depth examination of
the publi¢c and private life of the nominee and his viewpoints on na-
tional issues.

The Committee’s discussions reflected variances of agreement among
individual members about issues raised during the hearings and the
weight to be given to various factors. But the Committee felt it should
consider the nominee on the basis of his entire record and the sum
total of all of his qualifications, not simply a single issue unless it was
of preponderant importance to an individual member. But the Com-
mittee found no bar or impediment which would disqualify him for
the office to which he had been nominated.

The Committee fully realized, as it had done one year ago with
Congressman Ford’s Vice Predidential nomination, that its actions
and guidelines for its decisionmaking ‘would be of historical signifi-
cance as a precedent for other Committees and other Congresses in the
future years should the Twenty-fifth Amendment again become opera-
tive by reason of a Vice Presidential vacancy. !

With respect to this particular nominee, the Committee noted that
any President could be expected to nominate a person from his own
political party and more likely one of his own philesophy to fill a Vice
Presidential vacancy. Additionally, the Committee accepted the prem-
ise that some of the electorate, and indeed some of the Comunittee
members, might not agree that Nelson ,A. Rockefeller was the best
choice the President could have made from among leading Repub-
licans to serve in the second highest-office in the land. Nevertheless, it
was the Committee’s responsibility to consider and make judgment as
to whether this nominee as sybmitted to the Congress is qualified to
be confirmed as Vice President. ' :

The Committes sought to explore all facets of Governor Rocke-
feller’s fitness and c}ualiﬁcations for the Office of Vice President: His
public and private life, his personal character, his integrity and hon-
est§, and his experience and knowledge, plus one unique and un-
precedénted fictor—the concentration of great economic and great
political power in a single individwal, and what that s lism in a
Vice President or a President would mean to this country.

The Contiittee’s ‘judgment. was that Governor Rockefellér in all
critical areas of concern fully met the reasonable tests and standards
that the Congress should apply.

X. ROLLCALL VOTE ON THE NOMINATION

inati Rockefeller to

tion “Shall the nomination of Nelson A. .

beo\rfli:el: i’%g:?d::; of the United States be reg:)rted with t'}gf mgt,r:d
mendation that Mr. Rockefeller be confirmed ¢”, the Committee v

as follows:
YEAS—9 NAYS—O0

Mr. Cannon
Mr. Cook

Mr. Pell

Mr. Scott

Mr. Byrd

Mr. Griffin
Mr. Allen
Mr. Hatfield *
Mr. Williams

tion was unanimously adopted. ) :
%ha‘rl:.’ﬂllgrl?:r 1t(:)nthe above rollcall vote, the Committee unanimously

ight to cast
3 member of the Committee reserves the r1
;1:?3:};2%:;7:3 fit when the nomination 18 considered 1n 1;1 18 Sengit:i
itael£.” The Commitice also unsnimausly agresd G B i
revelation to the American public O e det bl X
i -trust issue practically moot,
the nominee had rendered the blind-trust 52k
i of the nominee’s 0
2) that even though it had taken cognizance e R S
.t his loans and gifts, it had no intention ol requiring
gielcigl;t;:l ;Sco(iﬁlition pxgeced’ent to a favorable recommendation on the

nomination.

1 Voted by pProxy. (183)



ADDITIONAL APPROVING VIEWS OF MR. ALLEN

In the Senate Rules Committee I have voted to a,pgrove the Presi-
dent’s nomination of the Honorable Nelson A. Rockefeller to be Vice
President of the United States. Reaching a decision as to my vote
was not easy. : :

While Isﬁave regard for Governor Rockefeller’s integrity, ability
and dedication, I dglgagree with his “big government,” tax and spend
philosophy. In sworn testimony at the hearings, however, he stated
that he would, basically, seek to conform his positions to those of the
President. He further conceded that there are limits on spending and
on furnishing services and programs beyond which government cannot

ozi and that the Federal government must operate with a balanced
udget. ,

In response to questions from me at the hearing, he indicated that

in recent years he had moved philosophically toward the right in his
conception of the role of government.
' The United States needs a Vice President. Qur government needs
the stability that would result from filling the vacancy in the office of
Vice President. President Ford has nominated Governor Rockefeller -
for this position and has urged his early confirmation. ' ;

‘The President feels that he can work with Governor Rockefeller as
Vice President. Certainly Governor Rockefeller shows every indica-
tion of having a sincere desire to work with the President and the Con-
gress in promoting and protecting the national interest and the well-
bei‘%pf the people of America. §

ile I disagree with much of Governor Rockkefeller’s philosophy,
I realize that it would be impractical for me to expect a nominee with
whose views I wholly agree. Therefore, acting in what I consider to
be the national interest, I have voted for Governor Rockefeller’s con-
firmation as Vice President.
JamEes B. Avirex.

(185)
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ADDITIONAL VIEWS OF MR. PELL

I have joined with the unanimous vote of the Committee on Rules
and Administration recommending to the Senate confirmation of the
nomination of Nelson A. Rockefeller to be Vice President of the
United States.

In addition, I endorse the general findings of the Committee as set
forth in this report. There are some differences in emphasis and per-
spective that make these additional views necessary.

Of major concern to me was the pattern of excessive gifts and loans
to officials of the State of New York and its agencies, which became
known during the course of the Committee investigation and hearings.
I believe such gifts inevitably add an extra and unnecessary element
to the relationships between public officials whose undivided dedica-
tion should be to the advancement of the public good. In terms of
personal generosity, the gifts and loans were commendable; in terms
of public policy they were unwise. That such benefactions could in-
duce or permit greater service to the public is overbalanced by the
prospect that such gifts can appeal to the ever-present frailties of
human nature. '

I believe that this practice was unwise in State government and
would be equally undesirable in the Federal Government.

For that reason, I was pleased that Governor Rockefeller, in re-
sponse to my expressions of concern and questions during the hear-
ings, pledged to refrain from such gratuities should he be confirmed
as Vice President of the United States. His statement to me, as agreed
upon during the Committee hearings, was as follows:

I wish to confirm clearly and in writing what my position
on gifts and loans to Federal officials would be in the event of
my confirmation.

I recognize that misunderstandings may have arisen out
of the loans and gifts I made to State officials while T was
Governor of the State of New York. ‘

- If confirmed I would, of course, comply with both the spirit
and the letter of all applicable Federal laws. T would not-
make any loans or gifts to Federal employees, with two

- reservations: : -

(1) Gifts in relatively nominal amounts to friends on
Christmas, weddings, birthdays and other such occasions;

(2) Under exceptional circumstances, assistance to
friends in the event of medical hardships of a compelling
human character. ' .

The Committee, as stated in this report, voted not to require such
a pledge of the Governor as a condition of its action on his nomina-
tion. I am nonetheless pleased that he made this pledge and believe a
firm adherence to it will best serve both the Nation and Governor Rock-
efeller in the execution of his duties should he be confirmed. :

Judged solely on the basis of breadth and length of experience in
public service, including elective office, and on the basis of the positions
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of great public responsibility he has held, I can think of no other
member of the President’s own party with equal qualifications.

Most important, Governor Rockefeller has a positive p}ulosoghy
and problem-solving outlook that is much needed in our Nation today,
particularly in the topmost reaches of our government. o

The very important question remains whether there are significant
disqualifying factors involving the nominee’s integrity or past con-
duct, such as to render him unfit for the office. .

This is particularly crucial, in my view, because of the widespread
lack of public confidence in government and government officials
generally, a skepticism which is understandable in view of the abuses
of public trust in the Watergate affair. Consequently, I emphasized
in the hearings that the nominee must have the confidence, not only
of the Members of Congress, but of the public, if he were to be able
to serve effectively.

With this in mind, some circumstances in the course of the Com-
mittee inquiry, in addition to the loans and gifts, were to me very
disquieting : Governor Rockefeller’s sanctioning of the hidden financ-
ing of a critical biography of his gubernatorial opponent, Justice
Goldberg; his insensitivity to the influence that his family’s wealth
might wield even if such influence was not intended ; and the possible
question of conflict of interest.

In each case, however, I believe Governor Rockefeller has provided
explanations or statements that relieve much of my own concern and
which should, I believe, substantially diminish public concern.

In the case of the biography of Justice Goldberg, the Governor ad-
mitted to a serious error of judgment and apologized for it.

In regard to the influence of his and his family’s wealth, Governor
Rockefeller, I believe, in the course of the hearings had come to under-
stand that even “myths,” if they are believed, can have important con-
sequences. This is one very beneficial effect of the hearing.

In regard to conflicts of interest, I believe that Governor Rocke-
feller’s full disclosure of his financial interests should serve as a suffi-
cient safeguard against the use of his Constitutional office for personal
or family benefit to the detriment of the public good.

I am compelled to add a final personal note. During the hearings, it
was disclosed that Governor Rockefeller and Mrs. Rockefeller con-
tributed substantial funds to the effort to replace me in the 1972 elec-
tion for the Senate in Rhode Island. I had not previously been aware
of these contributions, because compulsory disclosure laws were not
then in effect. It came as a surprise to me that Governor Rockefeller
contributed more to the effort to replace me than he did to any other
non-Presidential election campaign outside his own State of New York
in that year. In addition, Mrs. Rockefeller contributed 11 times as
much to replace me as she contributed to all other political causes com-
bined in that year. I make special mention of these contributions to
dispel any thoughts that I might in some undisclosed way be obligated
to the Rockefeller family wealth.

My own conclusion, from a careful examination of Governor Rocke-
feller’s record and the testimony of witnesses before the Committee, is
that Governor Rockefeller is highly qualified to serve in the position
of Vice President of the United States, and I join, without reservation,
in the Committee’s recommendation that his nomination be confirmed
by the Senate.

CramBorNE PELL.

- APPENDIX

Exusrr 1

Rures or PrROCEDURE GOVERNING THE INVESTIGATION INTO THE QUALI-
FICATIONS OF MR. NELSoN A. RockErFELLER To Become Vice Presi-
DENT OF THE UNITED STATES ! ‘

ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 11, 1974

1. The investigation will be conducted by the full membership of
the Committee on Rules and Administration (hereinafter referred to
as the “Committee”) rather than by any subcommittee thereof.

2. Committee hearings or meetings shall be conducted by the Chair-
man or member designated by the Chairman.

3. The Chairman shall have authority to call meetings of the Com-
mittee. This authority may be delegatedy by the Chairman to any other
member of the Committee. Should a majority of the members request
the Chairman in writing to call a meeting of the Committee and should
the Chairman fail to call such meeting within 10 days thereafter, such
majority may call a meeting by filing a written notice with the Staff
Director who shall promptly notify each member of the Committee
in writing. If the Chairman is not present at any such meeting, and
has not designated another member to conduct the meeting, the Rank-
ing Majority Member present shall preside.

4. Any three members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum
for the purpose of taking testimony under oath: Provided, however,
ghai“i onee a quorum is established, any one member can continue the

earing.

- 5. Any absent member may vote by proxy on any issue which comes

-before the Committee for decision, provided he gives instruction re-

garding the specific question involved. »

6. Subpoenas for attendance of witnesses and the production of

memoranda, documents, and records may be issued by the Committee
Chairman or any other member of the Committee designated by the
Chairman after consultation with the Ranking Minority Member and
upon a majority vote of the members of the Committee present at a
meeting. Witnesses shall be subpoenaed at a reasonably sufficient time

in advance of any hearing in order to give the witness an opportunity

to prepare for the hearing, employ counsel should he so desire, and/or
produce documents, books, records, memoranda, and papers called for
by a subpoena duces tecum. The Committee shall determine, in each

1 These ruleé. with one minor change, are the same as adopted by the Committee on

October 18, 1973, for use during its consideration of the nomination of Gerald R. Ford
to be Vice President.
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particular instance, what period of time constitutes reasonable notice;
however, 1n no case shall it be less than 24 hours.

7. All witnesses at public or executive hearings who testify to mat-
ters of fact shall be sworn. The oath shall be administered by the
Chairman or a member of the Committee,

8. All witnesses at public or executive hearings shall have the right
to be accompanied by Counsel. :

9. Counsel retained by any witness and accompanying such witness
shall be permitted to be present during the testimony of such witness
at any public or executive hearings, and to advise such witness while he
1 testifying of his legal rights; however, counsel shall not have the
right to interrogate witnesses. This rule shall not be construed to ex-
cuse a witness from testifying in the event his counsel is ejected for
contumacy or disorderly conduct; nor shall this rule be construed as
authorizing the counsel to coach the witness, answer for the witness,
or put words in the witness’ mouth. The failure of any witness to se-
cure counsel shall not excuse such witness from attendance in response
tc subpoena.

10. Any person who is the subject of an investigation in public hear-
ings may submit to the Chairman of the Committee questions in writ-
ing for the cross-examination of other witnesses called by the Commit-
tee. With the consent of a majority of the members of the Committee
present and voting, these questions shall be put to the witnesses by the
Chairman or by a member of the Committee.

11. Any member of the Committee may request that the Chairman
direct one or more staff members to secure evidence and interview
possible witnesses. Any member of the Committee may request that a
witness be called to testify before the Committee in executive session.
Such requests shall be honored by the Chairman unless he finds that
the evidence in question, or interview of a possible witness or the testi-
mony of the witness is irrelevant to the investigation, in which case the
questions shall be determined by a majority vote of the Committee.

12. All inquiries conducted and all‘information received from any
source will be made a matter of record and included as 2 part of the
Committee’s files of the investigation.

13. Preliminary investigations may be initiated by the Committee
staff with the approval of the Chairman or at his direction. In such
an instance, the Chairman shall notify the Ranking Minority Mem-
ber of the Committee of his action.

14. Unless otherwise determined by the Chairman or a majority of
the Committee members present, no person shall be allowed to be pres-
ent during a hearing or meeting held in executive session except mem-
bers and employees of the Committee, one designated representative
of each member, who for the purpose of these rules shall be considered
a member of the Committee staff, the witness, if any, and his counsel,
stenographers, or interpreters of the Committee. -

15. It shall be the duty of the Staff Director to keep or cause to be
kept a record of all Committee proceedings, including the record of
votes on any matter on which a record vote is taken, and of all motions,
points of order, parliamentary inquiries, rulings of the Chair and
appeals therefrom. The record shall show those members present at
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each meeting. Such record shall be available to any member of the
Committee upon request. ) )

16. Except when publication is authorized by the Chairman, no
member of the Committee or staff shall make public the name of any
witness subpoenaed before the Committee or release any information
to the public relating to 2 witness under subpoena, or the issuance of a
subpoena prior to the time and date set for his appearance.

17. All witnesses appearing before the Committee, pursuant to sub-
poena, shall be furnished a printed copy of the rules of procedure of
the Committee. .

18. The time and order of interrogation of witnesses appearing be-
fore the Committee shall be controlled by the Chairman in consulta-
tion with the Ranking Minority Member. Interrogation of witnesses
at Committee hearings shall be conducted by Committee members.

19. Any objection raised by a witness or his counsel to procedures or
to the admissibility of testimony and evidence shall be ruled upon by
the Chairman or presiding member and such rulings shall be the
rulings of the Committee, unless a disagreement thereon is expressed
by a majority of the Committee present. In the case of a tie, the rule
of the Chair will prevail.

20. All witnesses shall make a prepared or written statement for the
record of the proceedings and shall file not less than 50 copies of such
statement with the Counsel of the Committee 48 hours in advance of
the hearings at which the statement is to be presented. All such state-
ments or portions thereof so received which are relevant and germane
to the subject of investigation may, at the conclusion of the testimony
of the witness and with the approval of a majority of the Committee
members be inserted in the official transcript of the proceedings.

21. At the conclusion of the interrogation of his client, counsel shall
be permitted to make such reasonable and pertinent requests of the
Committee, including copy of the testimony of other witnesses, or
presentation of other evidence, as he shall deem necessary to protect
his client’s rights. These requests shall be ruled upon by the Committee
members present.

22. Any person whose name is mentioned or who is specifically iden-
tified, and who believes that testimony or other evidence presented at a
public hearing, or comment made by a Committee member, tends to.
defame him or otherwise adversely affect his reputation, may ( a) re-
quest to appear personally before the Committee to testify on his own
behalf, or, in the alternative; (b) file a sworn statement of facts rele-
vant to the testimony, or other evidence or comment complained of.
Such request or such statement shall be submitted to the Committee for
its consideration and action.

23. No testimony taken or material presented in an executive session,
nor any summary or excerpt thereof shall be made available to other
than the Committee members, employees of the Committee, and one
designated representative of each member, and no such material or
testimony shall be made public or presented at a public hearing, either
in whole or in part, unless authorized by a majority of the Committee
members or as otherwise provided for in these rules. Any material of a
confidential nature, including but not limited to income tax returns
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and financial statements, will be made available to Committee members
and the senior majority and minority staff members only, unless such
information shall be released by the person involved.

24. No evidence or testimony, nor any summary or excerpt thereof
given in executive session which the Chairman determines may tend
to defame, degrade, or incriminate any person shall be released, or
presented at a public hearing, unless such person s_hall have been
afforded the opportunity to testify or file a statement in rebuttal, and
any pertinent evidence or testimony given by such person, or on his
behalf, shall be made a part of the transcript, summary, or excerpt
prior to the public release of such portion of the testimony. )

25. A witness shall, upon request, be given a reasonable opportunity
before any transcript is made public to inspect in the office of the
Committee the transcript of his testimony to determine whether it
was correctly transcribed, and may be accompanied by his counsel
during such inspection.

26. Any corrections in the transcript of the testimony of any witness
which the witness desires to make shall be submitted in writing to
the Committee within five days of the taking of his testimony. How-
ever, changes shall be made only for the purpose of making minor
grammatical corrections and editing, and not for the purpose of chang-
ing the substance of the testimony. Any questions arising with respect
to such editing shall be decided by the Chairman. :

27. Any Committee hearing that is open to the public may be cov-
ered, in whole or in part, by a pool arrangement to include the various
commercial and public television and radio networks. Still photog-
raphy and other media coverage is permitted. All such coverage must
be orderly and unobtrusive.

28. The coverage of any hearing of the Committee by television,
radio, or still photography shall be under the direct supervision of the
Chairman, after consultation with the Ranking Minority Member, and
the Chairman may for good cause terminate such media coverage in
whole or in part, or take such other action as the circumstances may
warrant.

29. A witness may request, on grounds of distraction, harassment
or physical discomfort, that during his testimony, television, motion
picture, and other cameras and lights shall not be directed at him, such
requests to be ruled on by the Committee members present at the
hearing. :

30. No recommendation that a witness be cited for contempt of

Congress shall be forwarded to the Senate unless and until the Com-
mittee has, upon notice to all its members, met and considered the
alleged contempt and by a majority of the Committee voted that such
recommendation be made.
_ 81. The Chairman of the Committee, after consulting with the Rank-
ing Minority Member, shall have the authority to utilize the services,
information, facilities, and personnel of the departments and establish-
ments of the Government, and to procure the temporary or intermittent
services of experts or consultants to make studies or assist or advise
the Committee with respect to any matter under investigation.
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32. All information developed by or made known to any member of
the Committee staff shall be deemed to be confidential. No member of
the Committee staff shall communicate to any person, other than a
member of the Committee or the Committee staff, any substantive in-
formation with respect to any substantive matter related to the activi-
ties of the Committee. All communications with the press and other
persons not on the Committee or Committee staff in respect to con-
fidential substantive matters shall be by members of the Committee
only. Official releases of information to the press on behalf of the
Committee shall be made only with the express consent of the Chair-
man and Ranking Minority Member.

33. These rules may be modified, amended, or repealed by a vote of
the Committee; provided, that a notice in writing of the proposed
change has been given to each member at least twenty-four hours prior
to such proposed action.




Exuisir 2

BirocrarHICAL SUMMARY OF NELsON A. ROCKEFELLER
(Supplied to the Committee by the Nominee)

Nelson Aldrich Rockefeller was born on July 8, 1908 at Bar Harbor,
Maine, the third child of John Davison Rockefeller, Jr. and Abby
Aldrich Rockefeller. During his youth and early manhood, Mr. Rocke-
feller lived at the family homes in Pocantico Hills, Tarrytown, New
York and in New York City. He completed his studies at the Lincoln
School in New York City in 1926 and went on to Dartmouth College
from which he graduated in 1930 with a degree in economics and
where he was elected to Phi Beta Kappa.

After graduation from college, Mr. Rockefeller was engaged in
family and individual business enterprises. This period included
activities in real estate, banking, family philanthropies and Mr. Rocke-
feller’s formation of Special Work, Inc., a firm engaged largely in
real estate rentals. Mr. Rockefeller’s major business interests in time
became focused on Rockefeller Center and Latin America. In 1938
he became President of Rockefeller Center.

Mr. Rockefeller had become in 1935 a director of the Creole Petro-
leum Company, the Venezuelan subsidiary of Standard Oil of New
Jersey. This association led eventually to his life-long and deep interest
in the countries of Latin America. He made extensive visits in 1937
and-1939 to Latin America to study economic, social and political con-
ditions. He resigned his directorship in the Creole Petroleum Com-
pany in 1940. In the same year Mr. Rockefeller organized the Com-
pania de Fomenta Venezolana to undertake economic development
projects in Venezuela. This agency was responsible for construction
of the Avila Hotel in Caracas, which was completed and opened in
1942. T ‘ ,

During this period, Mr. Rockefeller was also active in support of
the arts, an interest which he maintains to the present day. He served
successively as a trustee, treasurer, president and chairman of the board
of th¢ Museum of Modern Art. In 1954 he founded the Museum of
Primitive Art devoted to the collection of the indigenous art of the
Americas, Africa and Oceania and early Asia and Europe.

After his 1939 visit to Latin America, Mr. Rockefeller prepared a
memorandum for President Franklin D. Roosevelt outlining his deep
concern over Nazi influence and penetration into that part of the world
and recommending a U.S. program of cooperation with these nations
to help raise the standard of living and to achieve better relations
among the nations of the Hemisphere. Largely as a result of this
report, President Roosevelt asked Mr. Rockefeller in August of 1940
to initiate and head a new program ultimately known as the Office
of the Coordinator of Inter-American Affairs. This was Mr. Rocke-
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feller’s first full-time position in public service. During this period he
resided at a home on Foxhall Road in the District of Columbia, which
he still maintains.

Mr. Rockefeller served as Coordinator of Inter-American Affairs
until December 1944, when President Roosevelt appointed him Assist-
ant Secretary of State for American Republic Affairs. In this post
Mr. Rockefeller initiated the Inter-American Conference on Problems
of War and Peace in Mexico City in February of 1945. Out of this
Conference came the Act of Chapultepec which provided the frame-
work for economic, social and defense cooperation among the nations
of the Americas and set the principle that an attack on one of these
nations would be regarded as an attack on all and jointly resisted. Mr.
Rockefeller signed the Act of Chapultepec for the United States. He
also served at the founding United Nations Conference on Interna.
tional Organization at San Francisco in 1945. At the Conference there
was considerable opposition to the idea of permitting, within the U.N.
Charter, the formation of regional pacts such as the Act of Chapul-
tepec. Mr. Rockefeller, who believed that the inclusion was essential,
especially to U.S. policy in Latin America, successfully urged the need
for regional pacts within the framework of the United Nations. The
importance of this victory was underscored by the subsequent forma-
tion of NATO and other regional pacts by which nations unite for
their defense.

During these war-time years, Mr. Rockefeller also acted as Chair-
man of the Inter-American Development Commission, which included
all 21 American Republics and was formed to find ways of filling the
gap caused by the loss of European markets. He also served as Ameri-
can Co-Chairman of the Mexican American Development Commis-
sion to help Mexico emerge as an industrial nation in the transition
from war to peace. As a result of the Commission’s work, 22 projects
were developed which enabled Mexico to use all its foreign exchange
for productive, economic and social purposes at the end of the war at
pre-war prices.

Mr. Rockefeller resigned as Assistant Secretary of State for Ameri-
can Republic Affairs on August 24, 1945,

Upon his return to private life in New York in 1946, Mr. Rockefel-
ler became Chairman of the Board of Rockefeller Center and under-
took a program of physical expansion. Two other initiatives during
this period illustrate Mr. Rockefeller’s continuing interest in Latin
America specifically and international economic development gener-
ally. In July of 1946 the Rockefeller brothers established a philan-
thropic organization, the American International Association for Eco-
nomic and Social Development (ATA). Nelson Rockefeller served as
President from July 1946 to June 1953 and from January 1957 to De-
cember 1958, ATA financed non-profit projects to ameliorate health,
educational, agricultural and other social problems in the poorer areas
of Latin America. In 1947 Mr. Rockefeller organized the Interna-
tional Basic Economy Corporation (IBEC), a business corporation
to help raise living standards in foreign countries through new eco-
nomic enterprises. In its early years, IBEC concentrated on enterprises
in Latin America but later expanded its activities to other world areas.
He served as IBEC President from January 1947 to June of 1953 and
from January 1956 to December of 1958,
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In his Inaugural Address of January 1949, President Truman an-
nounced the Point 1V program for providing technical assistance to
developing nations. This concept was based in part on programs Mr.
Rockefeller and his staff had developed through the office of the
Coordinator of American Affairs and the private, philanthropic ATA.

In November of 1950 President Truman asked Mr. Rockefeller to
serve as Chairman of the International Development Advisory Board,
a post which he accepted. The Board was charged with recommending
policies for carrying out the Point IV program. The report emerging
from the Board’s work, entitled “Partners in Progress,” provided the
basic blueprint for America’s foreign assistance program. )

On November 4, 1952, Dwight D). Eisenhower was elected President
of the United States. On November 20, the President-elect asked Mr.
Rockefeller to serve as Chairman of the President’s Advisory Commit-
tee on Government Organization, a group created to recommend ways
of improving the efficiency and effectiveness of the executive branch
of government. As Chairman of that committee, Mr. Rockefeller rec-
ommended thirteen reorganization plans to the President, ten of which
were approved by the Congress. These plans achieved basic changes
In the organization of the Department of Defense, the Department of
Agriculture and the Officc of Defense Mobilization among others.
Another of the plans led to the establishment of the Department
of Health, Education and Welfare, of which Mr. Rockefeller subse-
quently became Under-Secretary. Mr. Rockefeller was especially active
in the new Department’s legislative program, including measures
which covered an additional ten million persons under ‘the social
security program. He resigned as HEW Undersecretary in 1954 to
become Special Assistant tothe President for Foreign Affairs. )

While serving .as Special Assistant to the President for Foreign
Affairs, Mr. Rockefeller played a key role in the development of the
“Open Skies” proposal for checking on world armaments by a mutual
alr reconnaissance. He accompanied the President to the Geneva Sum-
mit Conference of 1955 where the plan was proposed to the world.

Mr. Rockefeller resigned as Special Assistant on December 81, 1955
and returned to his private and philanthropic interests. He main-
tained an active interest and involvement in public affairs. Thus, in
1956, Mr. Rockefeller organized, with the backing of the Ro‘ckefel.ler
Brothers Fund, a Special Studies Project under the title, “America
at Mid Century.” The objective of this project was to study major
problems and to give the American people a better understanding of
the economic, military, educational, moral and other situations they
would face in the future. Mr. Rockefeller served as Chairman of the
Special ‘Studies Project during its existence from September 1956 to
April 1958. Mr. Rockefeller engaged as Special Studies Director Dr.
Henry A. Kissinger, then at Harvard University. The two men ha,d
first worked together when Mr. Rockefeller, as President Eisenhower’s
Special Assistant for Foreign Affairs, had brought together a group
of leading academicians, including Dr. Kissinger, to help consider pos-
sible new foreign policy initiatives for the 1955 Geneva Summit Con-
ference. The final report of the Special Studies Proj ect, “Prospect for
America,” attracted nationwide attention for the blueprints it set forth
in the areas of national security, educational and economic programs.
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From 1956 to 1959, Mr. Rockefeller also headed two studies of New

ork State’s Constitution, authorized by the legislature, the first by
appomtment of former Governor Averell Harriman and the second
by appointment of the legislative leaders.

Mr. Rockefeller first ran for public office in 1958 and was elected
Governor of New York State on November 4, defeating incumbent
Governor Harriman. He took office January 1, 1959. He was sub-
sequently elected Governor three more times, thus becoming the only
Governor in the Nation’s history to be elected to four 4-year terms,
His 1970 election over former Supreme Court Justice and United
Nait(;:sons Ambassador Arthur J. Goldberg was by a record 683,794
votes.

As Governor, Mr. Rockefeller expanded the State University of
New York from 38,000 full-time students to 235,000 full-time students
and from 41 to 72 campuses, making it the largest in the world. He
also inaugurated a pioneering program to provide financial assistance
to hard-pressed private colleges and universities.

Governor Rockefeller successfully proposed four bond issues relat-
ing to the environment totaling approximately $2.5 billion. These
bond issues hel]ped finance 348 new sewage treatment plants, the acqui-
sition of park lands and the development of 55 new state parks.

A $2.5 billion Transportation Bond Issue provided the first state
financing in the Nation for mass transportation as well as highway
and airport construction.

In 1971, Governor Rockefeller achieved the first major overhaul
of the state’s welfare system ina generation. He appointed a Welfare
Inspector General to root out fraud, and instituted work require-
ments for able-bodied persons on welfare. As a result of these re-
forms, the welfare rolls in New York State dropped by 160,000 per-
sons in Governor Rockefeller’s last year in office, the largest decline
since World War I1, at a saving to the taxpayers of $400 million.

In combating crime, Governor Rockefeller doubled the size of the
State police; established the state-wide prosecutor of organized
crime; established a special prosecutor to investigate and prosecute
corruption in_the police and criminal justice system of New York
City; set the Nation’s toughest drug penalty, a mandatory life sen-
tence for hard drug pushing; and established the Crime Victims
Compensation Board to provide financial relief to the innocent vie-
tims of crime.

Under Governor Rockefeller’s leadership, New York State carried
out the Nation’s largest State medical care program for the needy
under Medicaid; financed medical facilities for 12,500 hospital and
24,400 nursing home patients; created the Bureau of Heart Disease;
the Birth Defects Institute; the Kidney Disease Institute; and the
Burns Care Institute; created two new state medical schools and pro-
vided financial aid to existing medical schools, the equivalent of add-
ing two more schools.

Governor Rockefeller carried out vigorous programs to expand the
State’s economy. These efforts helped attract over 9,300 new plants or
major expansions to the State. He also created the State Job Develop-
ment Authority to provide low-cost loans for business expansions,
which created 21,000 new jobs and retained nearly 7,000 existing jobs;

199

created the Job Incentive Board, which provided tax incentives for
businesses to locate and expand in low-income areas, adding 6,200 new
jobs and retaining 6,300 existing ‘]t(_)bs; and established New York
te tra in major foreign cities. o
St%ne ;)I;‘o(%g(;fifri}(gséonsuglers, G(ﬁfernor Rockefeller initiated no-fault
auto insurance in the State; created the State Consumer Protection
Board and a permanent Consumer Frauds Bureau in the Attorney
General’s office which has handled 27 O,OE)O1 1conSItlmeir complaints; and
» mer’s rights in installment sales. ,
Strﬁ? %;};eﬁggstilﬁzc;;zl: New Ygrk State, under Governor Rockefeller’s
leadership, completed or started over 88,000 units of housing for
limited income families and the aging; and created the Urban Devel-
opment Corporation, which has thus far completed or started 30,000
ho’llff: "Rockefeller Administration created the Nation’s first State
Council on the Arts; and began the first program of direct state aid to
cultural organizations faced with economic collapse, aiding 850 sym-
phony orchestras, museums, theatre and dance companies and other

It rees, o .
cuGg[x;aéi"ll;gsrouRockefeller achieved virtual total prohibition of dis-
crimination in housing, employment and places of pl,lbllc accomrr.xoda-
tion ; outlawed job discrimination based on a person’s sex or age; out-
lawed “block-busting” as a means of artificially depressm% housing
values; and increased b}idnearly EO.pf)r cent the numbers of black and

i ons holding state jobs. ) o
Plgf)&r%g%}:%%?l;sefeller‘ gav%, New ]York its first state-wide minimum
wage which was increased five times, while unemployment insurance
benefits were increased four times. The Rockefeller Administration
also included migrant workers, for the first time, under the state mini-

wage law. . .
Imflrll thaég:rea of mental health, the Rockefeller Administration em-
ployed modern treatment techniques which reduced the number of pa-
tients in state mental hospitals from nearly 90,000 to 43,000 and the
median stay from 240 to 41 days. )

%nﬂé’f ’&)Vérnor Rockefellzr’s leadership, New York State enacted
the Nation’s first mandatory automobile seat belt legislation and set re-
quirements for padded dashes, visors, tire safety, and dual brakmg:
systems; required all motor vehicles to be safety inspected annually;
and developed the first state-financed model safety car.

In the &rea of prison reform, Governor Rockefeller instituted a
largesscile construction pro%ram to rehabilitate and modernize prison
facilities; initiated prison furloughs for medical and other reasons;
initiated a special recruitment program which has increased the num-
ber of correction officers from minority groups; and reduced the civil
penalties that reduce job opportunities to ex-inmates.

Governor Rockefeller appointed women to head the largest number
of state agencies in New York'’s history, including : the Department of
Civil Service, Department of State, Division of Housing, Office of
the Aging, State University Board of Trustees, and Consumer Pro-
tection Board. His administration also prohibited discrimination
against women in education, employment, housing, places of public ac-
commodation and in credit applications; admitted women for the first
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time into the State police; created a Women’s Unit in the Governor’s
Office; and backed state ratification of the Equal Rights Amendment
to the Federal Constitution.

For the older citizen, the Rockefeller Administration created the
State Office for the Aging; authorized property tax reduction for older
home owners; and developed special housing programs for the aging
leading to the construction of nearly 12,000 units.

For New York State’s farm families, the Rockefeller Administration
set up the agricultural districting program to insure the preservation
of prime farm lands; provided farmers with real property tax exemp-
tion on new farm buildings; provided a one per cent tax credit on new
investment in farm machinery, equipment and construction; and built
or reconstructed 14,000 miles of farm-to-market roads.

As Governor, Mr. Rockefeller was extremely active in the National
Governors Conference where he served as Chairman of the Human
Resources Committee for several years. He was a prime mover in the
ultimate passage of Federal Revenue Sharing in 1972.

Because of %is long-time interest and expertise in the area, Mr.
Rockefeller was asked, in 1969, to head a Presidential Mission to Latin
America. The findings and recommendations of the 21-member mission
were delivered to the President and the Congress in the fall of 1969.

On December 18, 1973, Governor Rockefeller decided against seek-

ing a fifth term and resigned as Governor of New York after 15 years

1n office. He did so, Mr. Rockefeller stated, out of his belief that “I

could render a greater public service to the people of my state and the
Nation by devoting myself to the work of two bipartisan national
commissions which I chair, the Commission on Critical Choices for
Americans, and the National Commission on Water Quality.”

The bipartisan Commission on Critical Choices for Americans is
studying the critical policy decisions the United States must face as
the Nation moves into its tﬁird century. The 42 members of this bipar-
tisan Commission include President Ford and the majority and minor-
ity leaders of both houses of the Congress.

On August 20,1974, President Ford, under the Twenty-fifth Amend-
ment to the Constitution, nominated Mr. Rockefeller as Vice President
of the United States.

Mr. Rockefeller’s marriage to Mary Todhunter Clark was termi-
nated by divorce in March 1962. There were five children: Rodman
C.; Mrs. Ann R. Coste; Steven C.; Mrs. Thomas Morgan ; and the late
Michael C. Rockefeller. On May 4, 1963, he married the former Mar-
garetta Fitler Murphy. They have two sons, Nelson, Jr., and Mark
Fitler. They reside at Pocantico Hills, Tarrytown, New York, and
also have homes at 812 Fifth Avenue, New York City, 2500 Foxhall
Road, Washington, D.C., and Seal Harbor, Maine.
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